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Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present the financial report and andited consolidated financial statements
of Bestway Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (thie *Group™) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Business ovesview

The Group continues to boast a portfolio consisting of the 2% argest independent wiholesaler and 3™ largest retail pharmacy in
the UK, in addition o the largest cement manufacturer and 2™ largest private bank in Pakistan.

Group revenue for the year ended 30 June 2019 totalled £3 .4 billion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7%. Profit before tax decreased by 20% to £227.7 million compared to £283.5 million in the previous year.

The decline in profitability was due to a tough teading environment within the UK wholesale sector as well as the impact of
the acquisition, out of administration, of Bestway Retail which has required stabilising. Economic conditions in Pakistan have
also been challenging resulting in softer trading results in our cement business as well as the impact of the mipee devaluation
on conversion of our results into sterling.

Deospite the chaflenges, it has been an exciting year for the Group and we have been able to capitalise on market apportunitics.
During the year under revicw the various retail and distribution businesses we acquired over the last year were inlegraied into
our Wholesale business, We beliove that these investments will be value accretive and cnable us to broaden our customer
proposition.

The business has continued its investment in the technology asseis across the Group. Well Pharmacy launched a beta version
of its app in July 2018, which offors repeat preseriptions and is designed to work with a customer’s GP to organise the
prescription delivery and refills. A full marketing campaign was launched in January 2019 and to date there have been more
than 62,500 sign-ups with almost 100,000 items dispensed.

In July 2018, UBL Digital was launched and it has grown to become the highest rated finance app in Pakistan with over 1
million downloads and more than 700,000 active customers. During the year, a host of new capabilitics were deployed on the
app including the ability to undertake contactless payments, the first of its kind in Pakistan.

Beslhway Wholesale's digital channels have also grown. The wholesale app now has over 81,000 registered users averaging
sales of £33 milfion per month and accounting for 31% of total online transactions.

Sccial responsibility

Bestway Group is committed to giving back to the communities it operates in through its charilable arm Bestway Foundaiion
as woll as through its varous subsidiaries. I am proud to roport that both of our Pakistani subsidiaries, Bestway Cement Limited
and United Bank Limited, have been included in the Top 10 list of publicly listed companies in Pakistan with regards to
charitable giving.

During the year uuder review, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,000 (2018: £200,000) in grants {o students of
South Asian origin to attend a number of univessities in the United Kingdom, In addition, Bestway Foundation donated over
£240,000 (2018: £185,000) to nine chatities in the UK, including amangst others, The Duke of Edinburgh Award,
Crimestoppers and Grocery Aid,

n June 2019 Beshway Wholesale held its 26® annual charity race day at the Royal Ascot. This year's beneficiary charity was
Save The Children. During the year, Well Pharmacy wnder its carrier bag levy, donated over £13,000 (o local charitics such as
the Marine Conservation Society in England and the Scottish Wildlife Trust.

Additionally, in 2019, Bestway Cewment and United Bank Limited have donated in oxcess of £2 million to a range of educational
and health charities including, amongst others, National University of Science & Technology Islamabad, Shaukhat Khanum
Memorial Hospital and Abdui Sattar Edhi Foundation. They have also provided scholarships, both local and intemnational, 1o &
number of university shudents across Pakistan.

Bestway Cement undertook a project of converting its Waste Heat Reoovery Power Plants in Chakwal to Air Cooled Condeuser
Systems. The purpose of the conversion was to reduce the reliance of the business ou water which is fast becoming a scarce
resource in Pakistan, This formed part of Bestway Cement’s comprehensive water conservation strategy at all of its sites in
order to ensure sustainable water for all of the communities it operates in.

Awards and recogrition

On 10 September 2019 it was announced that our Group Chief Executive, Zameer Chondrey CBE SI Pk, would be appointed
1o the House of I,ords under the Queen’s intention of conferring Peerages of the United Kingdom. Lord Zameer Choudrey
CBE S§1 Pk assumed his role in the House of Lords on 5 November 2019. The award was in recognition of his considerable
contributions to Britain’s domestic and foreign trade and his philanthropic work.

United Bank Limited was recognised as the “Bank of the Year 2018" at The Barker Awards. The award was in recognition of
the rols tiie bank has played in spearheading digital innovation in Pakisten as well as expanding the scope of financial services
in ihe region. :
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Chairman’s Statement (confinued}

Bestway Cement Limited was recognised by the National Forum for Environment und Health at their 16™ Annual Environmeat
Excellence Awards for its vision and effective implementation of environmentally responsible policies at all of its plants.

Qutlook

We anticipaie more challenging operating condifions in (he year ahead both in the UK and Pakistan. The uncertainty regarding
Brexit will likely result in further ausierity and continue to dampen economic growth. In Pakistan, economic growth is likely
o slow dowa in the aftermath of the IMT bailout package and the focus of the government on addressing the balance of
payments issue,

However, we believe that aur fundamental strengths and the benefits of our business model nake us resitient and able to
perform well in testing market conditions. Looking to the future, we aim to grow our businesses and reach more customers
through investments in new techuologies and proccsses. 1 am confident that the combination of our experienced Board, and
long-tern growth objectives, puts Bestway on course for a successful future,

Sir MA Pervez OBE HPK

Chairman

19 December 2019
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1 am pleascd to present the Annual Report and audited financial statements for Bestway
Group Limited for the yesr ended 30 Juns 2019,

Principal activities

The principal activitics of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharmacy, cement and financial services sectors.
The principal activity of the Company was as a holding company.

Review of business

2019 has been a challenging year for Bestway Group as there has been significant economic uncortainty within the geographies
we operate in, However, despite these difficult business conditions in both the UK and Pakistan, all our businesses remain
piofitable.

The UK cconomy has witnessed unprecedented uncertainty in the aftermath of the Brexit referendum and this has had an
impact on business confidence which has been compounded by the ongoing challenges of increased National Living Wage

The Wholesale business has been focused on integrating Conviviality Retail (now kinown as Bestway Retail} and landing the
associated scale benefits. This is against the backdrop of a diflicalt wholesale environment that has seen a number of major
players withdraw from the market. Trading conditions remain difficult due to the ongoing compstition from the grocars,
increased National Living Wage as well as the impact of Brexit on our supplier partuers,

Well Phaninacy has been focused on maintaining market sharc whilst generating efficiencies to counteract the flat funding
imposed by the Department of Health. There has remained a focus on leveraging techaology assets to help drive both market
share and efficiency gains via our Central Fulfilment and Digital Projects. The Department of Health has also agreed a new 5-
year contract with the pharmacy business where fanding will remain flat. Specific details of the mechanics of the funding are
yet to be determined yet again there is an onus from the government on the sector to become more efficient.

Business conditions in Pakistan have been the most difficult in recent times. In the lead-up to the IMF desl being signed, there
was a significant increase in interest rates and material currency devalualion. With the signing of the IMF deal the new
gavennent is focused on addressing the conulry’s balance of payments issve and 25 a resalt has underiaken ausierity measures
which have slowed economic growth.

Beshwuy Cement Limited was able to maintain its market share despite these challenges; however, margins have compressed
due to the impact of currency dovaluation on input costs. Morcover, competitors began introducing new capacily towards the
end of the year which resulted in additional pricing pressure which mnay continue.

United Bank Limited has been able to benefit Erom the higher interest rate environment as net interest margins have increased.
There has &lso been a focus on the business becoming more efficient and these significant investments have been made in
digital technologies to help increase market share as well as bring operational efficiencios. Deteriorating credit quality in the
international book has remained an issue becausc of prevailing conditions in the Golf region, particularly Qatar.

Group financial performance

During the year ended 30 June 2019 Group sevesue was £3.4 biflion compared to £3.2 billion in the previous year, an increase
of 7% driven predominantly by the full year impact of Bestway Refail revenue. The details of the restatement in relation to the
acquisition of Bestway Retail Limited is given in note 50 to the financial statements. Despite difficult trading conditions, all of
our businecsses remained profitable, however, overali Group profit before tax decreased by 20 % to £227.7 million compared
to £283.5 million in the previcus year (profit before tax in the prior year included two adjusting itoms totalling a net expense
of £49.3 million, see note 18).

The decline in profitability has been driven by underperformance in the Bestway Wholesale and Bestway Cement businesses
as well as Pakistani Rupee devaluation, of 29% i the year, on transfation into our financial statements. Bestway Wholesale
has been impacted by the fime taken to tumaround Bestway Retail a proviously loss-making business that was bought out of
adminisiration in the prior year. whilst Bestway Cement has been Impacted by the impact of the economtic slowdown and
austenily measures in Pakistan.

The net back value of investment properties and property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019 stood at £986.1 million,
compared to £1,133.4 millien in the previous year.

The Trading Group had cash balances of £154.2 million in 2019 compared to £170.1 million in the previous year.

During the year, the UK Group repaid extemal borrowings of £48 million as part of its ongoing de-leveraging sirategy. The
Group retired its loan facility with Habib Bank Limited in October 2018,
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review (confinued,
g i p

Bestway Wholesale - the UT('s largest independent wholesaler

Market conditions in the wholesale sector remain challengin g. The pressure from the grocery multiptes is continuing and whilst
this has traditionalty been in the convenience refail space, this has now broadened and intensificd with Tesco, Morrisons and
Asda all entering the wholesale market. The sector has also had to absorb the continued impact of National Living Wage as
well as the additional costs and associated uncertainty surrounding Brexit.

Despite these challenges, Bestvay Wholesale has remained committed 10 its strategic plans of offering improved sorvice and
contvenience to customers. Management has been focused on intograting Bestway Retail into the business and delivering the
associnted scale benefits. There has also been sn increased emphasis and investment in the supply chain and the business has
moved to a strategy of designated delivery hubs to offer better service levels and to complement its growing online and digital
business. Bestway Wholesale has over 60 depots, alongside G00+ retail stores including 450+ franchisee’s for Bestway Retail,

Revenue in the Wholesale business grew 13.0% to £2.3 billion in 2019 from £2.1 billion in 2018. The increase was driven by
the inclusion of the full year impact of Bestway Retail in 2019 compared to 3 months in 2018. Reveme also improved due to
the continued focus of Bestway Wholesale an growing volume through its various customer channels. The Best-one and Xtra
Local retail club membership continues to grow as we ensure greater discipline and compliance amongst our affiliated stores.
During the year, we continued the MyRewards scheme to help our customers increase their margins and profitability. Our
catering sales grew 2.5% during the yoar to £162 million while our online business now has over 81,000 registered users
compared fo 62,000 the previous year. Weekly sales grew by 12% vs the previous year with total web and app saley averaging
£33m per month. The retail mobile app accotmted for 31% of all online transactions vs 25% the previous year and the new
foodservice app, launched at the end of the yeoar, accaunted for 3% of total online transactions.

Bestway Whaolesale profit before tax decreased to £6.5 million in 2019 from £27.6m in 2018. Bestway Wholesale's numbars
are a reflection of a much tougher trading environment due to the ongoing challenges faced by the sector namely, increased
competition, wage inflation and Brexit impact an suppiier partners. The decrease in profitability was alse due to the inclusion
of the full year impact of Bestway Retail, which was loss-making, as the business is stilt going through the process of
stabilisation following the acquisition by the Group. Bestway Retail numbers had stabilised towards the end of 2019 and we
are hopeful this will be a positive coatributor to the Group in the future,

Total inventory balances as at 30 June 2019 amounted to £184.7 million, compared to £203.1 million in the previous year,
Well Pharnacy - the UK®s 3™ largest retall pharmacy

In previaus years, the pharaacy sector received a funding cut from the Department of Health and there was uncertainty around
whether a long-terin deal was imminent. Encouragingly, the Department of Health has announced a S-year deal, however, the
amount of funding provided to the phannacy sector will remain flat, Although, this provides some certainty over long-term
funding, trading conditions within tho sector remain chellenging as the onus is on the secior {o absorb inflationary pressures
within the sector, both wage and cost, against the backdrop of increasing patient demand. There is still a lack of clarity around ~
the specific lending mechanism and the business is reviewing how this may impact its operations.

Despite this enviroument, Well Pharmacy has over 750 pharmacies and has been able to retain its market share of national
prescriptions and has retained its focus on leveraging technology (o improve operational efficiency aud grow market share as
well as diversifying its product offering away from solely medication dispensing. The Central Fulfilinent project has been
rolled out fo the mjority of (he estate and the business las scen strong growth in its digital and wholesale offerings.

Revenue for the Pharmacy business for the year ended 30 June 2019 increased 0.9% to £790.2 million compared to £783.7
million in the ptior year. The growth was broadly in line with the market and Well’s market share of prescriptions nationaily
remained broadly at 5.8%.

Profit belore tax decreased from £8.6 million in 2018 to £6.2 million in 2019. Undedying trading remains robust and the
decrense in profitebility was driven predominantly by higher depreciation charges due to the incroased capex the business has
incurred as a result of its Digital and Central Fulfilment projects.

Bestway Cement Limited {* BCL') - Pakistan’s largest cement manufactuver

Trading conditions in Pakistan have been challenging for the cement sector in 2019 and are likely to remain so for the
foreseeable future, Economic uncertainty has resulted in austerity measures, such as reduction in development budgets, which
has dampened economic growth and as a result cement demand decreased for the first time in & decade. This has been further
exaceibated by increased finance costs and higher input costs due to the material interest rate increases and currency
devaluation the ecanomy has had 1o withstand. Moreover, competilors who had made decisions to expand their capacities
during a year of relative ¢conontic stability are now going live with their new plants. Consequently, there is excess supply in
the market at a time of demand compression which is resulting in downward pricing pressure.

Despite these conditions, BCL maintained its position as Pakistan’s market leader and largest cement manu facturer, with an
anmual clinker capacity of 10.8 million tonnes (2018: 10,8 million tonnes).
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BCL’s despatches decreased by 9.6% to 8.1 midlion tonnes in 2019 from 9.0 million tonnes in 2018. Domestic despatches
decreased by 2.0% during the year 1o 7.4 million tonnes from 7.6 million toanes. Exports decreased by 32.3% to 0.7 million
tonnes due to the imposition on trade restrictions with India as well as increased competition in the Afghanistan market.

Revenue for the financial year 2019 decreased hy 14.2% to £303.5 million compared to £355.3 million ir 2018. BCL’s profit
before tax decreased 27.0% to £66.8 million compared to £91.5 million in 2018. The decrease in profitability has been driven
by lower retention prices in the market as well as margin compression finked to higher input costs, [t should also be noted that
a portion of the negative variance can be explained by the weakening of the rupee during the year (from PKRIGL/£] 1o PKR
207/£1).

For the year ended 30 June 2019, BCL. declared 1otal dividends of 11 PKR per share (£0.06 per share) (2018: 12 PKR per share
(£0.08 per share)).

United Bank Limited (‘TJBL’) (‘Bank’) - Pakistan's 2™ Largest private bank

During the year, Pakisten reached an agreement with the IMF on a bailout packags. As part of the IMF package, Pakistan had
to adjusl its foreign exchange rates to be in line with the Real Effective Exchange Rate, which resulted in significant rupee
devaluation, The govemment consequently took austerity measures and Pakistan has boen in a sapidly increasing interest rate
cycle where ratos have risen 575bps over the financial year from 6.50% to 12.253%. Rates currenily stand at 13.25% and there
is a view that these may peak at 14.25%. Although this is positive from a UBL perspective with regards to increased net interest
margins, higher foreign exchange volatility and the ability to invest in higher rated risk-free government retwms, there is likely
to be increased stress in the corporate lending book as businesses will need to adapt their opernting model to withstend these
pressures. The business will have to be seleclive in its lending and ensure its customers are robust.

UBL's net interest income decreased by 12.2% during the year from £392.7 million in 2018 to £344.3 million in 2019. UBL’s
profit before tax decreased by 2.4% from £181.7 million in 2018 to £177.4 million i 2019. The decrease in reported profit is
driven by the weakening of the rupee during the year, although when reported in PKR terms UBL’s profit before tax increased
during the year.

On the domestic front, UBL enjoyed showed a strong performance buoyed by higher interest rates and higher foreign exchange
volatility. UBL has successfully continued its focus on expanding its low-cost deposit base and improving ils nou-fund income
and it was able to grow in these areas ahead of the competition. Digital remains a key strategic initiative of the bank and during
the year it has seen over | million downloads of the UBL Digital app with over 700,000 registered customers. UBL is
committed to investing technology o improve its customer propaesition as well as bring efficiency to its operations and several
strategic work streams are planned for 2020.

The International business has not performed as well and there was significant provisioning during the year associated with the
Gulf economies. Management has rationalised tho portfofio and has identified certain non-core territories and will look o exit
or do-risk the business model accordingly. In line with this strategy, UBL closed down its New York branch and sold off its
Omani assets dusing the year.

The bank declared a total dividend of 10PKR (£0.06) per share during the year ended 30 June 2019 (13PKR (£0.09) per share
during the year ended 30 June 2018).

UBL's total assets at 30 Juno 2019 were £9.9 billion compared to £12.2 billion in the previous year, a decrease of 18.6%.
UBL's deposit base decreased by 14.6% to £7.4 billion for the year to 36 June 2019 as UBL actively decided to shed expensive
deposits and improve its cost to income ratia.
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Principal risks & wncertainties

The Group faces a range of risks and unceriainties as a result of changing extemal environments such as regulation, econamic
conditions, competition snd constmor trends. The Group has taken the necessary measures to reduce the impact of key risks
in the business with appropriate policies where possible, however, not all risks and uncertainties can be controlled.

The impact of the UK’s exit from the EU continues to be a risk for the Group’s UK subsidiaries due to the prevailing uncertainty
and the structural changes it has on business' supply chain. The Group has undertaken a review of the impact of Brexit on its
businessesunder varied scenarios and has looked fo manage these risks wheroe possible. Given the delays in negotiating a Brexit
deal, this analysis and the associated mitigants are reviewed periodically for reasonableness.

Competition is another key risk across all of the Group’s businesses due to the bandscape in which we operate. Competitiveness
has increased due to an increase in market entrants within the cement and banking businesses, whilst there arc market cost and
pricing pressures within the UK businesses. The Group ensures that it has rebust stratogic planning and budgetary monitoring
processes and that it leverages market intelligence to ensure our subsidiaries remain relevant in the market,

Regulation is a key risk across all of the Group’s businesses given the sectors that we operate in. Regulation has increased
across sll subsidiaries with a focus in the UK on data protection, on environmental standards in cement and in capital adequacy
in the bauking sector, The Group ensures that it remains apprised on the changing regulatory landscape and its impact on the
busiiess. The Group alse ensures it has robust project teams thal oversee operational compliance.

IT & Cyber is an increasing risk across all Group businesses given the increased focus on digital systems of record and
transacting. The Group ensures that it undertakes period cyber assessmonts and system penelration tesling with subject matter
experts. The threats aro then systematically managed, and its security is enhanced via improvement programmes.

Capital risk management and applicable regulations in Pakistan for the Banking Group

Backgronnd

The objective of managing capital is fo safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. it is the policy of the
Bank to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, depositor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business, The Bank ains to maintain an optimum level of capital along with maximising shareholders’
relum as we consider a sound capital position as more appropriats as opposed 1o leverage supporting business growth.

Minimum paid up capital

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD> Circular No. 7 dated 15 April 2009 has preseribed the minimum paid-up
capital (net of accumulated losses} for Banks to be raised to Rs.10.0 billion by the year ended 31 December 2015. The paid-up
capital of the Bank as at 36 June 20 [9 tofalled Rs.12.2 billion (2018: Rs.12.2 billion}.

Basel ITT capital instractions

The SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 6 dated 15 August 2013 has issned Basel I Capital instructions for Banks/DFIs. The
revision to the previously applicable Capital Adequacy regulations pertain to components of cligible capital and related
deductions. The amendments have been introduced with an aim to further strengthen the existing capital related rules, Basel
111 instructions became effective from 31 December 2013; however, there is a transitional phase during which the complete
reguitements would become applicable with full implementation by 31 December 2019.

The Bank's capital adequacy is reported using the rufes and ratios provided by the State Bauk of Pakistan. The capital adequacy
ratio is & measvre of the amount of a Bank's capital expressed as a percentage of its risk weighted assets (RWAs).

Banking operations are categorised as either Trading Book or Banking Book and RWAs are determined according to specific
treatments as per the requircents of SBP that measure the varying lovels of risk attached to on balance sheet end off-balance
sheet exposures.

Under the current capital adequacy regulations, credit risk and market risk exposures are measured using the Standardised
Approach and operational risk is measured using the Basic Indicator Approach. Credit risk mitigants are also applied against
the Bank’s expuosures based on oligible collateral.
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Applicable capital ratios under Basel IT1

Banks ave also required to maintain a minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10.0%, capital conservation buffer of 1.90%
and High Loss Absorbency Requirement of 1.5% of the risk weighted exposures of the Bank,

Further, under Basel Il instructions, as at 30 June 2019, the Banks is required ta maintain a Common Equity Tier | (CET 1)
ratio of 6.0% and Tier 1 ratio of 7.5%. The actual ratios for the Bank as at 30 June 2019, which are unaudited, for Common
Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) was 12.5% and 13.5% for Tier 1 ratio.

Lower Bufler required in 2020

As per SBP's designation of D-SIBs for the year Z019, the HLA capitul charge required to be maintained by UBL has been
reduced from 1.5% to 1.0%. The revised HLA capital charge will be applicable from 31 March 2020 and will remain effective
till next D-81B designation is announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.

The financial risk management policies of the Group are detailed in note 44,

Key performance indicators

Among the financial performance indicators within the wholesale business, the key performance indicators are like for like
sales, sules per department gross profit margin, sales per depot, sakes per department, operaling expenses, wage cost por depot,
stock availability, stock levels and cash generation.

The financial performance indicators within the pharnacy business include, the key performance indicators are preseription
growth, over the counter sales growth, profitability per branch, opesating expenses, stock levels, cost per prescription and cash
generation.

Financial performance indicators inn the cement business are net retention, gross margin, operating expenses, daily despatches
and cost of production.

Among the financial performance indicators within the banking business, the key performance indicators are deposit jevels,
assets under management, retum on asscts, rofumn on equity, nel interest margin, non-financial income, operating expenses,
cost to income ratio, cost of deposits and capital adequaey ratio.

General non-financial performance indicators are staff tumover, staff, supplier and customer satisfaction and health and safety
reports, amongst others.

The Board is of the belief that the monitoring of the indicators is an important aspect of the regular business perfonnance
reviews conducted by management.

The following financial KPI’s (tumover, PBT and cash) are referred to in the business review.
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Strategic report: Group Chief Executive’s review {confinued)
Future outlook

We seo challenges in both the UK and Pakistani economies. The UK is faced with unprecedented uncortainty as a result of the
decision to leave the EU, whilst Pakistan will have to balance its need for economic growth with fhe austerily moasures
emaneting from the IMF bailout package. However, we believe the Group is in a strong position to withsland these pressures
and continue to gain share within its respective markets.

The wholesale business will continue to focus on growing share in a competitive market by leveraging the complementary
infrastructure of Bestway Retail as part of its service offoring, The business will alsa be focused on delivering operational
efficiencies via the integration of Bestway Retail as well as optimising its supply chain infrastructure.

Well Pharmacy will continue to focus on outperforming the market in both preseription volumes and margin delivery by
investing in technology mitiatives that will enable us to reduce our cost (o serve as well as grow our market share. The business
wili lock to respond lo the new NHS funding contract 1o ensure it is delivering all of the serviges required and achieve the
efficiency gains implicil in the new 5-yoar contract provided by the Department of Health,

Bestway Cement will remain focused on reducing its operational and administrative cost base and retain its status as the lowest
cost aperator in the seclor 1o better enable it to withstand sustaized margin pressure,

United Bank Limited will rebalance its investment portfolio in the increasing interest rate envirommnent. It will also continue to
retain its focus on menaging corporate accounts during these turbulent economic times whilst also leveraging digital
capabilities to enable it to inerease its market share of deposils and reduee its cast to income ratio. UBL, will alse remain
focused on rationalising and de-risking its intemational portfolio and ensure adherence 1o intemalional compliance standards
across the organisation.

It has been a challeaging twelve months and it is likely that the headwinds our businesses have faced will remain for the near
future. Notwithstanding these prossures, wo have been able to show the resilience of our business model and all of our
businesses have been able to maintain market share and are well positioned 1o grow going forward and create value for all
stakeholders.

I would like to thank all our suppliers and emgployees for their commitment to the Group. I woulld also like 1o thank wy fellow
Directors for their contribution to our strategic and operational priorities,

On behglf of the board,

';-*——NM L
Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA
Gronp Chief Execufive 19 December 2019
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Divectors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited finuncial statements of Bestway Group Limiled for the vear ended 30 Juns
2019.

Principal activifies

The principal activities of the Group during the year were in the wholesale, pharmacy, cement and financial services sectors.
The principal activity of the Company was as a holding company.

Directors

The Directars who held office during the year, and up to the date of signing these financial statements, were as follows:

Sir MA Pervez OBE HPk (Gronp Chainman)

Lord Z M Choundrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA (Group Chief Executive)
M Y Sheikh

R Pervez, ACA

D Pervez, BA (Hons), MA Oxon, Solicitor

H Z Choudrey, BA (Hons) Cantab, ACA

" v e 8 9 @

Indemnity provisions

The Group has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for its Dircctors in relation (o certain losses and liabilities
that may ocaur in the course of acting as Directors of the Conpany, its subsidiaries or essociates which were in force during
the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Employee involvement and equal opportunities

The Group systematically provides employees with information on metters of concent to them and consults with employees
on g regular basis to ensurc that their views can be considered in making decisions which are likely to affect their interests.
The Group encourages the involvement of employecs in the Greup's performance and ensures that it provides employees with
the information required such that they can achieve a common awaroness of the financial and economic factors affecting ifs
performance.

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and its policies for the recruitment, training, carcer development and promotion
of employees are based on the rolevant merits and abilities of the individuals concerned. It recognises its responsibilities
towards the disabled and gives full and fair considoration to applications for employment from them, having regard to their
aptitudes and abilities. So far as particular disabilities permit, the Group will give continued employment and arrange
appropriate training for any existing employes who becomes disabled. It is the policy of the Group that the training, earcer
development and promotion of disabled persons should as far as possible be identical to that of other employees.

Flnancial risk management

A description of the Group's [inancial risk management objectives and policies and its exposure to foreign currency, interest
rate, credit and liquidity risk is given in note 44 to the financial statements.

Dividends

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share for the year ended 30
June 2018, This is in addition 1o the £6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
June 2018. Together, this dividend totalled £10 million.

No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Political donations

Political donations made in the year totalled £132,106 to the Conservative party (2018: £101,155).
Gither information

An indication of likely fsture developments in the business and particutars of significant events which have occurred since the
end of the financial year have been included in the Strategic report on page 9.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors wha held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they arc each aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each Director has taken sll the steps that they
ought 1o have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information.



Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Anrual repaort aad financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Divectors” veport (continued)
Auditors

KPMG LLP resigned as auditors on 24 January 2019. PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP were subsequently appainted as auditors
i accordance with Scetion 485 of the Companies Act 2006 on 6 March 2019. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated
their willingness to cantinue in office and a resolution conceming their re-appointment will be praposed at the Annual General
Meeting.

Gaing Concern

The financial siatements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group made a profit before tax of £227.7 willion
(2018: £283.5 million) and has net assets of £1.7 biltion (2018: £1.9 billion) and lotal assots of £11.9 billion (2018: £14.4
billion). Additionatly, the Group generated cash of £474.5 miilion (2018: £45.7 million) in the financial year ended 30 Jone
2019,

The Directors have also reviewed the detailed budgots and cash flow forccasts for the businesses md also considered the
liquidily requirements of the banking operations and belicve that the group has access to sufficient financial resources to enable
it to continue its operations and meot its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial siatements,

The Company financial statements have also been prepared on 4 going concernt basis. The Company made a profit before tax
of £4.0 million and has net assets of £578.0 million. This relates predominately to an investment in Bestway (Holdings)
Limited. The Directors cousider that this will enable the Company to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future by meeting its labilities as they fall due for payment.

Based on these indications the Direclors balieve that it remains appropriate to prepare (he cousclidated and company Rnancial
stalements on a going contcem basis.

Statement ol Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statoments in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the direotors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have
prepased the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (IFR8s) as adopted by
the Furopean Union and company financial statements in aceordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounling
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™, and applicablc law).
Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the slate of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the Enropean Union have been followed for the group financial
statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject 1o any materiaf departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

¢  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the gronp and company and hence for aking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explein the Group and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company
and enable them 1o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2000.

The financial statements on pages 16 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and signed on its
behalf by

‘&—-—-—‘?-—-—-_..-h__h__: [ S —"

Lord Z M Cheudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Tfons), FCA
Growp Chief Execntive

19 December 2019
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

Inour opinion:

s Bestway Group Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial
statements™) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 June
2019 and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

*  the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

» the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

»  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
20060,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and finaneial statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the consolidated and company statements of {inancial position as at 30 June 2019; the
consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive ineome, the consolidated cash flow statement, and
the consolidated and company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
staterments, which include a deseription of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs(UK)"} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements seetion of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, which ineludes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
18As (UK) require us to report to you when:

» thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s and company’s ability to continue as a going concern, For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom
may withdraw from the European Unlon are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications
on the group’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider economy.



Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestway Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Reporting on ather information

The other information ecomprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial staternents
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinior or,
except to the extent otherwise explicilly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

{n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
deing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the finaneial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audlt, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstaterment, we are required to perform procedures tc conclude whether there
is a material misstaternent of the financial statements or a material misstateiment of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, [SAs (UK) require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report: Group Chief Executive's Review and Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with
the finaneial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report: Group Chief Executive’s
Review and Directors’ Report,

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the andit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 12, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they
deterinine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the direetors either intend 1o liguidate the group or the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. )

Auditors’ responstbilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonsble assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes qur opinion.
Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
18As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these [inancial statements.

A further deseription of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website
at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
aceordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 20006 and for no other purpose. We de not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Bestiwvay Group Limited (continued)

Report on the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

«  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

»  the company financial statements are nol in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to reporl arising from this responsibility.

~Suzdhne Weolfson (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Uxbridge
19 December 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 30 Jure 2019

Nofe

Revenue 5
Cost of sales

Interest income 6
Interest expense 7

Net interest income

Gross writfen prenium 8
Premivm ceded to reinsurer 8

Net written premiums

Gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurer

oo

Movement in technical
provisions

Net benefits and clatms

Fee, commission and 10
brokerage income

Fee, commission and
brokerage expense

Net fee and commission
income

11

Gross profit

Dividend income from

mvesiments

Other operating inconie 12
Gains and losses on 13
investments

Other gains and losses

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Credit impairment losses

Share of profits of associates

net of tax

Other operating cxpenses

Tatal operating pratit 14

Finance income 16
Finance expense 17

Net finance expense

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusting
items

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Amnual report and financial slatements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading Total

Trading Banking Total Growp Banking  Consolidated
Group Group  Consolidated {restated) Group (restated)
2019 201% 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £008 £000 £000 £000 £000
3,447,911 - 3,447,911 3,224,375 3,224,375
(2,948,412) - (2,94%,412) (2,717,961} - (2,717,961)
499,499 - 499,499 506,414 - 506,414
- 736,695 736,695 - 776,133 776,133

. (352,359) (392,359) - (383,394) (383,394)

- 344,336 344,336 - 392,739 352,739

- 22,048 22,048 - 20,804 20,804

. (11,668) (11,668) - (11,376} (11,376)

. 10,380 10,380 - 9,428 5428

- (12,050) (12,050) - (11,613) (11,613)

- 7,748 7,748 - 8,367 8,367

- 282 282 . (716) (716)

- 4,020) (4,020) . (3,962) (3,962)

- 94,232 94,232 106,651 106,651

- (2,768) 2.708) . 2.287) 2287

- 91,524 91,524 - 104,364 104,364
459,499 442,220 941,719 506,4l4l 502,569 1,008,983
- 8,772 8,772 - 11,867 11,867

4,302 2,482 6,784 3,986 1,716 5702

- 7,560 7,560 - 59,79% 59,769

2,153 1,398 3,551 4,358 541 4,899
(18,898) - (18,898) (13,946) - (13,946)
“11,712)  (254,753) (666,465)  (382,729)  (264,328) (647 .057)
- (33,208) (33,205) - (6608) (76,608)

- 2,899 2,599 - 2,600 2,600
3,710 . 3,710) (1,524) . (1,524)
71,634 177,373 249,007 116,559 238,156 354,715
69 - 69 34 . 34
{21,391) (t:1] (21,399 (21,948) - (21,948)
(21,322) ® 21,330 (21,914) . (21,914)
50,312 177,365 227,677 94,645 238,156 332,801
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Consolidated Income Statement {cortinued)

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Note

Underlying profit before
taxation before adjusting
items

Adjusting items:
Gain on acquisilian 18
International pension provision /8

Profit before tax

Taxation 19

Profit for the year

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Nou-controlling interests
Investors of UBL funds

Profit for the yemr

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Trading Banking Total

Trading Banking Total Group Group  Consolidated
Group Group  Consolidated (restated) {restated) (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £0Q0 £000 £000
50,312 177,365 227,677 94,645 238,156 332,801

- - - 7,156 - 7.156

- - - - (56,470) (56,470)
se312 177,365 227677 101,801 181,686 283,487
{27,811) (84,37%) (112,182) (28,600) (53,685) (82,285)
22,501 92,994 115495 73,201 128,001 201,202
1,079 53,388 54,967 38,552 72,468 111,020
21,422 38,911 60,333 34,649 55,311 89,960

- 195 195 - 222 222
22,501‘ 92,994 115,495 73,201 128,001 201,202

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.
The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Profit after taxation

Items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:

Profit attributable to investors of
UBL fuads

Gains on investmenis on equity
instrumcnts designated at FVOCI
— net of tax

Remeasurement of net defined
benefit liability — net of tax

Items that are or may be
rveclassified subsequenfly to
profit or loss when specific
conditions have been mot:
Surplus / (loss) arising on
revaluation of fixed assets
Surplus / (loss) arising on
investiments in socurities as'at
FVOCI' —net of tax

Net loss on investments in debt
instruments classified as ‘st
FVOCT —notof tax

Exchange (loss) / gain on
Iransiation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive (loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive {loss) /
income for the year

Total comnprehensive (loss) /
income atributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent

Noun-controfling intercsts

Total comprehensive Qoss) /
income for the year

Note

40

47

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financia! statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

o . Trading Banking, Total
T MM iy O Ooup Consoie
(restated) (restated) (restated)

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
22,501 92,994 115,495 73,201 123,001 201,202

- (195; (195} - (2223 (222}

- 675 675 - - -
(582) 13,268 12,686 1,809 (1,533) 276
(582} 13,748 13,166 1,809 (1,755 54
- 3,511 @,517) - 44,177 44,177

@ 28) &1} 551 (98,666) (98,115)

- (20,080) (20,080 - - -
(69,211)  (155,754) (224,965) (54,635)  (145,203) (199,338)
(69,213} (179,379) (248,592) (54,084) (199,692) (233,776)
(69,795) (165,629 (235,424) (52,275  (201447) (253,722)
(47,294)  (72,635) (119,929) 20,926 (73,446) (52,520}
(35,424)  (45,990) (81,414) 12,149 (40,178) (28,029)
(113870) (26,645) (38,515) 8,717 (33,268) (24,491
47294)  (72,635) (119,929) 20,926  (73.446) (52,520)

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.
The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As ar 30 June 2019

Non-current assets
Gaedwill

Trading Group
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
luvestment property

Banking Group
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Reinsnrance assets
Investments in associales
lnvestments in financial assets
Lending to financial instifutions and advances
Net deforred tax asset

Current assets
Trading Group
Tax recoverable
Inventories
T'rade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Banking Group
Tax recoverable
Investments in financial assets
Trade and other receivabies
Lending to financial institutions and advances
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS

Current liabilities
Trading Group
Tax payable
Bank overdrafl
Trade and other payables
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions
Banking Group
Bank overdraft
Trade and other payables
Deposits and other accounts
Payable to investors of UBL funds
Bills payable
Other interest-bearing loans and boriowings

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for szle

Provisions

Note

21

23

25

23

25

27

34
39

28
30
32

36
20
38

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

At 30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
141,711 173,487
400,088 432,221
600,500 681,017
116,442 114,612
7,445 9,175
253,231 318,390
15,919 19,454
10,262 11,396
14,371 23,693
1,942,928 2,894,350
1,715,703 2,222911
39,629 5,866
5,258,229 6,906,572
18,323 17,030
284,908 328,786
249,154 258,259
154,181 170,121
99,257 136,560
2,465,728 2,390,652
248,757 299973
1,764,113 2,647,605
1,337,440 1,229,870
20,895 -
6,642,756 7,478,946
11,900,985 14,385,518
2,360 3,555
107,148 140,649
541,204 582,764
111,403 91,658
8,365 22,588
2,085 6201
263,530 287,079
7,109,108 8,205,299
9,536 7,487
143,886 96,844
967,260 1,734,563
20,016 -
14,760 16,977
9,300,661 11,195,664
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesition (continued)
As at 30 June 2019

Note
Non-current liabilities
Trading Group
Other interest-bearing loans and borrewings i6
Preference shares 36
Net deferred tax liabilities 39
Net employee benefits 40
Provisions 38
Banking Group
Other financial liabilities 34
Deposits and other accounts 35
Othier interest-bearing loans and borrowings 36
Subordinated loans 37
Net employee benefits 40
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL NET ASSETS
Equity
Share capital 46
Revaluation reserve
Merger difference reserve
Statutory reserve
Reserve pertaining to UBL funds
Translation reserves
Retained camnings
LEquity attributahle to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests 47

TOTAL EQUITY

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 15003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

At 30 June

At 30 June 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
176,786 275,141
58,178 58,178
122,810 [29,044
7,475 9611
3,419 -
21,154 26,201
299,693 535,828
174,333 165,605
49,202 -
2,112 62,043
915,162 1,261,651
10215823 12,457,315
1,685,162 1,928,203
10 10
239,276 265,196
3,165 3,165
226,635 217,213
6,884 4,973
41,626 134,002
638,460 661,567
1,156,056 1,286,186
529,106 542,017
1,685,162 1,928.203

The notes on pages 24 to 136 are an inlegeal part of these consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

Lord Z M Choudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA
(Chief Execulive)

M Y Sheikh
(Director)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annuval report and financial statements
For the yesr ended 30 June 2019

Trading  Banking Total
Trading Banking Total Graup Group  cashflow
Group Group cashflow 2018 2018 2018
Notd 2019 2019 2019{ (restated) (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 fAVHY) £GOO
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 50,312 177,365 227,677 101,801 181,686 283,487
Adiustments for:
Share of profit of associales 27 - (2,899 (2,899) - (2,600) (2,600}
Finance jncome 16 69 - ©9) G4 - (Gd)
Finance costs 1 21,391 - 21,391 21,948 - 21,948
One off gain on scquisition 503 - - - (7,156) - (7,156}
Other gains ,153)  (1,398) (3.551)] (4,358) (541)  (4,899)
Depreciation of property, plent and equipment 24] 45,686 14,653 60,339 42,182 17,117 59,209
Amonlisation of intangible assols 23 38,671 3,509 42,180 39,040 3,805 42,845
Profit on disposal of property, plant and
equipment {111) - (111) (1,224) - (1,224)
Profit on disposal of investirent property (5%) - (58) (892) - {892)
(Decrease) / increase in provisions (11,073 (39327} (50,400) 2,747y (55,624) (58,371)
{Decrease) / increase in retirement benefits (2,836) (53,215) (56,051) 213) 4,528 4,315
Impairment of geodwill 21 3,258 - 3,258 10,055 - 10,055
Impairment of intangible assets 23 95 - 95 1,123 - 1,123
Net cash inflow from operating activities
before movements in working capital 143,113 98,688 241,801 199,525 148,371 347,896
Decrease / (increase) in imventories 30,236 - 30,236 (28,636) - (28,636)
Decrease / (increase) in receivables 1,896  (22,025) (20,129)| (46,998) (42,899) (89,897
Pec:rea.se/ (increase) in lending lo financia) ) 341,619 341,619 - (O23725) (923.725)
instifutions and advances
{Decrease) / increase in payabies (29,148) 58,880 29,732 61,745  (8L,872) (20,127)
[nerease / (decrease) in bills payable - 81,048 81,048 - (13,539 (13,539}
Increase / (decrease) in deposits and other . 755326 755326 . 534513 534,513
accounts
Decrease in investments - (361,091) (361,091) - 1,344,701 1,344,701
146,097 952,444 1,098,541 185,636 965,550 1,151,180
Tax paid (27,213)  (76,727) (103,940) (45,298) (102,767) (148,065)
Net cash inflow from eperating activities 118,884 R75, 717 994,601 140,338 862,783 1,003,121
Cash flows from investing activities
N h
1§ rm_:eeds on disposal of property, plant and 3,680 6,266 9.946 4,608 10,622 15,230
equipment
Proceeds on disposal of investment property - 1,572 1,572 5412 2,182 7,594
Purchases of property, plent and equipment (46,804)  (23,741) (70,545)| (125,097) (41,801) (166,898)
Purchase of investnient property - [CYi) 77 (38) (3.479 (3,517)
Purchase of intangible assets (7,082) (3,618) (10,700) (1,829) (6,8806) {8,715)
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash - - - (6,653) - {6,653)
Repayment of borrowings from third partics (52,306) (387,304) (439.610)] (72,188) (630,990) (703,178)
Borrowings from related parties 116 - 116 51 - 51
Borrowings from subordinated loan - 57,861 §7,861 - - -
Dividends reccived from Banking Group 43,131 - 43,131 63,361 - 63,361
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (7,075 (19,998) (27,073)] (60,236)  (39,362) {99,598)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

For the period ended 30 June 2019

Nord

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to Trading Group
Dividends paid to owners of the parent
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
Interest recoived

Tnterest paid

Proceeds [rom the issue of shares

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Net cash (outflow) fi'om firancing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
cguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginaing of
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Trading  Banking Total

Trading Banlking Total Group Group  cashflow
Group Group cashflow 2018 2018 2018
2019 2019 2019| (restated)  (restated) (restated)
£000 £000 £000, £000 £000 £000

- ({43,131) (43,131) - (63361)  (63,361)
(4,000) - @000)  (6,000) - {6,000
(16,182)  (29,664)  (45846) (20,956)  (43,578) (64,534
69 - 69 34 - 34
(21,391 - (21391 (21,948) - (21,948)
- 2,908 2,908, - 1,092 1,092
(93,694) (3993300 (493,024)) (121,007) (736,837) (857,844)
18,115 456,389 474,504 (40,905) 86,584 45,679
29472 1,223,669 1,253,141 70,653 1,350,390 1,421,043
$54) (344,703 (45257 @76) @1330%) (213,58D)
47,033 1,335,355 1,382,388 29472 1,223,669 1,253,141

Detatls of the restatement arc given in note 50,

The notes oa pages 24 to 136 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bestway Group Limited

Repistered number 11003305

Annuai report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes

i. General information

Bestway Group Limited (the “Company”) is & private Company limited by shares, incorporated on 9 October 2017, domiciled
and registered in Erngland in the UK under the Companies Act 2006. The registered number is 11003305 and the registered
address is 2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, London NW 10 7BW.

The Group finanoial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group™)
and equity account the Group’s interest in associgtes, The parent Company financial statements present information about the
Company as 8 separate enfity and aot us a Group.

The Group financia! statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU (“IFRSs™). The Dircctors havo elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with FRS
101: Rechiced Disclosures Framework, these are presented on pages 137 to 141. These firancial statements have also boen
prepated it accordance with Companies Act 2006 as applicabls to companies using IFRS. These financial statements bave also
been prepared in accordance with IFRS Interpretations Committes interpretations (IFREC).

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise staled, beon applied consistently fo all years presented in these
Group financial statements,

Critical accounting estimales and judgements made by the Directors in the application of thess accounting policies that have
significant effect on the financio! statements that could be subject to material adjustment in the fiture are discussed in note 51.

These financial statements are prescnted in pounds sterling, and ronnded to the nearest £1,000, because that is the currency of
the primary sconomic environment in which the Company operates.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements
Interpretations and amendments IFRSs effective for the current pear

The following new staudards, interpretations of existing stendards and ather reporting pronouncements have been issued and
are mandalory for the Group for the first time for the yeer ended 30 June 2019. The application of the amendments has had no
material impact, except for [FRS 9 which is detailed below, on the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However addilional disclosures have been made where required.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Annual Improvements fo 1IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28)

IAS 40 (amendments): Transfers of Investment Property

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

IFRS 1 reparding short term exemptions covering transition provisions of [FRS7, LAS19 and IFRS10

1AS 28 amendment, regarding measuring investment in joint ventures and associate through profit or loss (FVTPL)

¢ & & 8 3 &

IFRS [5 is a new accounting standaid that is effective for the year ended 39 June 2019 and have not had a material impact on
the liming of revenue recognition, the resulis or financial position of the Company and hence no transition note has been
presented. There are no other amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the year
ended 30 June 2019 that kave had a material inipact on the Group.

The Trading Group has adopted IFRS 9 by updating the classification and measurement of its financial instruments, where
applicable, and this is reflected in note 4.
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number F1003305

Amnual report and financial statements
Faor the yeer ended 30 Junc 2019

Notes (contintied)

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements {continued)

Interpretations and amendments IFRSs effective for ihe current year ~ Banking Group specific

IFRS 9. Financial Instruments (effective date period beginning 1 January 2018): The Banking Group (‘Bank’) has adopted
IFRS 9 as issued by the IASD in July 2014 with a date of transition of | July 2018, As permitted by the transitional provisions
of IFRS 9, the Group has opted for modified retrospective approach and has not restated comparative figures. Any adjustments
{o the carrying amounts of financial assets and fiabilities at the date of transition were recognised in the opening retained
eamings and othsr reserves at the beginning of the current year without restating the comparative figures.

Consequently, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to [FRS 7 disclosures as a result of adoption of IFRS 9
hiave also only been applied to the current year. The comparative year noles disclosures repeat those disclosures made in the
prior vear.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilitics and impairment of financial assets. TFRS 9 afso significanily amends other standards
dealing with finaueial instruments such as IFRS 7 *Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

The diselosures relating to impact as a result of adoption of IFRS 9 on the Banking Group are set out in nofe 3. Further details
of the specific IFRS 9 accounting policies applied in the current year (as well as the previous IAS 39 accounting policies
applied in the comparative year) are described in note 4.

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not pet gffective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs and
IFRIC’s that have been issued but are not vyet effective:

IFRSB 1G: Leases (effective | January 2619)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax treaimenis” (effective 1 January 2019)

IFRS 9 (amendment) Prepayment features with negative compensation (effective 1 January 2019)
1AS 28 (amendment) Long term interests in associates, joint venlures (effective 1 Jannary 2019)
IAS 19 (amendment) Plan amendments, settlements or curtailments (effective 1 January 2019)

Except for IFRS 16, the impact of the above has been assessed as insignificant by the Directors.

IFRS (6 *Leases’ ‘(effective for annual period beginning ou or afier 1 Jannary 2019). IFRS 16 roplaces existing leasing
guidance, including TAS 17 *Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating
Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’.

{FRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability represcating its obligation to make fease payments. There
are recognition excmptions for shori-terin leases and loases of low-value items. Lessor acconnting remains similar to the current
standard i,0, lessors continue fo classify leases as finance or operating leases.

The Group has perfornted an extensive review across all of its components which are expected to have & material IFRS 16
impact. The status on the impact assessment for each component of the Group is provided below.

Component Approach to IFRS 16 | Expecied adjustment to | Expected impuct on assets and
opening r'etained Jlakilities
earmnings
Bestivay Wholesale Limited Using modified Reduction of ¢£1.0m Increase of ¢£6.6m in right-to-use
retrospeotive approach by assets and increase of c£6.9m in lease
adjusting the opening liability
Bestway Retail Limited reserves as at 1 July 2019 | Reduction of c£1.0m Increase of c£74.0m in right-to-use
rather than full sssets and Increase of c£74.0m in
retrospective application lease liability
Well Pharmacy would include prior year |Reduction of c£1.0m Increase of ¢£85.0m in right-fo-use
comparatives to be assets and increase of c£85.0m in
restated. Tense liability
United Bank Limited Reduction of c£2 .6m Increase of c£34.0m in right-to-use
assets and increase of c£35.0m in
fease liability
Reduction of ¢£5.6m Increase of ¢£199.6m in right-to-use
Total Group assets and increase of ¢£200.9m in
lease Liabitity
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Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report snd financial stalements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

2. Adoption of new and revised standards and other pronouncements (continued)
Interpretations and amendments IFRSs effective for the current year — Banking Graup specific (continied)

The expected adjustment te refained camings cuuses no hindrance on the Group's ability to pay dividends to sharcholders.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (being Ihe initial lease liability plus any associated direct costs) and
subsequently measured at cost less accunmulated depreciation and impatrment losses, adjusted for any te-measurement of the
lease liabifity.

The lease {irbility is initially measured at the preseat value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interes! and lease payments, us well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others.

As a result, the profile of costs recognised in the consolidated income

statement will materially change in comparison to IAS 17 as follows:

- Depreciation will incrense due 1o the recognition of right-ol-use assets

— Existing rental costs will reduce — tlte only rental costs that remain will relate to low value assots or short-term leases
— Finanhce costs will increase due 1o the unwinding of the discount on the discounted lease liability

Whilst the total cash outllow for leases will not change, the classification of cash flows will be affected as operating leasc
payments under 1AS 17 are presented as operating cash flows, whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be
split into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

In preparing for the transition to IFRS 16, the Group has been developing new controls, policies and governance procedures in
scveral areas that coutribute to the calculation of the overall leaso liability and right-of-use asset. These include the
identification of any embedded leases, accounting for lease modifications, as well as electing ta not apply IFRS 16 to short
term feascs (less {han & yoar) and low value assets in line with the practical expedients offered under IFRS 16.

Key judgements have also been addressed, including the assessment of how reasonably cerlait it is considered to be that a
fease option (extension, lermination or purchase) wilt be exorcised, and the determination of an appropriate discount rate used
to present value the lease liability and to initially mensure the right-of-use asset,

With regards to these, the Group has determined that the lease term will correspond fo the duration of the contraets except in
cases where the Group is reasonably cortain that it will exercise contracfual extension or breuk options. The historicaf disconnt

rates applied have beon based on 1he incremental borrowing rate where the implicit rate in the lease is not readily determinable.

All relevant accounting policies will be updated 10 reflect the changes under IFRS 16 in the consolidated financial statemenls
for the year ending 30 June 2020

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except the following assets and liabilities which use the
following measurement basis:

Ifem Measuremens basis

Financia! instraments Fair valve through the profit or loss (FVTPL) or as fair value through OCI (FVOCI)
[nvestinent property Fair value

Disposal groups Fair value less costs to sell

Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation determined through actuarial valuation
Property (Banking Group) Fair value

Going concerr

The Group linancial statements have been prepared on a going coneem: basis. The consclidated statement of financial position
has net assets of £1.7 billion (2018: £1.9 billion). The Group made a consolidated profit afler tax of £115.5 million (2018: £201.2
million) in 2019, The Group has significant cash and bank balances net of overdrafls, of £1.4 billion (2018: £).3 billion ) of which
£1.3 billion (2018; £1.2 billion) relate to the Banking Group. The Directors have also reviewed the dstailed budgets and cash
flow forecasts for the businesses and also considered the liquidity requirements of the banking operations and believe that the
eroup lhas accoss 1o sufficient financial resources to enable it {o continue its operations and meet its liabilities as they fall due
for at foast 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.
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Bestway Group Limiled

Registered nnmber 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year cnded 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of conselidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returs from its involvement with the entity and can affect those retums through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are carrently exercisable. The acquisition dafe is the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that conirol commences until the date that confrol ceases. Losses applicable te any non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-cantrolling interests even if doing so causes the non-controlling interesis o
have a deficit balance.

Associates

Associales are those entities over which the Graup has significant influence over the financial and operating policies.
Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds between 20 and 50 per cent of the voting power of another
entity.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method (equity acconnted investees) and are initially recognised at cost excepl
for in the individual financial statcments of the investor, where this is beld at cost less any impairment losses. The Group's
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated financial
statements inclide the Group®s share of the tolal comprehensive inconte and equily movements of equity accounted investees,
from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ccases. When the Group's share of
losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted invesiee, the Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent lhat the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payients on behaif of an investee.

Change in subsidiary ownership and loss of control
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not resulf in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

‘Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and liabilities arc derecognised along with any related NCI and other
componsnts of equity. Any resulling gain or loss is recognised in the income statement. Any interest retained in the former
subsidinry is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Business combinations with entitles under common controf

Business comnbinations arising from the acquisition of entities that are under (he control of the shareholders that controls the
Group are aecounted from the date of transfer. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised in the acquriee’s financial statements. The Group elects to present the comparative figures from the previous
consolidate financial statements to present the combining entities as if they have historically always been one consolidated
entity. The difference between the consideration paid and the book valne of the assets and linbilities acquired is refiected as a
merger reserve in the statement of changes in equity.

Transactions efiminated o consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
climinated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equily accounted investees are eliminated against the investment
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are climinated in the same way as unreslised gains, but
only to the exlenl that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill), less labilities of the subsidiary. All amounts
provivusly recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that swbsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
direotly disposed of the related asscls or lisbilities of the subsidiary (i.c. reclassificd to profit or loss or transferred 1o another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of auy investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of an imvestment in an associate or
a joint venture,
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Registered number 11003305

Anal report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2619

Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies fcontiniued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations

Business combinations (other than those with entities under common control) are accounted for by applying acquisition
accounting principles from the date on whicli control is transferred to the Group.

Tire assets and liabilities and contingent fiabitities of a subsidiary are measured at fair vafue at the date of scquisition,

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the separately identifiable net assots acquired is recognised os
gaodwill.

Wherenecessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to align the accounting policies to those nsed
by the Group.

For acquisitions on or after 1 January 201, the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

* the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus

*  the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
» the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less

e the net fair vafue of the identifiable assets acqnired and labilitics acquired

Positive goodwill is recognised in the statement of financial position within intangible assets and is deemed to have an indefinite
life and hence not amortised but tested anpuvally for impairment.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in the income statement. Costs related {o the
acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securilies, arc expensed as incurred, as required by
1IFRS 3.

Any contingent consideralion payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, it is nol remeasured, and seitlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the income statement.

On a trensaction-by-transaction basis, the Group elects to measure non-controlling interests, which have bath present
ownership interests and are entitled to a proportionate share of net assets of the acquiree in the event of liquidation, either at
its fair value or at its proportionate interest in the recognised amount of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the
acquisition date. All other non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency

The presentalion and functional currency of Bestway Group Limited (the Company) is pounds sterling. Whilst the
presentational curroncy of the Group is pounds slerling the functional currency of subsidiaries and associates will be dependent
on the primary economic environment in which they operate.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign exchange
rate rufing at the date of the irsnsaction. Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are retranslated to the funetional currency at the foroign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences
arising on transiation are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transsefion. Non-monctary asscts
and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retransfated to the functionaf currency at foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dales the fair valne was determined.

The assets and ligbilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments acising on censolidation, arc
translated to the Grotp’s prescntational currency at foreign exchangs ratos ruling at the balance shect date. The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the year where this vate approximates to the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences arising from this translation of foreign operations are reported
as &n item of other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve or non-contrelling interest,

The key foreign exchange currency rate used by the Group to translate the foreign operations for the cansalidated financial
statements process are presented below:

Functional currency for banking, lasurance and cement Prescntation Financial Average | Year cnd
business currency | yearended | rateused | rafe used
Pakistani mpee Pounds sterling |30 June 2019 176.59 207.67
Pakistani mpee Pounds sterling [30 June 2018 148.83 160.76

28



Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (confinued)
Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment fosses and is deemed to have an indefinite life. Goodwilt is allocated
to cash-gencrating units and is nol amortised bul is tested snnvally for impairment. In respect of equity accounted investees,
the carrying awmount of goodwill is included in the carrying amouat of the investment in the investee,

Intangible assels

Intangible assefs acquired on the acquisition date are stated at cost less acoumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss, Expenditure on intemally generated goodwill and brands is recogpised in the income statement as an expenss
as incuired.

Amartisation of intangthle assets

Amontisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a steaight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets nnless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill arc
syslematically tested for impairment at each balance sheel date, Other intangible assets are amortised from the date they aro
available for use. The estimated uscful lives are as follows:

Pharmacy licenses 20 years
Software 3- 10 years
Other inmngible, agsets 4 - 10 years

Intangible assets - Internally developed intangibles

Expenditure on the research phase of projects to develop new intangible assets is recognised as an expense as incurred, Costs
that are directly atiributable to a project’s development phase are recognised ns intangible assets, provided they meet the
following criteria:

e the development can be measured relisbly;

s the project is technically feasible and viable;

e the Group intends to, and has sufficient resources to complete the project;
e the Group can use or sell the intangible; and

e the intangible will genemte probable future economic benefits.

Revenite recoghifion

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 "Revenuc” and IAS 1] "Construction Contracts® and related interpretations. IFRS 15 addresses
revenue recognition for contracts with customers as well as treatment of incremental costs incurred in acquiring a contract with
a ¢ustomer.

IFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to nuse in accounting for revenue arising from eontracts with
customers. Specifically, the standard introduces a 3-slep approach fo revenue recognition:

Step 1: [dentify the contraci(s) with a custoimer.

Step 2; Ideutily the performance obligations in the contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaclion price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 3: Recognise revenue when {or as) the enlily satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, the Group tecopnises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is salisfied, i.e. when *contral’ of the
goods or services undeslying the performance obligation is transferved 1o the customer.

IFRS [5 permits either a full retrospective or a modificd retrospective upproach for adoption. The Group and Company have
adopted the standayd using the modified retrospeetive approach, which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption, if
any, is recognised in unappropriated profit in the peried of initial application and comparatives are not restated.

The application of IFRS 5 did not have any material impact on revenue recognition policy of the Group and Company and

therefore, the cumylative impact of the adoption on retained camings is not material and accordingly the opening reserves as
at 1 July 2018 is not adjusted. Comparative figures are presented under IAS 18 which are substantially the same as the above.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continyed)

Revenue recogtition (continited)
Wholesale revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the invoiced amounts
receivable for goods provided 1o customers in the normal course of business, net of discoants, VAT and othor sales-related
taxes. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer refums, rebates and other similer allowances, Revenue is rezognised whea
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred 1o the eustomer, which is at the point of sale (or an despatch for delivered
iterns which is generally the same day as delivery).

Pharmacy revere

Revenue includes cash sales and goods sold on credit, exclusive of VAT and any discounts and rebates. NHS sales, included
in Group revenue are estimated for May to June by reference to the number of items dispensed, the expected cost of drugs,
together with the remuncration eloment pubiished by the National Heafth Service. Revenue is recopnised at the time services
are provided by the pharmacy and medicines are dispensed,

Cement revenie

Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferiing control of a promised goods or service
10 & custotmer, Revenue is moasured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and
government levies.

Interest income

Mark-up, retim and interest on performing advanees and investments is recognised based on the effoctive yield of the asset
over the term of the advances and interest eaming investments. Where debt securities are purchased at a preminm or discount,
such premium / discountis amortised through the income statement over the remaining period of maturity of the debt securities.

In case of Murababa financing, mark-up is the agreed profit on cost plus basis for deferred sale of goads under which one party
purchases goods from a supplier and sells the goods 1o another party at cost price plus an agreed mark-up. Mark-up income is
recognised on & straight-tine basis over the period of the instalments.

Gains and losses on invesiments

Translation gains and losses are recognised in the income statement, except those arising on translation of foreign currency
secutities classified as FVOCE and on translalion of the net investment in foreign branches and subsidiarics which are taken to
reserves until the disposal of the net investment, at which time these are recognised in the income statement.

Rebate inconie on home remittaices

Rebate income on home remiltances relate to income from services provided by the Banking Group during the year and
recognised on an accrual basis when the services are rendered, and no significant uncerlainties remain regarding the recovery
of consideration due.

Insurarnce revenie

Preminm received under a policy is recognised as written from the date of attachment of the policy to which it relates. Premium
income under a policy is recognised over the year of insurance from iiception lo expiry as follows:

(a) For direct business, evenly over the year of the polioy;

{b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the year of underlying insurance policics; and

(¢) For non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordance with the pattem of the reinsurance service,

Wheie the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the year of the policy, premium is recoguised as revenue in accordance with
{he pattern of the mcidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge is recoghised as ptemium at the titse the policies are written.

Conunission income from re insurers is recognised at the time of issvance of the underlying insurance policy by the Banking
Group. This income is defined and accounted for as revenne in accordance with the patiem of recognition of the reinsorance
premium 1o which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Banking Group may be entitled o under ihe terms of
reinsurance is recognised on an accrual basis.
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3. Significant accounting policies fcontinued)
Revenue recognition (continned)

Bividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. Gain / foss on sale / redemption of
investments is taken to income statemnent in the year of sale / redeniption.

Profit on finaucial assets held at amortised cost is recognised on a tinic proportion basis taking into account the effective yield
on the jnvestment.

Interest income on bank deposit accounts is accounted for on an accrual basis.
Investment property

Revenye from investment property represents the gross value of rents receivable. Rental income from operuting leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

Refrospective rebates and discoinfs

The Group’s subsidiaries negotiate rebates and discounts dircctly with suppliers. These rebates and discounts are acconnted
for once the Directors are confident that the group is entitled to the discount. Supplier ellowances and credits are recorded s
a reduction to cost of sales as they are eamed mccording to the underlying agreement. Allowances consist primarily of
promoational allowances, quanfity discounts and payments wnder merchandising agreements. Amounts received under
promotional or other merchandising allowance agreements that require specific performance obligations to be mel are
recognjsed when the performance is satisfied, the amount is fixed and determinable and the collection is reasonably assured.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
Finance income end expense

Finance incotne and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest
rate” is the rate thal exactly discounts the estimates future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial
assel ar financial liability (or, where appropriate, a sharter year) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or f{inancial
liability, When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates fulure cash flows considering all coutractual terms
of the [inancial justrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes fransaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include ineremental costs that are dircctly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or finanecial liability.

Finance income and expense prosented in the consolidated statemeni of comprehensive income include:
- Inferest on financial assets and financial liabifities measured at amortised cost calculated on an coffective interest
basis, and
- Intorest on securities classified as FVOCI calculated on an effective interest basis

Fair value changes on other derivatives held for risk management purposes, md other financial assets and financial linbilities
carricd at FVTPL are presented in net income from other financial instruments at FVTPL in the income statoment and OCIL

Fees, commission and brakerage income

Fees, commission and brokerage income are recognised when the scrvice has been rendered, except when those fees are an
adjustment to the yield on the refated assef, in which case they arc amortised over the expected maturity of the asset using the
effective interest rate method.

Leasex

The Growp as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating

leasss. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lense. Lease incentives received are recopnised in the income statement as an integral part of the lofal lease expensc,
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3. Significant accounting policies {continued)
Leasey {continned)

Leases in which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ovwnership of the leased asset are classified as
finance leases. Where land and buildings are held under leases the accouniing treatment of the land is considercd separately
from that of the buildings. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated at an aimount equal 1o the lower of their
fair value and the present value of the minimun lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation and
less accumulated impairment josses.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant {ease. Initial direst
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lcase are added to the carying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Taxation

Tax on the Group's income for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tex is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it selates Lo ilems recoguised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equily.

Current tax is the expected tax paysble or recsivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable.in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the camrying amounts of assets and liabilities lor financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial
recagnition of goodwill; the inittal recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable income other
than in & business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the oxtent that they wiil probably not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settiement of the carrying amount of sssets and libilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Within the Trading Group there are overseas undistributed camings of £206.3 million (2018: £245.1 million) which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject to withholding tax in Pakistan. An assessable temporary difference exists but, as the
paren entity is able lo control the timing of distributions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the extent that these
profits are not expected to be distributed in the foresecable future.

Within the Banking Group there are overseas undistributed earnings of £347.9 million (2018: £473.9 million) which, if remitted
to the UK as dividends, would be subject fo withholding tax in Pakistan. An assessable temporary difference oxists but, as the
parent entity is able to control the timing of distributions, no deferred tax liability has been recognised to the extent that these
profits are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profits will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. For investment property that is measured at fair value deferred tax is provided at the
rate applicable fo the sale of the property except for that part of the property that is depreciable and the Group®s business nrodel
is to consume substantially aft of the value througl use. In the latter case the tax rate applicable to income is used.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, that can be relinbly measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
1o settle the obligation. Provisions are determinned by discounting the expected fiture cash out flows al a pre-tax rale thar
reflects risks specific to the liability if the impact of discounting is material,

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly altributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown
in oquity as a deduction form the proceeds.

Share prentium

The amount receivable above the nominal value of ordinary shares is recogniscd as share premium and classified as equity.
Reserves categorisation

Transiation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations, as well s the effective portion of any foreign currency differences arising from hedges of a netinvestment
in foreign operations.
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3. Significant accounting policles (continued)
Reserves categorisation (continued)
UBL Funds reserve

The rescrve pertaining to UBL funds relates to the consolidated general reserve position on the mertual finds under managemeit
of UBL Fund Managers Limited. This also includes UBL’s own share pooling.

Statuiory reserve

The statutory reservo is in relation to the requisition of State of Bank of Pakistan’s Banking Companics Ordinance, which
requires the transfer of certain percentage of profits to a statutory capital reserve to meet capital adequacy requirements.

Revaluation reserves

The revaluation reserve relales 1o the revaluation of property, plant and equipmont immediately before its reclassification as
investment property and the revaluation of investment securities FVOCL

Merger difference reserves

On 21 March 2018, the Company became the new holding company for the Group. This was afTected through a share exchange,
with 993 ordinary share of £0.01 in Bestway Group Limited exchanged for 71,070 ordinary shares plus 47,949 nil paid shares
in Bestway (Holdings) Limited, the previous holding company of the Group.

The accounting treatment for the group reorganisation is scoped out of IFRS 3. The intraduction of the new holding company
was accounted for ns a capital reorganisation using the merger accounting principles prescribed. The use of merger accounting
principles has resulted in a merger difference reserve being the movement in equity reserves, excluding retained eamings, at
the time of change.in the ultimate parent company and resulting acquisition of entities that are under the control of the
shareholders that controls the Group.

Inventories

Inventories ave stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valuc. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labonr costs and those overheads that have been mcurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present location and condition,
Cost is calculated using the woeighted averags method across ali Gronp compenies except for Bestway Retail Limited which
uses the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving
items.

Property, plant and equiipnient

Property, plant and cquipment within the Trading Group is stated at historical cost less aconmulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Where parls of an item of property, piant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of properly, plant and equipment.

Properties within the Banking Group are revalued by professionally qualified valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that
their net carrying value does not differ materially fiom their fair value. A surplus arising on revaluation is credited to the
surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account. Any deficit arising an subsequent revaluation of fixed assets is adjusted against
the balance in the above-mentioned surplus account. The surplus on revaluation of fixed assets, to the sxtent of incremental
depreciation, is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Depreciation method, aseful lives and residual value are reviewed at cach balance sheet date. Depreciation is charged fo the
income statement for all property, plant and equipment other than frechold and long leasehold lund at rates calculated to wiite
cach asset down te ifs estimated residual value over its expected useful life as follows:

Frechold and long leasehold properties 2% straight line

Shorl leasehold properties Over the term of the lease

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 5 - 25% straigiit line or reducing bzlance dependent on the nature of the asset.
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10 - 25% reducing balance

Mator vehicles 20 - 25% reducing balance

Assefs in the course of construction represent the assets under development but not yet complete at the balance shest date, All
such assets are held at cost and transferred to the relevant assel class on completion.

Asscts in the course of constructions are not depreciated until they are completed and brought in 1o use, Barrowing costs are
capitalised with property, plant and cquipment where relcvant.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviowed annually.
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3. Significant accounting polictes (continued)
Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to eam rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes), is stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from nse
and no future economic benefits arc expected from Ihe disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between tho net disposal proceeds end the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement in the year in which the property is derecoguised.

Rental income from investment property is accounted for as described in the revenue recognition accounting policy.
Finuncial instruments

IFRS 9 permiis either # full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Gronp has adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, measurement and impairment. This teans that the
cumulative impact, if any, of the adoption is recognised in unappropriated profit as of 1 July 2018.

The new standard requites the Group to assess the classification of financial assets on its statement of financial position in
accordance with the cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the relevant business model that the Comnpany has for
1 specific class of financial assets.

Debt Insirmnents

Debt insteuments are thase instrvmients that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporale bonds and trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements without
recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

i. the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
ii. the cash fiow characteristics of the asset.

Bascd on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three measurement catogories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of prineipal and interest (‘SPPI"), and that are not designated at FYPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount
of these assets is adjusted by nny expected credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 29, Intorest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
fiows and for selling the assets, where the assets’ cagh flows reprosent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, excepl for the recognilion of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
pains and lasses on the instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in the income statement. When the financial asset is
derecognised, (he cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified [rom equily o income statement and
recognised in ‘Gain or Loss realised on sale of debt securities classified us FVOCE . Interest income from these financial assets
is included in ‘Titerest income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCT are measured at faic value
througl profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured st fair value through profit or loss and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in income statement and presanted in the income stateinent within “Unrealised
(loss) / gain on revaluation of investments classified as FVPL' in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assels is included in 'Interest income” using the effective interest rate method,
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instriunents (continited)

Business model: The business model! reflects how the Group manages. the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the coutractual cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the coutractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is appiicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for a group of asscts include pust experiense on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the assct’s performance is ovaluated and reporfed to key management personnel, how risks
are assessed and managed and how managers ase compensated.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and sell,
the Group assesses whether the financial instruments” cash flows represeat solely payments of principal and interest (the *SPPL
test’). In making this assessment, the Bank considers witether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
amangement L.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic fending risks and a
profit margin thas is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the conlractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when ifs business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none ocewrred during the period.

Eguily nstriments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual cbligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s nct assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value throngh profit or loss, except where the Bank's
management has elected, at initial recdgnition, to inevocably designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to designate equity investmenis as FVOCI when those investients arc held for
purposes other than 1o generate investment returns. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses arc recognised in
OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal, Empainmnent losses (and reversal of impairment
losses)are not reporied scparately from other changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a relum on such investments,
continuc to be recogniscd in income statement &s 'Dividend income on intvestments' when the Group’ s right to reccive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Gains and losses on investments’ line in the income
statement.

Financial assets and financial Labilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial lisbilities are recopnised when the entity beconies a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular way purchases and salcs of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Bank
commils to purchase or seil the asset.

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial linbitity at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of' a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directfy
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assef or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction
costs of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through prolit or loss are expensed in the income statement.
Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss atlowance (ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised
in the income staternent when an assot is newly originaled.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs trom the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity
recopgnises the difference as follows:

a}  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.c. a Level |
input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a
gain or foss,

b) Ir all other cases, the difference is deferred, and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument and remaining amount, deferred until the instrument’s
fair valuc can be delermined using market observable inputs, or realised throngh scttleinent.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and financial labilities {continued)
Measurement meihods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amorlised cost is the amount at which the financial assct or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative smortisation using the effective interest method of any difference betyveen
that initial amount and the matuzity amouat and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactiy discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financizf asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses
and inclides transaction costs, preminms or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective
interest rate, such as origination fees. For purchased or originated credit-impaired (‘POCI’) financial assets - assets that are
credit-impaired at initial recognition - the Bank calenlates the credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calcnlated based
ol the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying amount and incorporates the impact of expected eredit
losses in estimated future cash flows,

When (he Bank revises the estimates of {uture cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective finencial assels or financial
liability is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the criginal effective interest rate, Any changes ure recognised
in the income statement,

Interest income on financial assels
Interest income is cateulated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of finsncial assets, except for:

a) Purchased or ariginated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, for which the original eredit-adjusted effective interest
vate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

b) Financiel assets that are not “POCE but have subsequently become credit-impaired {or ‘stage 3"}, for which interest
revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e. net of the expected credit loss
provision).

Impairinent

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the cxpected credit loss (*ECL’) associated with its debt instrument assots
catried ai amortised cost and FVOCI and with the oxposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contraocts.
The Bank recognises a loss ellowance for such losses at cach reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes,

«  The time value of money, and
- Reasonable and supporlable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date sbout past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Note 44 provides mare detail of how the expected credit loss allowance is measured,
Impairment of financial instruments carried ai anortised cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and securities held at amortised cost at both a specific
asset and a collective level. AH individually significant loans and advances and investment seourities held at amortised cost
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred butnot yet identified. Loans and advances and debt securities held at amortised cost that are
not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and debt
secaritics held at amortised cost with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, the
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred and makes an adjustment if current cconomie and credit conditions are
such (hat the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser lhan is suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and
the expected fiming of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomnes to ensure that they remain
appropriate.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
TImpairment (continued)

Impatrment losses on loans and receivables and debt securities classified at amortised cost are calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated futare cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effcetive
interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables
or investment securities held at amortised cost. If an event oceurring after he impairment was recognised causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment foss is reversed through the income siatement.

Impairment debt securiiles classified as FF¥OCT

‘The Group considess all available evidence of impairment, including observable market data or information nbout events
specifically relating to the securities which may result in a shortfall in recovery of future cash flows. These events may include
a significant financial difficulty of the issuer, a breach of contract such as a default, bankruptey or other financial reorganisation,
or the disappearance of an active market for the debt security because of financial difficultics relating to the issuer, information
about the issuer's liquidity, business and financial risk exposures, level of and trends in default for similar financial assets,
national and local economic conditions. While assessing for objective evidence of impairment, the Group coasiders the
performance of the underlying collateral, changes in credit rating, credil enhancements, default events ete.

Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. 1f an event occuriing after the impairment was recognised causes
the amount of intpairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through the income stateient.

Impairment of equity investmenis FVOCI

Equity investments FVOCI are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in their fair value below their
cost. The determination of whal is significant or prolonged requires judgment, In making this judgment, the Group evaluates,
amang other factors, the normal volatility in share price.

Tmpairment of investments in associales

The Group considers that a decline in the recoverable value of the investment in an associate below its cost may be evidence
of impairment. Recoverable value is caleulated as the higher of fair valuc less costs to scll and value in use. An impainnent
loss is recognised when the recoverable value falls below the carrying value and is charged to the income statement. A
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss, up Lo the cost of the investment in the associate, is credited to the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial asscts are revicwed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. [[any such indication cxists, then the assot’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and
intangible asseis that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estinated each
year at the same time.

Impairment of geodwill and other intangible assets

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncey and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of i mpairment
testing, assets that cannot be tested individuaily are grouped together into the smallest group of asscts that generakes cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit™). The goodwill acquired in a business combinalion, for the purpose of impairment tosting, is allocated to cash-
generating units, or (“*CGU™). Subject fo an operating segment ceiling test, for the purposes of goodwill impairment testing,
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested roflects the lowest
level at which goodwiil is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business combinatien is allocated
to groups of CGUs that are expected lo benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an assel or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recoguised in the income statement with administeative expenses. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are allocated {irst to reduce the carrying amonnt of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then o reduce the
carying amounts of the other asscts in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior
years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decressed or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable ammount, An impairment loss is reversed
oniy to the extent that the asset’s earrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, nel
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recopnised.
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3. Significant accounting policies (comtinued)
Financial liahilifies
Classification and subsequent measnrement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilitics are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is applied to derivative financial instruments, Gains or fpsses on
theses financial liabilities are presented in the income statement.

- Financial guarantee contracts and foan comnritments.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires).

Borrowings and depuosits

Borrowings and deposits from banks and deposits from customers are recorded at fair value which is the amount of proceeds
received.

Borrowings from financial institutions also include securities sold under repurchase agreements, Securities sold subject to a
repurchase agreement are continued to be recorded as investments since the risks and rewards assaciated with the security are
not transferred while thie amount of cash advanced is reported as borrowings from fineacial institutions, The differantial
between the sale price and the repurchase price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorde as an expense.

Deposits include remunerative snd non-remunerative deposits. Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remunerative deposits are of saving or term nature with interest component.

Modification and forbearance of loans

The Bank sometimes rensgotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash fiows of loans to customers, When this happeus,
the Bank asscsses whether the new terins arc substantially differcnt to the original terms. The Bank does this by considering,
among others, indicators of financial difficulties including defauits on caverants, or significant concems raised by the Credit
Rislc Department.

'If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecopnises the original financial asset and recognises a 'new’ asset at fair
value nnd recaleulates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation pusposes, including for determining whether a significant increase in
credit risk has ocourred. Flowever, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-
impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances where the rencgotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to
make the originally agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are aisa recognised in the income siatement as a gain
or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantiaily different, the renegotintion or modification dees not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalenlates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recogniscs a modilication gain
or loss in the income slatement. The new gross carrying amoun! is recalculated by discounting the modified cash fows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rats for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assels).

1t is the Bank’s policy to monitor modified and forbome loans to help ensure that futwre payments continue to be likely to
oceur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-by-case basis, [{ these
procedures identify a loss in relation 1o a loan, it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 modified and forbome asset
utitil it is collected or writtent off.

From | July 2018, when the loan has been renegolisted or modified but not derecognised, the Bank also reassesses whether
there has been & significant increase in oredit risk as per Bank's policy. The Bank also considers whether the assets should be
classified as Stage 2 or Stage 3. Once an asset has been classified as forborme and modified, it will remain forbome and modified
until alf of the relevant criteria for reclassification has been met,

The impact of modifications of financial assels on the expected credit loss calculation is discussed in note 44.
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3. Significant accounting policies {confinued)
Derecognition other than on « modification

Financial asscts, or a portion thereof, are derecaognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash Qows from the assels
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantiafly all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (i) the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group has
not vetained contrel.

Collateral (sheres and bonds) fumished by the Bank under standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
barrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predefermined repurchase price, and the criteria [or derccogunition are lherefore not met, This also applies to certain
secutitisation transactions in which the Bank retains a subordinated residual inlerest.

Financitl guarantee contracts and loan conunitinents

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because 4 specificd debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordzuce with the terins of a debt instrument. Such
financial gnarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and
other banking fecilities. Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at the
higher of:

- The aizount of the loss allowance (caloulated as deseribed in note 44; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income recognised in accordance with the principles

Loan commitments provided by the Bauk are measured as the amount of the loss allowance (calculated as described in note
443, The Bank has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net m
cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument. For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that include both a loan and an undravwn conumitment and the
Bank cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment componesit from thosc on the [oan
component, the expecled credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised together with the loss allowancee for the
loan. Contingent linbilities perfaining to off batance sheel obligations such as letter of credits, guarantees and acceptances.

Repurchase agreement lending

In this case, the amount advanced (being the purchase price) is classified as loans and advances while the differential between
the purchase price and the resale price is amortised over the period of the agreement and recorded as income. Securilies held
as collateral are not recognised in the books, unless these are sold to thitd parties, it which case the obligation to return them
is recorded at fair value as a trading liability under borrowings from financial instimtions.

Write-off

Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The amount so written off is a book entry and does
not necessarily prejudice to the Bank’s right of recovery against the customer.

Dertvative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initiafly recognised at fair value on the date on which the derivative contract is entered
and are subsequently re-measured af fair valuc using appropriate valwation techniques. All derivative finencial instruments are
carried as assets when their fair value is positive and liabilities when their fair value is negative. Any change in the fair value
of derivative financial instruments during the period is taken to the income statement.

The Group makos use of devivative instruments to manage exposures o interest rate, foreign currency and credit risks.
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3. Significant accounting policies (conftintued)
Non-derivative financial insfruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and
borrowings, and trade and other creditors.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. A provision for impairment is established when
the carrying value of the receivable s unlikely to be recoversbie. The carrying value of the receivable is reduced and any
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. The Group calculated the expected credil losses using the IFRS &
simplified approach model and concluded that this did not create a nateriat difference to the current method of impairment
loss. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

Trade and ather pavables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective intorest method.

Cash and cash egquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and cali deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
only of the cash flow statement.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid te transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
inarket participants at the measuremont date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access to at that date.

When available, the Group measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A narket is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and
volume to provide pricing information on an ougoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, valuation tecliniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimise the use of unobservable inputs are used.

The best evidence of the fair vaive of a financial mstrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price — i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received.

The Group recognises teansfers (if any) between levels of the fair value hicrarchy as of the end of the reporting year.
Infra-group financial instruncents

Where the Group enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its Group.
In this respect, the Group treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the
Group will be required to muke a payment under the goarantee.
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3. Signifiennt accounting policies (continued)

Restructured loans

A restructured loan is one where the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's difficulty, grants to the
borrower concessions that would nol be considered in normal circumstances. Restructuring would normally involve
modification of the terms of advances / securities which could include alleration of repayment period / repayable amount / the
amount of instalments / rate of inferest (due to reasons other than competition). The restructuring of an asset is ounly granted in
siations where the customer has showed a willingness to repay the borrowing and is expected to be abfe to meet the revised
terms of the restructuring. The restructitved troubled loan is measured by reducing its recorded value to -its  net  realisable
value, taking into account the cost of all concessions at the date of the restructuring. The reduction in the carrying value is
recorded as a charge to the income statement in the period in which the loan is restrictured.

In relation to loans and advances, the modifications of terms and conditions related ta security and collatesal arrangements or
the waiver of certain covenants which do not affect payment arrangements, are not regarded as sufficient indicators of
impairment or restructuring, as such changes do not necessarily indicate credit issues affecting the borrower's payment ability.

The Group derecogniscs a loan when there arc substantial modifications to the terms of the loan on restructuring,
Bills payable

Bills payable, measured at amortised cost, represent payables against the bauker's cheques which are secured cheques by the
Group in favour of payce after collection of funds from the remitter.

Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those eontracts under which the Group as insurer has accepted significant insurance risk from the
insurance contract holder (insured) by agreeing to compensate the insured if a specified uncertain future event (the tnsured
event) adversely affects the insured. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the msurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights
and obligations are extinguished or expire.

The takaf! contracts are based on the principies of Wakala. The takaful contracts which are agreed, usually adopt the concept
of tabaren (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of fosses with the overall objeclive of eliminating the clement
of uncertainty.

Insurance conteacts / takaful are classified info following main categories, depending on the duration of risk and whether the
terms and conditions are fixed,

- Fire and property damage

- Marine, aviation and transport

- Motor

- Miscellaneous

These contracts are normally one-year [usurance contracts excopt marine and some contracts of fire and property and
miscellaneous class. Normatly all inarine insurance contracts and some fire and property contracts have three months peried.
In miscellaneous ciass, some engineering insurance contracts have more than one-year period whereas normally travel
insurance contracts expired within one-month time.

Fire and property insurance contracts mainly compensate the Group’s customers for damage sutfered to their properties or for
the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation
for the loss of eamings caused by the inability to use the insured properties in their business activities.

Marine, aviation and transport insurance ¢cover the loss or damage of ships, carga, terminals, and any transport or property by
which csrgo is transferred, acquired, or held between the points of origin and final dostination.

Motor insurance is to provide protection against losses incurred becausc of traffic accidents and against liability that could be
incurred in an accident,

Miscellancous insurance includes various types of coverage mainly burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in transit, engineering
losses, accident and health, money and other coverage. .

Bankers btanket insurance covers losses because of dishonest or fraudulent acts by officers and employess of the bank,
including on premises coverage of cash, coverage of cash during transit and coverage of forped cheques.

The Group also accepts insuratce risk pertaining to insurauce conlracts of other insurer as reinsurance imward. The insurance
risk involved in these contracts is like the contracts undertaken by the Group as insurer, All reinsurance inward coniracts are
facultative (specific risk) acceptance contracts.
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3. Significant accounting policies fcontinued)
Reinsurance contracts

Thesc are contracts entered into by thie Group with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered on insurance contracts issued.
These reinsurance contracts include both facultative and treaty arrangements contracts and are classificd in same categories of
insurance contracts in these financial statements.

Reinsurance assets represent balances due [rom relnsurance companies and reinsurance recoveries against ontstanding claims.
Due from reinsurance companies arc carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Cost represents the fair value of the
consideration to be received. Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding cfaims are measured at the amouni expecied to be
received. Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assots,

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Due to reinsurance companies are carried at cost
which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid.

Reinsurance assels or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.
Insurance contract liabilities

The Group recognises linbility in respect of all claims incurred up to the balance sheot date whick is measured at the
undiscounted value of expected future payments. These liabilities are known as provision for outstanding claims. The ¢laims
are considered at time of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise cxpressly indicated in the insurance coutract.
The liability for claims includes amount in relation to inpaid reported claim, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and
expected claims settlement cosl.

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reporied claims is mude on the basis of individuat case estimates.
Employee benefits — UK Trading Group
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separale entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the years during which services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in
respect of deftned benefit pension plans and other post-employment bensfits is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have eamed in retum for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is discounted to
determine jts present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price) sre deducted. The Group determines the net
interest an the net defincd benefit liability/nsset for the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
ohligntion at the beginning of the annual year to the net defined benefit liability/{asset).

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations and that aro denominated in the enrrency in which the benefits arc expected
to be paid,

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retumn on plan assets (exclnding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in other
comprehensive income and ali other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit cxpenses in the income
statement,

Defined benefit plans

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on custailment, is recognised immediately in the income statement when the plan amendment
or curtailment occurs,

The caloulation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actnary using the projected nnit credit method.
When the calenlation resufts in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of benefits available
in the form of any future refimds from the plan or reductions in fature conlributions and takes into accouwnt the adverse offect
of any minimum fonding requirements.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when 1he seftiement oceurs, The gain or loss
on a settlement is the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation being settled as determined on the
date of settlement and the setticment price, including any pian assets transforred and any payments made directly by the Group
in conneetion with the settfement.
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3. Significant accounting policics (continued)
Emplopee benefits — Banking Group
UBL Pakistan Head Office operates the following staff retirement schemes for its employees

a) For new employees and for those who opted for the below menrtioned conversion option introduced in 2001, the Bank
operates

- an approved contributory pravident fund (defined contribution scheme}, and
- an approved gratuity scheme (defined benefit scheme).

b) For empioyees who have not opted for the conversion oplion introduced in 2001, the Bank operates

- an approved non-centributory provident fund in liew of the contributory provident fund; and
- an approved funded pension scheme, introduced in 1975 {dcfined benefit scheme).

In 2001, the Bank modified the pension scheme and introduced a conversion option for employees covered under option (b)
above ta move to option (a). This conversion option ceased on 31 December 2003,

The Bank also operates a contributory benevolent fund for all its eligible cmployees (defined benefit scheme).

Annual contributions towards defined beacfit schemes are made based on actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

For the defined contribution scheme, the Bank pays contributions to the fund on a periodic basis. The Bank has no firrther
payment obligalion once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an expense when the obligation
to make payments 1o the fund has been established. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an assei to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Other benefits
Employees® compensaled absences

The Bank nakes provisians for compensated vested and non-vested absences accumulated by its eligible employees hased on
actuarial advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Post-retivement medical benefits (defined benefif scheme)

The Bank provides post-retirement medical benefits to eligible retired employees. Provision is made on the basis of actuarial
advice under the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Employee motivation and retention scheme

The Bank has a long-terin motivalion and retention schieme for its employees. The liability of the Bank in respect of the scheme
for each ycar, if any, is fixed, and is accounted for in the year to which the scheme relates.

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assunmiptions are recognised in the
statemeni of comprehensive income when they ocour with no subsequent recycling through the income statement,

Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to long term compensated absences ave recognised in the income statement immediately,
Holiday provisions

The Group accrues holiday provisions for ifs employees for the unutilised portion of the annual leave at the end of cach
reporting date,

Islamic financings and related assels

ljarah financing represeats arrangements whereby the Bank (being the owner of assets) transfers its usufruet to its customers
for an agrecd period at an agreed consideration. Asscis leased out under Ljarah are stated at cost less aceumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These are depreciated over the term of the lease. Ijarah income is recognised on an
accrual basis.

Diminishing Musharaks is partership agreement between the Bank and its cuslomer for financing vehicle or plant and
machinery. The receivable is recorded to the extent of Bank's share in the purchase of asset. Income is recognised on accrual
basis,
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4. Adoption of IFRS 9

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measnrement of
financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets.

IFRS 9 permils either a [ull retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for adoption. The Group has adopted the
standard using the modified retrospective approach for classification, measurement and impairment. This means that the
cumulative impact, if any, of the adoption is recagnised in unappropriated profit as of I July 2018 and coniparatives are not
restated,

Consequentty, for notes disclosures, the consequential amendments to IFRS 7 disclosures as a result of adoption of [FRS 9
have alzo only been applied to the curzent period. The comparative period notes disclosures repeat those disclosures made in
the prior year. [FRS 9 atso significantly amends other standards dealing with financial instruments such as IFRS 7 “‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’,

Details of these new requirements as well as their inipact on the Gronp’s financial statements are described below.

Trading Group
Classification and measuranent of financial assets and financial Habilities

The tiew standard requires the Trading Group ta assess the classification of financial assets on its statement of firancial positian
in accordance with the cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the relevant business model that the Group has for
a specific class of financial assets,
- IFRS 9no longer has an "Availabie-for-sale” (AFS) classificalion for financial assets. The new standard has different
requirements for debt or equity financial assets.
- Amortised cost, where the effective interest rate method will apply,
- Fair value through other comprehensive income, with subsequont recycling to the profit or loss upon disposal of the
financial asset (FVOCI); or
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Investments in equity instruments, other than those to which consolidation or equity accaunting apply, should be
classified and measured cither at:
- Fair value through other comprehensive income, with no subsequent recyeling to the profit or loss upon disposal of
the financial asset; or
- Fair value through profit or loss.

Previously, avaifable-for-sale investments stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity
(in the revaluation reserve), except for impairment losses. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Previously, held to matrity investments were
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable
amounls,

Classification Original IFRS 9 New

As at 1 July 2018 under TFRS 9 (IAS39)|  impact] (IFRS 5)
£000 £000 £000

Current financial assets
Trade receivables Amorlised cost 159,725 - 159,725
Other reccivables Amortised cost 54,548 - 54,548
Cash and bank balances Amortised cost 169,884 - 169,884
Total financial assets 384,157 - 384,157
Non-curyent financial liabilities
Other interest-bearing loaus and borrowings Amortised cost 275,141 - 275,141
Current financial liabilities
Overdraft Amortised cost 140,649 - 140,649
Trade payables Amortised cost 484,327 - 484,327
Other terest-bearing louns and barrowings Amortised cost 91,658 - 91,58
Total financial liabilities 991,775 - 991,775

This change in aceounting policy has had no impact on the classification of financial assets and finaneial liabilities in the
statement of financial position.
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4, Adoption of I¥FRS 9 (continued)}
Impairment of financial assels

IFRS 9 introduccs the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model, which replaces the inourred loss model of IAS 39 whereby sn
allowance for doubtful debt was required only in circumstances where a foss event has occurred. By confrast, the ECL model
requires the Company to recognise an allowance for doubtfil debt on all financial assets carried at amortised cost (including,
for example, trade debis and other receivables), as well as debt instruments classificd as financial assets carried at fair value

through other comprehensive income, sitce initial recognition, icrespective whether a loss event has ocenrred.

Banking Group

Classification and measurcinent of financial instruments

The measuremeni calegory and the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities in accordance with TAS 39 and IFRS 9 at

1 July 2018 are compared as follovws:

TIAS 39 IFRS 9
Measurernent Carvying Mensurement Carrying
Category Amount Category  Amount
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial Assets )
Cash and cash equivalents Amortised cost 1,228,015 Amortised cost 1,227,674
(Loans and receivables)
Lending to financial insfitutions aud Amortised cost 4,870,575 Amortised cost 4,766,376
advances
(Loans and receivables)
[nvestments in financial assets Amortised cosl 2,124,563 Amoriised cost 2,111,294
(held to maturity)
FVPL (Mandatory) 12,038
Held for trading 221,366 FVPL 221,366
(Designated)
Available for sale 2,933,722 FVPL 115,785
(Designated)
FVPL (Mandatory) 3472
FVOCI - Equity 4,685
FVOC] - Debt 2,807,055
Trade and other receivables* Amortised cost 289,756 Amortised cost 288,311
(Loaus and receivables) (Loans and receivables)
Other financial liabilities** Amortised cost 238,940 Amortised cost 236,694
* This includes non-financial assets amounting to £55.7 million.
** This includes non-financial liabilities amounting to £15.4 mitlion.
The impaot of transition to ITFRS 9 on retained camings as at 1 July 2018 is a5 follows:
2018
£000
Retained earnings
Balance as at 30 June 2018 661,567
Recognition of IFRS 9 ECLs (112,186)
Deferred tax in refation to IFRS 9 ECLs 43,753
Unroealised gain on revaluation of available for sale 18.024
cauily securities reclassified as FVPL under IFRS 9 ’
Deferred tax in relation to unreslised gain on revaluation of available (6.045)
for sale equity securities reclassified as FVPL under [FRS 9 *
(56,454)
Less: share of non-controlling imlerest 25492
630,605
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Revaluation Reserve
Balance as at 30 June 2018

Unrealised gain on revaluation of Available for sale

equity securities reciagsified as FVPL under IFRS 9

Deferred tax in relation to unrealised gain on revalustion of available
for sale equity sccurities reclassified as FVPL under IFRS
Revaluation of unquoted equity investiment sccurities classified as
FVOCI :

Deferred tax on revaluation of unquoted equity investment securities
classified as FYOCI

Less: sliare of nou-controlling interest

Bestway Group Limited
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2018
£000

265,196

(18,024)
6,045
2,999

{1,169)

(10,149
3,869

258,216

The foliowing table reconeciles the prior period's closing impairment allowance measured in accordance with LAS 39 incurred
loss mode! to the new impairment allowance measured in accordance with the IFRS 5 expected loss model at 1 July 2018:

Impairment
provision undes ECLs under
IAS 39 as at 1 Remeasurement IFRS 9at 1
July 2018 (ECL) Redassification Juiy 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Impairment allowance for:
Lending to financial institutions and advances 338,463 104,199 E 442,661
Cash and cash equivalents 446 340 - 787
Investient in financial assets
- Held for maturity investment now classified at
amortised cost under IFR8 9 13,085 1,230 ) 14315
- Available-for-sale mvestiments {debt instruments) _
now classified at FVOC] under IFR8 9 4436 2,726 7.162
- Available-for-sale investments (equity 3232 ) ) 3232
imstruments) now classified at FVOCT under IFRS 9
- Available-for-sale mivestinents now classified at
- 024 -
FVPL under [FRS 9 18,024 (18,024)
Trade and other recsivables 7,296 1,445 - 8,741
Contingent liability in respeet of financial 4461 2,246 } 6,707
guaraniees
389,443 112,186 (18,024) 483,605
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4. Adoption of I¥RS 9 (continued)
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The following table provides summary of financial instrients of the Bank by class of those instrunents and their cost as at

30 June 2018:;

Category

Cash and balances with treasury
banks

Balance with other banks
Lending to financial inslitutions

Investments
Held-for-trading
Available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity
Loans and advances
Other financial assets

Total

Classification under IFRS 9

At Amortised At Fair Value  Af Fair Value At Fair
o ot thraugh OC1  dhrough OC] Value Total
(without recycling) (with recycling) through P&L
£000 £000 £0600 £000 £000
1,022,150 - - - 1,022,150
297,555 297,555
279,442 - - - 279,442
- - - 221,366 221,366
- 2,582,960 196,110 113,845 2,892,915
2,071998 - - 12,038 2,084,036
4,432,682 - - - 4432682
3,633 - - i36 3,769
8,107,460 2,582,960 196,110 347,385 11,233,915

Reconciliation of statement of financial position balances from [AS 39 to IFRS %

The Bank performed a detailed analysis of its business medels for managing financial assots and analysis of their cashflow
characleristics in order to identify appropriate classification. Detailed information regarding the new classification
requirenents of IFRS 9 have been explainred below.

The following table teconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets, from their previous measurement category in
accordance with JAS 39 to their new mensurement cafegories upon transition to IFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

Amortised Cost

IFRS 9
IAS 39 canrying . carrying
Reference | amount as at June Reclassifications Remcasun:- amowunt as
30, 2018 ments st 1 July]
2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
ash and cash equivalents
pening balance as per JAS 39 1,228,015 - - -
Remeasurement ECL allowance - - (341) -
osing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 1,227,674
ending to financial institutions and
dvances
pening balance as per TAS 3¢ 4,870,575 - - -
emeasurement ECL allowance - - (104,199} -
osing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 4,766,376
[nvestment in financial assets -
mortised cost
pening balance as per [AS 3% - - - .
ddition: From financial assets held to
maturity (AS 39) ®) ) 2,112,525 i .
emeasurement ECL allowance - - (1,231) -
Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 2,111,294
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IAS 39 carrying|
amount as at 30
June 2018

£000,

Reference

Reclassifications

IFRS 9
carrying
amount as at
1 July 2018
£000 £000; £000

Remeasure-
ments

investment in financial assets - Held
or maturity

Oponing balance as per IAS 3%

Less: To amortised cost (IFRS 9)
Less: To FVPL (IFRS 9)

|Closing balance as per IFRS 9

2,124,563

(A) -

(2,112,525) - -
(12,038) - i

[Frade and other receivables
Opening balance as per [AS 39
Remensurement ECL allowance
Closing balance as per IFRS 9

289,756

1
—
-
Py
e
“n
~

288 311

‘Fotal financial assets at amortised cost

Fair value through profit or loss

8,512,909

(12,038 (107,216) 8,393,655

Investiment secuvities - Held for
rading )

Opening balance as per IAS 39 and
klosing bakance as per [FRS 9

(B) 221,366

221,366

Investment securities - FVPL
tmnnd atory}

Opening balance as per TAS 39

lAdd: From available for sale (1AS 39) -
dobt instruments

lAdd: From available for sale (IAS 39) -
equity instruments

Add: From held to maturity (IAS 39) -
Hebt instruments

[Closing balance as per IFRS 2

a) .
A -
(A -

3,244 - .
22% - -

12,038 - .

Investment securities - FYPL
(designated)

Opening balance as per [AS 39
iAddition: From avaiiable for sale (IAS
B9} - equity instruments

Closing balanco as per IFRS 9

115,785 - -
115,785

Total financial assets at FVPL

221,366

131,295 - 352,661
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Notes (continred)
4. Adoption of IFRS 9 (cantinued)

IFRS 9
1AS 39 carrying Remcasure- carrying
amount as at 30 amount as

June 2018 Reclassifications ments at 1 July
2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fair value through other
comprehensive income

[nvestment secnrities - FY OCI (debt

ns{ruments)

[Opening bajance as per IAS 39 - - - -
Add: From available for sale (IAS 39) O - 2,809,781 - -
Remeasurement ECL allowance - - (2,726)

Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - -
Tnvestiment securitics - FVOCI (equity

nstrumentis)

Opening balance as per [AS 39 - - - -
|Add: From aveilable for sale (JAS 39) -

Designated © B 3,889 i )
Closing balance as per IFRS ¢ - - 2,999 6,888
Tnvestment securities - Available for

sule

Opening balance as per IAS 39 2,933,722 - - -
E.css: To mandstory FVPL (IFRS 9) -

debt instruments 4 - @.244) B .
.css: To FVPL (IFRS 9) - equity : (115.785) B )
instruments

Less: To mandatory FVPL (IFRS 9) - - {228) -
equity instruments

Less: To FVOCI - equity instruments {©O) - (3,889) - -
Less: To FVOCI - debt instriments 1)) - (2,809,781) - -
Closing balance as per IFRS 9 - - - 795

2,807,053

Total financial assets at FVOCI 2,933,722 (119,257) 273 2,814,738

Total 11,667,997 - (106,943) 11,561,054

The total remeasurement loss of £112.2 million (£68.4 million vet of tax) was recognised in opening reserves at 1 July 2018
out of which £109.9 million was on accouni of finaucial assets and £2.2 million on financial guarantees and other obligations.
In addition, an amount of £12.0 million was reclassified from revaluation reserve fo retained camings at | July 2018 on account
of surplus on revaluation of equity instruments mandatorily classificd as FVPL under [FRS 9.

The following explains how applying the new classification requirements of IFRS 9 led (o changes in classification of certain
financial assets held by the Group as shown in the table above:

(A) Debi instruments previously classified as held to maturity (HTA) and avwilable for sale (AFS), but whick fail the SPPI
fest

The Group holds a portfolic of debt instruments that failed to meet the ‘solely payments of principal and intorest” (SPPI)
requirement for amortised cost classification under IFRS 9. These instruments contain provisions that, in certain cirgumstances,
can allow the issuer to defer interest payments, but which do not acerue additional interest. This clause breaches the criterion
that inrlerest payments should only be consideration for credit risk and the fime value of money on the principal. As a result,
held to maturity and available for sale instruments, which amounted to £12.0 million and £3.2 million respectively, were
classified as FVPL from the date of initial application.

(B) Investinent in debt securifies previously designated at fair value through profif or loss

The Group holds investinent of £221.4 miflion in a portfolio of dobt securilies which had previcusly been designaled at fair
value through profit or loss as (he debt seouritics were managed on a fair value basis. As part of the transition to [FRS 9, these
securities are part of an ‘other’ business medel and so required to be classified as FVPL category under IFRS 9, instead of
designated FVPL category under IAS 39.
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4, Adoption of IFRS 9 {continued)

(C) Designation of equity instraments at FYOCT

The Group has elected 1o irrevocably designate strategic investments of £4.7 million in unquoted securities as permitied under
IFRS 9. These securities were previously classified as available for sale. Tho changes in fair value of such securities will no
longer be reclassified to profit or loss when they are disposed of,

{I» Reclassification from refired categories with no clhange in measnrentent

In addition to the above, the following debt instruments have been reclassified to new categories under IFRS 9, as their previous
categories Under 1AS 39 were *retired’, with no changes to their measurement basis:

(i) Thosc previously classified as available for sale and now classificd as measured at FVOCT; and

(i) Those previously classified as held to maturity and now classified as measured at amortised cost.

5. Revenue
Trading Group 019 2018
£000 £000
Wholesalo (inchiding Bestway Retail): sale of goods 2,347,529 2,077,923
Pharmacy: sale of goods 790,259 783,735
Cement: sale of goods 303,523 355,325
Investment property: rental inconie 6,600 7,392
3,447,911 3,224,373
Rental income is split between the various cash generating units.
6. Interest incame
Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Operating interest income on:
Financial assets classified as FYOC] 6,371 -
Trading securilies classified as FVPL 298 -
Debt securities measured at ainortised cost 357,672 -
Loans and advances to financial instifttions measured at 15,068
: 30,105
amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost 334,268 264,799
Placement with banks at amortised cost 7,981 6,036
Available for sale investments - 5,518
Held for trading securities - 173
Held fo maturity scourities - 484,539
736,695 776,133

Interest income on individually impaired loans is £44.6 million (2018: £33.9 million)
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7. Interest expense
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Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
On deposits 286,776 229,945
On securities sold under repurchase agrecments 54,233 131,396
On shost term borrowings 29,789 18,866
Cn long tenm borrowings 3,525 3,187
On subordinated debt 4,852 -
Cost of foreigu currency swaps against foreign currency 13,184 -
deposits/borrowings
392,359 383,394
8. Net writfen premiums
Banking Group 2018 2018
£000 £000
Gross writfen premium
Gross preminms written 24,152 22.175
Chaitge in provision for uncamed premiums {2,104 (1,371
22,048 20,804
Premizn: ceded to reinsurer
Re-insurance ceded {33,122) (11,421)
Change in prepaid reinsurance preminm ceded 1,454 45
(11,668) (11,376)
Net written premiums 10380 9,428
9. Net benefits and claims
Banking Group
Gross benefits Change in contract
and claims Claims ceded Gross changein  Habilities ceded fo Net benefits
paid to veinsurers contract liabilities reinsurers  and claims
2019 2019 201% 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fire (3,228) 2,787 825 (566) (182)
Marine (872) 686 (275} 273 (188)
Mator (3,60D) 1,192 (129) 308 (2,230)
Miscellaneous 4,349) 3,083 219 65 (1,420)
Total (12,050) 1,748 202 80 (4,020)
Change in contract
Gross benefits Claims ceded  Grosschange in  liabilitics ceded to Net beneofits
and claims paid  to reinsurers contract liabilities reinsurers  and claims
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fire {2,605) 2,411 (1,931) 1,587 (538)
Marine (1,455) 1,273 (483) 512 (153)
Motor (3,311} 1,083 (7913 3N (2,648)
Miscellaneous (4,242) 3,600 1,868 (1,84%) (623)
Total {11,613) 8,367 (1,337 621 (3,962)
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10. Fee, commission and brokerage income

Banking Group

Commission on remjttances

Net rebate income on home remittances*
Commission on ATM / debit cards

Corporate service charges / finance / facility fee
Comimisston on intercity cheque / cash deposit and withdrawals
Commission on cash management

Trade income

Bank assurance conmunission

Conunission on consumer loans

Minimum balance charges

Commission on inward / outward cheque clearance
Commission o utility bills

Reinsurance comtmission income

Conunission on cheque book isstance
Commission from financial institations

Fee for management of funds

Qthers

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual repott and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
8,948 8,393
§,409 7,595
9,477 9,891
6,862 11,464
3,966 3,795
4,294 4,603
10250 12,320
9,411 8,813
5568 5,183
1,626 640
631 281
2,186 2,567
2,205 2,127
2,440 2,812
6,188 6,299
5,395 7,733
6,376 10,535
94,232 106,651

*This includes pay out to correspondents for heime remittances amounting to £26.5 million (2018: £24.2 millicn).

11. Fee, commission and brokerage expense

Banking Group

Commission expense

12. Other operating income

Trading Group

Net gain on disposal of investment properly
Net gain on digposal of preperty, plant and equipment
Other income

Banking Group

Rental income
Other income

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,708 2,287
2,708 2,287
2019 2018
£000 £000
- 802

105 1,325
4,197 1,769
4,302 3,986
2019 2018
£000 £000
2,256 1,648
226 68
2,482 1,716
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13. Gains and losses on investments

Banking Group 201% 2018

£000 £000
Gait on translation of financial assets 25,645 19,048
Gain on sale of securitics ~ realised - 37,390
Loss on equity securities classified as FVPL (27,925) -
Loss realised on sale of debt securities classified as FVOC] 607) -
[.oss on revaluation of held for trading investments classified as FVPL (731) -
Gain on revaluation of investinents classified as hold for trading 7,546 -
Other income 3,632 3,361

1,560 59,799

Gains and losses on investments relates to investment income, gains and losses relating to banking cperations other than net
intorost income, Other investment income is shown in note 12, which relates to non-operating investment revenyes,

14. Operating profit and auditors’ remuneration

Included in operating profit are the following: Trading  Banking Trading Banking
Group Group Total Group Group Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
(restated)  (restated)  (restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £200 £000
Losses on reval_uatlon of investments classificd ) 731 731 R 9 9
as held for trading
Dopreciation of praperty, plant and cquipment 45,686 14,653 60,339 42,498 17,117 59,615
Amortisation of infangible asscts 38,671 3,509 42,180 39,040 3,803 42,845
Impairment of goodwill 3,258 - 3,258 10,055 - 10,055
Operating lease charges 22,322 18,808 41,130 16,640 18,544 35,184
Operating expenses of investment property 629 ~ 629 2,500 - 2,500
Details of the restatement are given in note 50.
Auditors’ renumneration: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Audit of these financial statements 25 135
Amountis receivable by the Group's quditors’ and its associafes in respect of:
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Group ot 619
Andif related assurance services 183
Taxation compliance services 118 158
All other services 290 490
1,593 1,282

PwC LLP were appointed as auditors on 6 March 2019, The prior year anditor’s remuneration relates to KPMG LLP. Amounts
paid to the Group’s auditor and its associates in respeet of services to the Group, other than the audit of the Conipany’s financial
statements, have not been disclosed as the information is required instead to be disclosed on a consolidated basis.

During the period 30 June 2018 PwC LLP was the anditor of the Bestway Retail Limited with audit fee of £160,000 and non-
audit services for the Group of £20,000.
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15, Staff nembers and costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category,

was as follows:

TFrading Banking Trading  Banking
Group Group Total Group Gronp ‘Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Numbher Numbey Number Number  Number Number
Head office and management 1,978 - 1,978 1,433 - 1,433
Wholesale and retailing 10,709 - 10,709 11,580 - 11,580
Magufacturing 1,698 - 1,698 1,820 - [,820
Distribution 978 - 978 1,019 - 1,019
Banking - 13,534 13,809 - 15,489 15,489
15,363 13,534 29,172 15,852 15,489 31,341
Staft costs for the sbove:
Trading Banking Trading  Banking
Group Group Total Group Ciroup Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £000
Wages and salaries 300,754 102,422 403,176 264,567 177,461 442,028
Social security costs 23,122 796 23,918 20,045 1,465 21,110
Other peasion costs 7,937 5,539 13,476 6,510 61,409 67919
331,813 108,757 440,570 291,122 239,935 531,057
16. Finance income
Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank deposits 30 4
Intercst from related parties - 27
Other interest 39 3
69 34
17. Finance expense
Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafis 17,677 15,454
Accrued preference dividends 3,460 3,460
Refinancing costs 88 2,801
Net interest expense on defined benefit obligation 166 233
21,391 21,948
Banking Group
Finance costs 8 -
3 -
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18. Adjusting items

Adjusting items represent certain items of mconse and expense which the Group considuers distinative based on their size, nature
or incidence. These include significant iteins in revenue, incomo from operations, net finance costs, faxation and the Group’s
share of the post-tax results of associates and joint veatures which individually or, if of a sinuikar type, in aggregate, are relevant
to an understanding of the Group's underying financial performance, Although the Group dees not believe that these measures
are a substilute for [FRS measures, the Group does believe such results excluding the impact of adjusting items provide
additional useful iuformation to investors regarding the vnderlying performance of the business on 8 comparable basis,

Trading Group
There were 110 adjusting items identified for the year ended 30 June 2019. Adjusting items relating to the prior year are detailed
below,

Included in profit/ (loss) are the following adjusting items: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Gain on acquisition (restated) - 7,156

Fhe gain on acquisition relates to the resiated negative goodwill recognised on the acquisition of the trading assets of Bargain
Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logislics Limited and Wine Rack Limited. On 7 April 2018 Bestway Retail Limited
purchased the asscts and tiabilities from Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Limited
for a purchase price of £7.5 million, thus generating a negative goodwill balance of £7.2 million. See note 22 for more
information on this acquisition and note 50 for morc information relating to the restatement.

Banking Group

Included in profit / (loss) are the following adjusting items: ‘ 2019 2018
£000 £000

UBL pension provision - (36,470}

The adjusting item of UBL pension provision of £56.5mn represents the estimated amount of the cost of pension payable as per
Pakistan’s Supreme Court’s Order increasing the minimum pension to Rs. 8,000 per month (c.£54) lor UBL retired employees
subject to 5% annual increase from 1 January 2019. This estimale is based on on-going life verification of both pensioners and
retrenched employees. The estimate is also based on the payment of pension without taking effect of commutation. The Bauk
has sought clarification from the Supreme Court on the effect of commutation in caleulation of minimum pension and the
treatment to ex-employees who werc scparated under the Golden Handshake Scheme described as Retrenchment Scheme of
1997.The amount may be adjusted in the futnre years hased on the guidance ceceived from the Supreme Court.
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19. Taxation

i) Analysis of charge in the year:

Bestway Group Limited
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Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Recognised in the income stalesent 2019 2018
£000 £000

Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 7,689 13,905
Adjustments in respect of previous years 2,989 (4,787
Foreign tax: Current tax on income in the ysar 94,168 92,411
Current tax expense 104,846 [0],529

Deferred tax
Origination end reversal of temporary differences 934  (5,128)
Changes in tax rale 6,597 (10,798)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (195) 682
Deferred tax credit (see note 19) 7,336  (19,244)
Total tax expense 112,182 82,285
Income tax recogtised in other comprehensive income 2019 2018
£000 £000
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability ' 7,603 (459
Movements iu fair value of investments (10,024) (49,995)
Other movemenls (1,151) (2,784
(3,572) (53,238)

iy Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The tex assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of tax in the UK of 19%5 (2018: 1995). The differences are explained

below:

2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000
Profit for the year 227,677 285,900
Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19.00 % (2018: 19.00%) 43,258 54321

Effects of:
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 7,282 5,204
Income not taxable for tax purposes (1,003) (6,902)
Rate chiange impact 6,597 (10,798)
Higher rate of tax on overseas sarnings 52,088 43,927
Other differences 1,167 (4,012)
Adjustment in respect of previous years 2,793 545
Tatal tax expense (including tax equily accounted investees) 112,182 82,285

iii) Factors that may affect future fax charges

Reductions in the UK corporation tax [rom 19% to 17% (effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacled on 6 September

2016. This will reduce the Group's future current tax charge.

There are no material unrecagnised deferred tax balances (2018: £nil) as at June 2019,
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20, Assets classified as held for sale

UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited (UBTL) is s wholly owned subsidiary of United Bank Limited (UBL). UBL and UBTL have
entered info an "Assets and Liabilitics Purchase Agreement” with EXIM Bank Tanzania Limited subject to ail applicable
corporate compliances and the regulatory approvals at both places, i.e. Pakistan and Tanzania. The entity of UBTL and its
banking license wiil remain intact for the time being. Accordingly, the investment in UBTL is classified as "held for sale’ at
lower of carrying amouit and fair value less cost of disposal, in the 2019 financial siatements,

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

As at 30
June 2019
£000
Assets
Nenr-current assets
investments in financial assets 5,720
Lending to financial instilutions and advaaces 6,105
11,825
Current assets
Lending to financial institutions and advances 5,188
Cash and cash equivalents 3,882
9,070
Total assets 20,895
Current liabilities
Trade and othier payables 659
Deposits and other accounts 8,639
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 10,718
Tatal liabilities 20,616
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21. Goodwill

Total

£6400
Cost
At | July 2017 232,336
Exchauge differences (23,524)
At 30 June 2018 208,812
Exchange differences : (28,627)
At 30 June 2019 180,185
Acewmulated bmpairment charge
At 1 July 2017 26,042
[mpairment for the year 10,055
Exchange differences (772
At 30 June 2018 35,325
Impairment for (he year 3,258
Exchange differences (109)
At 30 June 2019 38,474
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 141,711
A1 30 June 20]8 173,487

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisilion, to the cash generating units (CGUs), or group
of units that are expected to bencfit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been altocated
as follows:

Goodwill by eash generating units 2019 2018
£000 £000

Pharmacy 37,757 40,397
Wholesale 12,055 12,055
Cement 61,499 81,763
Banking 30,400 39,272
141,711 173,487

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill might be impaired.
The need to recognise any impairment charges is assessed by comparing the carrying value to the recoverable amount. The
recoverasble amount is the higher of the value in use or the fair value less cast to sell of each cash generating unit with any
impairment charge recognised in the administrative cxpenses in the income statement.

As part of the annuel hmpairment exercise, the Directors have also conducted a sensifivity analysis taking into
consideration the impact of reasonably possibic changes in key assumptions in the value in usc or fair valve less cost to
sell caleulations.

Pharmacy Goodwill

The recoversble amount of the pharmacy cash genecrating units have been assessed with reference to their value in use
cafculations using a discounted cash flow model.
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21. Goodwill (continued)

In addition to the budgeted EBITDA figures key assumptions used in thess calculations are shown below;

2019 2018
Period on which management approved forecasts are based 5 years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period 1% 2%
Discount rate 2.3% 8.1%

The growith ratos used in value in use caloulation reflect the average industry growth expected. The discount rates used have
declined year on year due to current market conditions. In caleulating this value, management have used budgeted EBITDA.
Budgeted EBITDA was based on expeciations of future ontcomes considering past experience, adjusted for anticipated revenue
growth,

In calenlating any impairment provisien, the Group makes an estimale of the expected retum for each cash generating unit in
cotnparison to the goodwill and intangibles of that cush gencrating unit. Any impairment is first apptied to gocdwill and then
the related licenses. A goodwill impairment charge of £2.6m (2018: £0.4m) was recognised within administeative oxpenses.
A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the pharmacy business would lead to a further impairment.

Fholesale Goadwill

The total goodwilf attributable to the wholesale business as at June 2019 is £12.1m. Of the fotal goodwill value £5.1m relates
fo acquisition of five depots located in Scotland, with the balance of E7m relating to Batley’s Limited.

Goodwill relating fo depols:
The Directors have calculated the recoverable amount of these cash generating units with reference to their vatue in use,

The key assumptions other than the forecast EBITDA used in the value in use caloulations are:

2019 2018
Period on which management approved forecasts are based S years 5 years
Growth rate applied beyond approved forecast period nil nil
Discount rate 6.0% 6.0%

Goodwill relating to Batley's Limited

The Directors have catculated the recoverable amount of Batley’s Limited with reference to a fair value less cost to sell
approach based on its net assets. Using this approach, the recoverable amount was in excess of the carrying value of this cash
generating unit,

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the Wholesale business would not lead to an impairment.
Cement Goodwill

The goodwill attributable 1o the cement business as a1 30 June 2019 is £61.5 million (2018: £81.8 million.) and relates to the
acquisition of Pakcem Limited and Mustehkam Cement Limited.

The recoverable amount of this goodwil is assessed for impairment annually using a fair value less cost to scll approach. The
calcufation methodalogy takes account of an Enterprise Value to EBITDA nultiple derived from the financial information of
similar sized cement businesses and an estimate of cost ta self of 5% of the Enterprise Value to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes.

The recoverable amount for the Cement business using this method is in excess of the carrying value of the CGU and any
reasounbly possible change in asstmptions for group goodwiil in the cement business would not lead to an impairment.

anking Goodwill
The goodwill amount of £30.4 million (2018: £39.3 milfion) relates to the Group’s controlling stake in United Bank Limited.

For the banking business, the recoverable amount has beer desived using a fair value less cost to sell methodology based on
its listed share price adjusted for a contro! premium and an estimate of the cost to sell of 5% to cover professional, legal costs
and taxes. These assumplions are based on previous comparable transactions.

A reasonably possible change in assumptions for goodwill in the banking business would not lead to an fimpainnent.
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22. Acquisition of subsidiary

Acgyuisitions in the prior period

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

In the prior year, on 7 April 2018, Bestway Retail Limited, a wholly owned (indirect) subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited,
acquired the assets and liabilities from Bargain Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited and Wine Rack Limited
(see the prior years financial statements for further details) resulting in a one-off gain on acquisition recognised in Income
Staterent. At the date of acquisilion, the net assets acquired were estimated to have a provisionzal fair value of £27.9 million
and the Directors had ane year to finalise their assessment, A detotled exercise to reassess Lhe fair values was perforined during
the year which resulted in a number of revisions to (he provisional figures with the Dircctors concluding that the finat fair
values of the net assets acquired was £14.7 million. Details of the adjustments made to finalise the fair value sxercise for this

acquisition are given bejow,

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payabfes

Provisions {more than one year)

Deferred Tax

Total fair values of identifiablc assets

Cash consideration
Gain on aqusition

Provisienal Fair valoe Final fair

fair values Adjustment values
£000 £:000 £0060
10,848 (4,755) 6,093
13618 (8,362) 4,756
15,765 (1,544) 14,221
619 234 853
(5473) (182) (5.653)
{3,870) (170 4,041)
{3,642) 2,076 (1,566)
27,865 (13.204) 14,661
7,505 - 7,505
20,360 (13.204) 7,156

lz accordantve with IFRS 3 the Dirsctors have restated the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018. See note 50

for finther details.

23, Other intangible asscts

Trading Group

Cost
At ] July 2017

Acquisitions through business combinations (reslated)

Additions developed intemally
Additions purchased externatly
Exchange difference

At 30 June 2018 (resiated)
Additions develaped intemally
Additions purchased extemnally
Disposals

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Amortivation and impairment
At ] July 2017

Impairment

Charge for the year

Exchanpe differences

At 30 June 2018

Impatrment

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchange differences

At 30 June 2019
Net book value

Af30 June 2019
At 30 June 2018 (restated)

Qther

infangible
Licentes Software assets Total
£000 £300 £000 £000
563,271 537 ~ 563,308
- - 6,093 6,093
- - 367 367
1,500 2 - 1,502
(82) - (82)
564,771 457 6,460 571,688
559 4,755 5,314
1,045 4 719 1,768
(1,407 - - (1,407)
- (15H - (191)
564,409 829 11,934 577,172
99,014 351 - 99365
1,123 - - 1,123
38,774 99 172 39,040
- (6D - (61
138911 334 172 139467
95 - - 95
37,781 69 821 38,671
(1,051) - - (1,051
- o) - (98)
175,736 355 993 177,084
388,673 474 10941 400,088
425,860 73 6,288 432221

See note 50 for information regarding assets acquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.
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Neotes (continued)

23. Other intangible assets (coutinued)

As per note 50 the numbers abave have been restated for the Bestway Retail Limited acquisition. The key change is on the
‘gain on acquisition” whicl was reported in the 39 June 2018 financial statements as £10.8 million and has now been restated
to £6.1 million, which is a change of £4.8& million in the fair valuc of intangible assets acquired.

Licences

The pharmacy businoss requires licenses from relevant authorities in order o operate.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of licences exceeds their recoverable amount. The carrying
amount of ficences is reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of itmpairment. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. Any impairment losses are recognised in the income statement
within administrative expenses. ‘

Other fntangible assels

Other intangibles comprise of acquired brands (which ere amoriised over the useful economic life between 5 and [0 years) and
software costs and capitalised project costs (both of which arc amortised aver 4 yoars),

Banking Group Software
£000
Cost
At [ July 2017 £7.,944
Additions 6,886
Disposals (3.721)
Exchange difference (4,960)
At 30 June 2013 16,149
Additions 3614
Exchange difference (5,990)
At 30 June 2018 13,773
Amertisation and impairment T
At ] July 2017 10,450
Charge for the year 3,805
Disposals (3,633)
Exchange differonces (3,64%8)
At 30 June 2018 6,974
Charge for the year 3,509
Exchange differences (@,155)
At 30 June 2019 6,328
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 745
A130June 2018 9,175
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24. Property, plant and equipment

Trading Group

Cost or valuation

At t July 2017

Additions

Acquired in business combination {restated)
Disposals

Exchange difference

Transfers

At 30 June 2018
Additions

Disposals

Exchange difference
Transfers

At 30 June 2019

Depreciation

At I July 2017

Charged in year (restated)
Disposals

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2018
Charged in year
Disposals

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Net book value

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018 (restated)

Bestway Group Limited

Regislered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Fixtures, Assets in
Land and Plant andfittings and Motor  course of

buildings machinery equipment vehicles coustruction T'otal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
376,496 380,973 115293 13,707 17,140 903,609
5,949 18,530 17317 7,446 71,857 125,099
2,046 408 2,123 55 - 4632
@ (331 (203) (2,112) - (6,130
(15,872) (51,533) (392) (672) (2,195) (70,664)
2798 49616 21 183 (77,809) .
400,604 394,183 134,159 18,607 8,993 956,546
2,540 7,015 18,971 1,002 17,236 46,764
(675)  (1,642)  (1433) (1,959) - (5,709)
{23,819) {76,685) {646) (983 {1,113} ¢103,246)
7,193 16,154 111 - (23,458) -
385,843 339,025 151,162 16,667 1,658 894,355
66,768 119,524 55,885 8,iid - 250,491
8,205 13,623 16933 3,737 - 42,498

- (1,516) 62y (1,269) - (2,847
(3,018)  (11,158) (195)  (242) - (14,613)
71,955 120473 72,561 10,540 - 275529
8,797 15,049 18,883 2,957 - 45,686
(64) (151) (896) (1,384) - (2499
(4,722)  (19443) (280) (4209 - {(24,865)
75,966 115928 90,268 11,693 - 293,855
309,877 223,097 60,894 4,974 1,658 600,500
328,649 273,710 61,598 8,067 8,993 681,017

Sce note 50 for information regarding assets acquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.

Property, plant and equipment under constriction

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period was £292,000 (2018: £279,000) with a capitalisation rate of 7.03%

{2018: 6.35%4).
Assets pledged as security

Freehold land and buildings with a carrying amouns of £259.5 million (2018 restated: £264.0 miltion) have been pledged to
secore borrowings of the Group. The Group is prohibited from pledging these assets as security for other borrowings and is

restricted with respect to disposing of thom.
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Notes (continued)

24. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Banking Group
Tixtures,
fittings Assets in
Land and Plant and ard  Motor course of
buitdings machinery equipment vehicles construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At t July 2017 244,425 6,005 73,699 3,602 24,643 352,374
Additions 23,031 145 18,129 495 - 41,800
Disposals (55 (L280) (10,748)  (938) {9,055} (22,056)
Revaluations 37,263 - - - - 37263
Exchange differonce (40,652)  (1,012) (14,599)  (653) (2,951) (59,867)
At 30 .June 2018 264,012 3,878 66,481 2,506 12,637 349,514
Additions 9,419 2,627 8,522 445 2,728 23,741
Disposals 334y (2,046) (1,911)  (719) (5,233) (10,239
Revaluations 230) (230)
Exchange difference (59,368) (1,251} (20,132) (768) (1,866) (83,385)
At 30 June 2019 213,499 3,208 52,960 1,468 8,266 279,401
Depreciation
At E July 2017 1,222 1,524 30,936 932 - 40,614
Charged in yeur 4,301 1,322 10,888 606 - 17,117
Disposals (20) (824} (9,949 (641) - (11,434)
Exchange difference (5,621} “72) (8,807) (273) - (15,173)
At 30 June 2018 5,882 1,550 23,068 624 - 31,124
Charged in year 4,507 1,107 8,632 407 - 14,653
Disposals (228) (1,722  (i,563) (462) - (3,975
Exchange difference (3,587) (555) (11,014) 476) - (15,632)
At 30 June 2019 6,574 380 19,123 93 - 26,170
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 206,925 2,828 33,837 1,375 8266 253,231
At 30 June 2018 258,130 2,328 43,413 1,882 12,637 313,390

The majority of properties of the Banking Group have been revalued by independent professional valuess as at 31 December
2018. The revaluation was carried out on the basis of prafessional assessment of preseat market valuos. The accumulated
surplis arising against the revaluation of fixed assels as 2t 30 June 2019 amonnts to £126 3 million (2018: £169.9 million).
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24, Property, plant and equipinent fcontinued)
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Had there been no revaluation, the carrying amount of revatued assets would have been as follows:

Banking Group

Freehold fand

Leasehold land

Buildings on frechold land
Buildings on leasehiold land

Buildings on leasehold 1and

Freehold fand

Leasehold land

Buildings on frechold land
Buildings on leasehold land

Buildings on leasehold land

25. Investment property

Trading Group

Cost or valuation
At 1 July 2017
Additions

Disposals

Exchange difference
Revaluation

At 30 June 2018
Additions

Exchange difference
Revaluation

At 30 June 2019

Net book vaiue

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

The investent property in Pakisfan is held by the cement business.

Accumulated Net hook
Cost  depreciation vilue
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000
3,768 - 3,768
17,070 553 16,517
17,799 987 16,812
23,434 1,541 21,893
62,071 3,081 58990
Accumulated  Net book
Cost  depreciation value
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000
4,638 - 4,638
19,216 8 19,208
8,971 799 8,172
27,182 789 26,393
60,007 1,596 58,411
United

Kingdomm Palistan Total
£000 £000 £000
113,149 1,838 114,987

38 - 38

(4,520) - (4,520)

- (281) {281)

4,342 46 4,388
113,009 1,603 114,612

40 - 40

- (363) (363}

2,130 23 2,153
115,179 1,263 116,442
115,179 1,263 116,442
113,009 1,603 114,612

Any gain or loss arising from 8 change in [air value is recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated income statement.
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25, Investment property (continued)
Investment properties localed in the United Kingdom

For the investment properties located in the United Kingdom. the last full, formal extemal valuation was performed during the
year ended 30 June 2015. An investment property fair value exercise was uadertaken in the years to 30 June 2018 and 2019,
based on desktop valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle, an exiemal, independent valuer, having an appropriate
recogpised professionaf qualifications and recent experience in the location and class of property being valued.

The desktop valuations, which are supported by market evidence, are preparcd by considering the aggregate of the net annual
rents receivable from the properties and where relevant, associated costs. A yield which reflects the specific risks inhorent in
the net cash flows is then applied to the net annual rentals to arrive at the property valuation.

The UK Trading Group has pledged £15.2 mitlion (2018: £113.0 million) of its investment property to secure domestic
banking facilities granted to the Trading Group (see nate 36).

Iuvestment properties located in Pakistan

The investment properly is a portion of the cement business's head office building in Islamabad held for letting. An independent
exercise was carried out to determine the fair value of investment property. To assess the land and building prices, a market
survey was carried out in the vicinity of the investinent property. Fair value of the investment property is based on independent
valuer's judgment ebout average prices prevalent on the aforementioned date and has been prepared on openly
available/provided information after making relevant inquiries from the market, Valuation was carried out by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category
of the investment property being valued.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised as other gains and losses in the consolidated inceme staterent.

Disclosures for the Trading group’s investment properties are given below:
Faiy value as at 30 June 2019 Levell Level2 Level3

£000 £000 £000
Commercial property units:

Located in the United Kingdom - - {15,179
Located in Pakistan - - 1,263

- - 116,442
Fair value as at 30 June 2018 level | Levei2 Level3

£000 £000 £000
Commereial property units:

Located in the United Kingdom - - F13,009
Located in Pakistan - - 1,603
- - 114,612

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hicrarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements: Level 1 - Fair value measuremenis nsing quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities; Level 2 — Fair valuc measurements using inputs other than quoted prices ineluded within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); Level 3 — Fair value
measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). The
significant unobservable inputs used by the UK Trading Group is market vate per nvonth £4-£55 per square fool (leitable).

Property valuations arc inhereittly subjective as they are made based on assumptions made by the valuer. For these reasons we
have classified the vatuations of investmenl property portfolio as level 3 as defined by TFRS (3 and note they could be subjeet

lo material change,

There were no {ransfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
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Notes (continued)

25. Investment property (continued)

Banking Group Total
£000
Cost or valnation
At 30 June 2017 19,634
Additions 3,479
Disposals (2,183)
Revaluation 541
Exchange differences {2,017)
At 30 June 2018 19,454
Additions 477
Disposals (1,572)
Revaluation ] 1,398
Exchange differences (3,838)
At 30 Junc 2019 15,919
Net book value
At 30 June 2019 15,919
AL130 June 2018 19,454

The latest extomal valuations of investment propertics of the Banking Group were perfonned by various independent
professional valuers during year, having appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent experience in the
location and category of the propertics being vatued.

The fuir vajue of the investment property of UBL UK was based on a markel-based desktop valuation conducted in December
2018, The desktop valuation was based on an analysis of rental yields and sales values of similar propeities and locations. It
was concluded that there have not been significant property market value movements since Jast valuations.

The Bank values its investment property at fair value as per the requirements of IFRS 13 - "Fair Value Measurement”.

For the fair value measurement of investment propersties, unobservable inputs are used by the valuers engaged by the Group.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, markef activity for the asset at the measurement date. Thorcfore, the
imvestment propertiecs are classified under level 3 hicrarchy of fair value nteasurement under IFRS 13 and note they could be
subject to material change.

Land, buitdings and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on & periadic basis using professional
valuers. The valuation is based on their assessment of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes in the unobservable
inputs used in the valualions cannot be determined with certainty. Accordingly, a qualitative disclosure of sensitivity has not
been presented in these consolidated financial statements.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised as other gains and losses in the income statement.
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Notes (continned)
26. Related undertakings

The Group consists of a parent Company, Bestway Group Linited, incorporated in the UK, and several subsidiaries held
directly and indirectly by Bestway Group Limited. Details of the intorests in subsidiaries arc set out below:

UK Company Registered Class of shares Ownership %
number office held 2019 2018
Directly held subsidiaries
Bestway (Holdings} Limited (direct) 01392861 B Ordinary 100 100
Indirectly held subsidiaries
Trading Group

Bestway Securities Limited 09105250 B Ordinary 1680 100
Bestway Northern Holdings Limited NA T Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Cement Limited NA N Ordinary 54.5 54.5
Bestway Power Limited NA N Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Spinning Limited NA N Ordinary 100 100
Bestway UK HoldCo Limited 09106288 B Ordinary 160 100
Qakieaf Limited? NA T Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Northern Limited 02675585 B Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Limited! 02596168 B Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Panacea Holdings Limited 09225479 A Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Wholesale Limited 01207120 B Ordinary 100 100
Palmbest Limited 42548785 B Ordinary 100 100
Batleys Properties Limited 0170410 B Orvdinary 180 100
MAP Trading Limited 01826942 B Ordinary 100 100
Eureimpex (UK.} Limited! 01584125 B Ordinary 100 100
Batleys Limited! 0675326 B Ordinary 100 100
Beslway Retail Limited 04103203 B Oxdinary 100 100
Ardiles Bideo Limited® 10449694 U Ordinary 100 100
KMD Enterprises Limited! 04314857 u Ordinary 100 100
Xceel Retail Limited! 09121924 U Ordinary 100 100
Bestway Pharmacy NDC Limired? 010350265 A Ordinary 100 100
Donald Wardlo and Son*’ 02914910 A Ovdinavy 100 100
Opus Pharmaceuticals Limited®? 05888155 A Ordinary 160 100
Bestway Panacea Healthcare Limited? 09225514 A Ordinary 100 1006
Bestway National Chemists Limited” 09228457 A Ovdinary 100 100
Portslade Medical Supplies Limited? 01663067 A Ordinary 100 100
FA Parkinson (Chemists) Limited*? . SC038900 I Ordinary 160 100
Parkinson (Paisley) Limited*” 5C204178 1 Ordinary 160 100
Bestway Belfast Chemists Limited*? NI626625 J Ordinary 100 100
Ebbw Vale Consortium Limited!4? 01338409 A Ordinary 100 100
Care4U Pharmacy Limited!” 03983332 A Ordinary 100 100
Baillieston Health Centre Pharmacy Limited® SC080281 v Ordinary 0 36
Ideal Heglthcare Limited*” 03443725 A Ordistary 180 100
Pills Limited" SC271830 I Ordinary 100 100
RLJ Consultancy Limited! 03283312 A Oudinary 100 100
CCS8 (West Stroet) Limited!? 06149560 A Ordinary 0 100
G Lightfool & Son Limited! 0626296 A Ordinary 100 100
Crown luperial Associates Limited!? 03262921 A Ordinary 0 160
Crewe Complete Solution Limited!? 05765407 (81 Ordinavy 0 100
Keighley Health Centre Limited™ 01263903 G Ordinavy 100 33
Themas Hetherington Limired'? SC025304 1 Ordinary 0 100
P.H.C Pharmacy Limited® SC115847 D Ordinary 67 67
Cannan St. (HCC) Limited" 01659041 C Ordinary 0 59
P Williams Chemists (Chester) Limited!? 03210568 A Ordinary 6 100
Three Swans Pharmacy Limited? 06975508 A Ordinary 100 50
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 ¥ Ordinary 25 25
Victoria Pharmacy Limited 01933847 F A 43 43
Penrith Health Centre (PD) Consortivim Limited® 01775075 i Ordinavy 160 50
Penrith Health Centre (PD) Consortivm Limited® 01775075 E A 0 77
Batleys Glasgow Limited! S$C1253810 B Ordinary 100 100
Benson (Grocers) Limited! SC256747 B Ordinary 1o 100
Bellevue Cash and Carry Limited' 8C046528 B Ordinary 100 100
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Notes (continued)
26. Related undertakings (continued)

UK Company Registered Class of shaves Ownership %

nuinber office held

2019 2019
Indirectly held subsidiaries
Banking Group
United Bank Limited® NA L Ordinary 55.8 55.8
UBL Insurers Limited NA L ¢] Ordinary 79 79
United Bank AG Zurich® NA R Orvdinary 55.8 55.8
United Naticoal Bank Limited® 4146820 M Ordinary 30.7 30.7
UBL Bank {Tanzania) Limited? NA Q Ordinary 55.8 558
United Executives & Trustees Compsny Limited® NA F Ordinary 55.8 558
UBL Fund Managers Limited® NA 8 Ordinary 55.1 55.1
Al Ameen Financial Services (Pvt.) Limited® NA S Ordinary 55.1 55.1

' These entities are donmant,
2Active; non-trading
Dissolved i the year

*These subsidiary undertakings arc exempl from the Companics Acl 2006 requirements relating to the audit of their individua) accounts by virlue
of Scotion 479A of the Act as this Company has guarantecd the subsidiary company under Section 479C of the Act.

*Dispased of during the year
® Acquired 100% of the sharsholding after Lhe year end.
"These entities require finaucial support from Bestway Group Limiled.

¥ These entities have 31 December year ends, in line with indusiry standasds,

®This entity has effective ovwnership of 30.67% but is still considered a subsidiary, The immediate porent company, United Bank Limited, has a
55%holding in this entity, and United Bank Limited is a direot subsidiary of Bestway Holdings Limited as noted above, As 5 result, the Group oan
exoroisc significant control over this cntity and is thercfore considered a subsidiary. Al other entitics ars oonsidered subsidiarics due to effective
ownership of the ordinasy shares by this Company being greater than 50%,

The total liabilities of subsidiary undertakings exempt from the Companies Act 2006 audit requirements under Section 479C of
the Act, totals £60.2 million (2018: £70.3 million).

A-  Merchants Warchouse, Castle Street, Manchester, UX, M3 41,7

B- 2 Abbey Road, Park Royal, London, UK, NW1(} 7BW

C- 64 Bumedge Lane, Grasseroft, Oldham, OL4 4EB

D-  Citypoint 2 25 Tyndmum Street, Glasgow, G4 OTY

E- 4 Mason Court Giltan Way, Pearith 40 Business Park, Penrith, Cumbris, CALl 9GR
F-  The Henlth Centre, Violoria Road, Hartlcpool, TS26 §DB

G- 29 Devonshire Sireet, Keighley, West Yorkshire, BD21 2BH

H-  Unit 6, Ashbrook Offioe Park, Longstone Road, Heald Green, Munchester, M22 5LB
T-  18-20 Main Street, Beith, Ayrshire, Scotland, KA15 2AD

J- 70 Bsllygomartin Road, Belfasi, BT13 3NE

K- 20 Muirside Road, Baillieston, Glasgow, G69 TAD

L-  13th Floor, UBL Building, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad, Pakistan

M- 2 Brook St, London W1S 1BQ

N-  Bestway Building, 19-A, College Road, I'-7 Matkaz, Islamabad, Pakistan

0O-  126-C, Jami Comnmercial, Strect No. 14, Phase VII, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan

P-  Siate Life BUILDING No. 1, LL Chundrigar Rond, Karachi, Pakistan

Q- 26 MKWEPU / Kalula Street, P.O. BOX 5887, Dares Salnam, Tanzani, Tanzanin,
R-  United Bank AG (Zurich), Feldeggstrasse 55, P.O Box. No. 1176, 8034, Zurich, Switzerland
8- 4th Floor, STSM Building, Becaumant Road, Civil Lines, Karachi, Pakistau

T-  Newport House, 15 The Grange, St Petexs Porl, GY1 2QL, Guerhsey

- Weston Read, Crewe, Cheshire, England, CWI 6BP

V. 204 Polmadie Road, Hampden Park Industrinl Estate, Glasgow, Gd2 OPH
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Notes (continued)

27. Investments in associates and equity accounted investees

The nature of the activities of the Group's associates is in banking, ecnergy and phermacy services. These are seen as
complementing the Grotep's operations and contributing to achieving the Group's overall strategy, The Group has the lollowing
indirecl investmont iy associates;

Registered Class of Effective
office  shares Ownership % Measurement Method  Carrying amount

held 2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000

Banking Group
XKhushhali Bank Limited!? W Ordinary 29.7 29.7 Equity method 13,529 13,889
UBL Funds? X Uits NA NA Equity method 542 9,385
Sﬁ;‘:;;mmd Exchange Company Y Ordinary - 250 Equity method - 419
DHA Cogen Limited® Z Ordisary 210 210 Equity method - -
14,371 23,693

'K hoshhali Bank Limited is a microfinance bank which is based in Islamabad, Pakistan.
*This entity has a 31 December year cad, in line with industry standards.

3 This entity has been written down in previous financial years, therefore has a carrying value of nil as at 30 June 2019 {2018:
nil).

4 The investmeni in UBL Funds is across various finds originating from the Banking Group none of which the Group has
control over,

All of the abave associates are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial staicments as set out in
the Group's accounting policies in note 3.

‘W - 55-C, 5th Floor, U-Fone Tower, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad

X - dth Floor, STSM Building, Beaumont Road, Civil Lines, Karaohi, Pakistan

Y - Said Rajab Building 39, 3727, Ruwi High Street, Mezzaninc Floor, Ruwi Arca, 889, Musoal, Oman
Z - D-35, Blook-5 Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Surmnarised financial information for asseciates

The Banking Group’s investment in associates as at 30 June 2019 is analysed, in aggregate, in the below table;

20819 2018

£006 £000

Carrying amount of interests in associates 14,371 23,693
Share of:

Profit from continuing operations 2,899 2,600

Total comprehensive income 2,899 2,600

Below is the analysis of financial perfarmance and financial position of Group's material associate, Khushhali Bank Limiled;

IKhwishhali Bank

Limited

2019 2018

£000 £000
Revenuc 59,399 79,946
Profit before tax 25,106 18,074
Cther comprehensive income 737 (165)
Current assets 308,899 342,110
Net assets 43,133 43,544
Carrying amount of interests in associates 13,529 13,889
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Notes (continued)

28. Inventories

Trading Group 2018
2019 (restated)
£000 £000

Consnmables 26,539 47,530

Raw materials 2,428 3,929

Work-in-progress 7,890 19,222

Finished goods — cement 2,632 3958

Finished goods — UK trading 245419 254,147

284,908 328,786

Details of the restatement are given in note 50,

The cost of inventories recognised as an expensc during the year in respect of continning operalions was £2,855.2 million
{2018: £2,942 9 miilion) before consideration of supplier rebates.

The cost of inventories recognised as an cxpense includes £1.3 million (2018: £2.7 million) in respect of write-downs of
inventory fo net realisable value.

Inventories with a carrying amount of £245 4 million (2018: £226.0 million) have been pledged as security for certain of the
Trading Group's borrowings,
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29, Investments in financial asscts

Banking Group

Financial investiments at fair value through OCI

Debt instiuments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Sukuk
Govemnment of Pakistan Eurobonds
Term Finance Cerlificates

Foreign bonds

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Investment in REFT

Muiual Fund

Financial investments at fair value through Pyrofit
and Loss

Debt instruments

Market Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Sukuks

Preference shares

Term Finance Certificates

LEquity instraments

Ordinary shares of listed companies- Initially
Designated at Fair value through profit and foss
Investment m REIT

Mutus} Funds

Financial investments at amortised cost
Debt instrumnents

Market Treasury Bilis

Pakistan Investment Bonds
Govemnment of Pakistan Eurobonds
Govemnment of Pakistan Sukuk
Qther Federal Govemment Securities
Term Finance Certificates

Sukuk Bonds

Participation Term Certificates
Debentures

Foreign Bonds

Recovery Note

Deposit receipts

Letter of placement

Bai Muajjal

Less: impairment on investinents at amortised cost

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003303
Annual report and finaacial statements
Far the year ended 30 June 2019

Non- Nan-

Current curvent Total  Current  current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

§29,735 - 829,735 ~ - -

197,041 525,798 722,83% . - -

2,480 45308 47,788 . } .
1,444 103,138 104,582 . . .

3,229 . 3229 . - -
89,405 339,356 428,761 . . .
6,305 176 6,481 . - -
- 33 33 - - -

1,129,639 1,013,807 2,143,448 - - -

645,621 - 645621 - - .
715 - 715 . - -

- 4,158 4,158 . - -

177 - 177 ; . .

1,709 10,836 12,545 - - .

69,085 - 69,085 . - -
2,042 - 2,042 . ; )
1,088 - 1,088 y . -

720,437 14,994 735431 - - -

15,534 - 15,534 - - .
464,782 689243 1,154,025 - - -
817  S0635 51,452 - - .

- 3,989 3,989 - - .

3,796 15,119 18,915 - - -
10,786 068,867 79,653 - - -

2 - 2 - - .

11 - 11 . - -
8,961  B6272 95233 . - -
2,375 - 2,375 - - -
1,204 - 1,204 - - -
530 . 530 - . .
119,764 - 119,764 - . .

628,562 914,125 1,542,687 - - -
(12,910 - (12910 ; y ;

615,652 914,125 1,529,777 - - -

2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 . - .

71



Notes (continued)

29, Investments in financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investments cairied at fair value
Market Treasury Bills

Palistan Investment Bonds
Govemment of Pakistan Sulaik
Covernment of Pakistan Eurobonds
Ordinary shares of listed companies
Preference shares

Ordinary shares of unlisted companies
Terin Finance Certificates

Usits of miutual funds:

Investment in REIT

Foreign bonds

Other bonds

Trading investments carried at falr value
Market Treasury Bills

Pakislan Investment Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companies

Term Finance Certificates

Held-to-maturity investments cavrled at amortised
cost

Market Treasnry Bills

Pakistan [nvestinent Bonds
Govemiment of Pakistan Furcbonds
Term Finance Certificates
Sukuk Bonds

Participation Term Certificates
Debentures

Foreign Bonds

Recovery Note

CDC SAARC Fund
Commercial paper

Impairment provision on investments

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number | 1003305
Annual report and Financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Nen- Non-

Current current Total  Current current Toial
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- - - 1,094,726 - 1,094,726
- - -« 298,206 791,914 1,090,120
- - - 63,380 53,304 116,684
- - - 25,132 87618 112,750
- - - 130,782 227 131,009
- - - 2,656 - 2,656
- - - 4,685 - 4,685
- - - 2,207 3,244 5,451
- - - 3,345 - 3,345
- - - 92,299 311,039 403,338
- - - 1,717,418 1,247,346 2,964,764
- - - 221,351 - 221351
. - - 15 - 15
- - - 221,366 - 221366
- - - 35,629 - 35,629
- - - 436,128 1,347,634 1,783,762
- - - 777 40,924 41,701
- - - 1,051 38,477  39,52%
- B - 6,175 77,190 83,365
- - - 3 - 3
- - - 14 - i4
- - - 9,150 140,752 149,902
- - - 303 2,027 2,330
- - - i - |
- - - 1,413 - 1413
- - - 490,644 1,647,004 2,137,048
- - - {38,776) - (38,776)
2,465,728 1,942,928 4,408,656 2,390,652 2,894,350 5,285,002

The table below shows the fair value of the Bank's debt instruments measuvred at FVOC! by credit risk, based on the Banking
Group’s infemmal oredit rating systemn and year-end stage classification.

Internal rating grade

Performing
Investment grade
Non-investment geade
Non-performing
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Stage 1 Stage2  Stage3 Fotal
£000 £000 £000 £000
1,978,245 85,570 - 2,064,815
- 61,000 - 61,000

- - 5,940 5,940
1978245 147,570 5940 2,131,755

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation to debt instruments classified as fair

value through OCI.
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29, Investments in financial assets {continued)

An analysis of the comresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £600 £000 £000
ECL as at T July 2018 (see note d4) 2,175 4,382 605 1,162
New assets originated or purchased 83 470 1,757 2,310
Assets derecognised or matured {excluding write-ofTs) (302) (1491 - (1,793)
Fransfer to Stage 2 (200) 200 “ -
Transfer lo Stage 3 . (252) 252 -
lmgact on year ond ECL of exposures transferrod behween stages (200) (52 252 -
during the vear
Changes to contractual cashflows due to partial repayments and
chantges to estimates and assumptions used to caleulate ECL ) 5,675 1513 7,188
Foreign exchange adjustments 219 A (418) (243)
As nt 30 June 2019 C 1,975 8,940 3,709 14,624

The movements of ECL were primarily diiven by new purchases and sales.

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement on sale of debt instrument classificd under fair value through OCI are
disclosed in siote 13, )

Gains / losses on remeasurement of debt instrument classified under fair value through OCI are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income,

Investments given as collateral by the Banling Group

As 2t 30 Jupe 2019 Total
£000

Market Tressury Bills 301,348
Pakistan Investment Bonds 14,089
Govemmeng of Pakistan Eurobonds 9,995
Govenunent of Pakislan Sukkuk 5,874
331,306

—_—
Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value is provided in note 44, and information about
the loss allowance recognised on debt investments at FVOCI is provided above.

Lquity instruments measured at fair vahue through OCI

Equity securities whicli are not hetd for trading, and whiceh the group has irrevocably elected at initial recopnition to recognise
in this category. These are strategic investments and the Group considers this classification to be more refevant.

Equity investments at FVOCI comprise the following:

at3
Ordinary shares of uniisted cotnpanies Juiz ;f)lg

£000
First Women Bank 102
N.ILF.T 7
Passca 26
Swift {Belgium) 14
Techlogix International Limited 180
Cinepax Limited 289
Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Co Limited 2,408
‘The Benefit Company B.S.C 16

3,042
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Notes (continued)

29. Investments in financial assets (centinued)

Debt instruments measured at Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL)

Debt investments recognise in this category are those that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCL.

Gains / losses recognised in income statement on debt instruments classified under fair value through profit and loss are
disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value of debt instruments at fair value through profit
and loss is provided in note 44.

Investments given as collateral by the Bank

As at 30 June 2019 Tatal
£000
Market treasury bills 234,424

Equity instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL)
The group classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

- equity investments that are held for trading and
- oquity invesiments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI,

Gains / losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments classified under fair value through profit and loss are
disclosed in note 13,

Information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value of equity instruments at fair vaiue through profit
and loss is provided in note 44,

Debt instruments measured at amortised cost
The table below shows the fair value of United Bank Limited's (which forms the significant portion of the Banking Group}

debt instruments measured at amortised cost by credit risk, based on UBL's internal credit rating system and year-end stage
classification.

Internal rating grade Stagel Stage2 Stage3d Total
£0600 £000 £000 £000

Performing

Investment grade 1,475,255 41,108 - 1,516,363

Non-investment grade - 21422 - 21,422

Past due but not impaired - - -

Non-performing )

Substendard - - - -
Doubtful - . - -
Loss ‘ - - 4,902 4,902
Total ‘ 1,475,258 62,530 4,902 1,542,687

The table below shows the analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount in relation lo debt instruments classified as fair
value through OCI.
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29, Investments in financial assets (continwed)

An analysis of the corresponding ECLs is, as follows:

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 Total
£600 £000 £000 £000
ECL as at 1 July 2018 1,026 2,022 11,208 14,316
New assets originated or purchased 114 2,006 - 2,180
Assots derecognised or matured (excluding write-offs) 210y (1,209) {(2,898) «,317)
Transfer to Stage 1 94 94) - -
Impact an year end ECL of exposures transferred betwoen stages 94 (94) - -
during the year
Changes lo contraciuai cash flows duc o partial repayments and
changes to estimates and assumptions used to ealculate ECL. 4 1,802 42) 1764
Foreign exchange adjustments 17 89  (L140) (1,034)
As at 30 June 2019 - L,045 4,676 7,188 12,909

The group classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the [oflowing criteria ure met:

- the asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is {o collect the contracinal cash flows, and
- the contractual tenms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inlerest,

Fair value of debt instruments classificd at amortised cost is disclosed in note 13.

Information about the methods and assumptions used in detormining fair value is provided in note 44 and information about
the loss allowance recognised on debt investinents at amortised cost is provided above.

30. Trade and other receivables

1819 2018

Trading Group £000 £000
Trade reccivables 168,627 163,216
Expected credit josses (5,634) (3.491)
162,993 159,725

Amounts due from related parties 742 1,584
Prepayments and accrued income 48,981 42,402
Other reccivables 36,438 54,548
249,154 258,259

Trade receivables
Wholesale and pharmacy businesses
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and reeeivables and arc therefore measured at amortised cost.

The average credit period taken on sales of goods for our wholesale business is 30 days and 63 days for the OPD (Out Patients
Department) of our Pharmacy business. No interest is charged on the receivables balance, except for pharmacy’s OPD
customers for late payment. OPD customers are customers served in Well Pharmacy branches held within hospitals. The
wholesale and pharmacy businesses will assess debt using the simplified expested credit loss methodelogy in respect of trade
and other receivables will be recorded and is assessed subsequently at each reporting period end and if there is a material
change in the credit risk lifetime ECL’s will be recorded, there was no malerial change in the credit risk of trade and other
receivables of the group at 30 Jano 2019. The debt ageing 90 days, or more arc assessed by the wholesale and pharmacy
businesses and a provision is provided ageinst the debi which is unlikely to be recovered in the next 12 months. To measure
the expeeted credit losses trade receivables are grouped based on shared eredit risk characteristics and days past due.
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30. Trade and other receivables (continued)
Cﬂi’}i’(ﬂlf brm‘ness

Tradc receivables disclosed above are classified as toans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost, All
balances are elassified as current,

The average credit period token on sales of goods for our cement business is 10 days. The business' exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, managemen also considers the credit risk of
its customer base. The business has established s credit policy under which each new customer is assessed individually for
creditworthiness before the business's standasd payment and delivery terms and conditious are offercd. Sales limits are
established for cach customer and are reviewed on monthly basis. The business maintains provision for doubtful debts that
represents its estimate of probable losses in respect of trade debts.

Trading Group
Before seiting up @ new customer account on credit, the Trading Group assesses the potential custormer’s eredil quatity.

The aging of trade receivables at the balance sheet date was:

Gross Impairinent Gross Impairment
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not past due 152,557 - 151,569 -
0-30 days past due 1,807 167 1,907 -
31-60 days past due 3,761 60 4,139 235
Morc than 61 days past duc 16,502 5,407 5,601 3,256
168,627 5,634 163,216 3491

Movement in expected credit losses:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Balance at the beginning of the period 3,491 2,990
Impairment losses recognised 1,572 710
Provision for uncollectable debts 749 -
Impairment losses reversed (1783 (209)
Balance &t the end of the year 5,634 3,491

In determining the recoversbility of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credil quality of the irade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited duc to
the customer base being large and unrelated.

The Directors consider that ihe carrying amoiint of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair value.

All trade and other receivables for the Trading Group are current and expected to be recovered within 12 months. Other
receivables are held at amortised cost as (he objective is to collect the contractual cash flow which are solely the principal
balance and related interest,

. 2019 2018

Banking Group £000 £000
Other receivables recognised as financial assets 202,816 241,373
Other reccivables 22,787 34831
Employee beniefits - 865
Insurance receivable 6,637 7,342
Prepayments and accrved income 24,357 22,359
Oflier nssets - net of provisiens 256,597 307,270
Provision keld against other assots {7,840} {7,297
248,757 .299973

Provision held aganist other assets include £0.4 million beeause of ECL allowance on acooptances as at 30 June 2019,
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31. Lending to financial institutions and advances

Beslway Group Limited
Registered number 11003365

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Banking Group Current Non-current Total Cumrent  Non-current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £600 £000 £000 £600

Lending to financial institutions

Call money lending 17,382 - 17,382 110,400 - 110,406

Ropurchase agreement lending 61,626 - 61,626 33,319 - 33319

!Bm.Mlluual receivable from financial 19,390 _ 19.3% ) ) )

mstituitons

Other lending to financial instittions - 10,534 10,534 76,123 38,379 134,502

Provision against lending to financial

institutions @5) ) (25) (5.682) ) (3.:682)

98,373 10,534 108,907 214,166 58,379 272,545

Advances

Loans, cash credits, nmning finances, etc. 1,843,805 1,621,594 3,465,399 2,336,910 2,055,633 4,392,543

Bills discounted and purchased 230,870 83,575 314,445 429,370 108,899 538,269

Provision against advances (408,935) - (408,935) (332,781) - (332,781)

1,665,740 1,705,169 3,370,509 2433499 2,164,532 4,598,031
1,764,113 1,715,703 3,479,816 2,647,665 2,232911 4,870,576

Details of impairment losses on lending to financial institutions and advances subject lo impairment assessment

Outstanding exposure as at 30 June 2019

The table below shows the carrying value of the Bank’s lending to financial institetions and advances measured at amortised
cost by credit risk, based on the Bank’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification.

Internal rating grade (Corporate)

Performing

Corporate

High grade

Medium grade

Low grade

Pust due but not impaired

Retail
Nol yet due
Past due but not impaired

Overseas Branches

Non-performing (Corporate and Retail)
OAEM

Snbstandard

Doubtfiil

Loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
885,396 52,723 - 938,119
962,965 242 630 - 1,205,595
182,423 301,317 - 483,740
512,823 114,896 - 627,719
185,121 9,147 - 194,268
19,204 21,029 - 40,233

R - 35,350 35,850

- - 23,614 23,614

- - 339,639 339,639
2,747,932 741,742 392,103 3,888,777
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31. Lending to financial institutions and advances (continued)

An analysis of changes jn the gross carnrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to consamer londing
are, as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £006
Gross carrying amount as at 1 July 2618 3,970,802 843,261 394,976 5,209,039
New asscts purchased or originated 1,300,644 - - 1,300,644
Payments and assets derecognised (excluding write-offs) (1,270,767 {307,268) (43,3435) {1,621,380)
Transfers to Stage | 7L615 (71,209 {406) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (462,383) 462,429 (46) -
Tiansfers to Stage 3 (37,378) (340,370) 377,748 -
Changes to contractual cashflows due to partial repayment (428,146) 50,850 377,296 -
Changes to estimates and assumptions used to calcufate ECL. (E54,113) 233,055 (280,606) (200,764)
Accrued Inferest - - 2,235 2,235
Amount writlen off (7,282) - (14,898) (22,180)
Foreign exchange adjustments (663,206) (79,056) {36,555) (778.817)
As 30 June 20192 2,747,932 141,742 399,103 3,888,177
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
ECL allowance as at 1 July 2018 under IFRS 9 31,636 70,285 340,741 442,662
New assets purchased ar originated 59,657 - - 59,657
Paywmients and assets derecognised (exciuding write-ofis) (16,772) (14,952} (34,065) (59,789
Transfers to Stage 1 2,103 {1,778) (325) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (17,482) 17,528 (46) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (38,734) (3,501) 42235 -
[mpact on year end ECL of exposures transferred beisveen (54,113) 12,249 41,864 _
stages during the year
Unwind of discount as a reduction of interest income - - 2,234 2,234
Changes To contraclu_al_ cashflows due to modifications not T.674) (6.,553) (6,224 (@,003)
resulting in derecognition
Changes to estimates and assumptions used for ECL ) -
calculations note 44 (Financial instruments) 19,409 19,409
Amounts written off - - (14,906) {14,906}
Foreign exchange adjustment 4,097 (8.865) (23,342) (36,304)
As 30 Junc 2019 14,637 52,164 342,159 408,960
32. Cash and cash equivalents
Trading
Trading Banking Group Banking Total
Group Group Total (restated) Group  (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00G
Cash and cash equivalents 154,181 1,337,440 1,491,621 170,121  1,229.876  1,399.991
Bank overdrafis (187,148) (2,085) (109,233) (140,649 (6,201) (146,850)
47,033 1,335,355 1,382,388 29472 1,223,669 1,253,141

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturily of three months or less, net
of ontstanding bank overdrafts. The carrying amount of these assets are equal to their fair valoe.
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33. Trade and other payables

Banking
Trading Banking Trading Group Total
Group Group Total Group (restated) (restated)
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
L£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables 416,297 15,456 431,753 484,327 - 484,327
Workers welfare fund payable - 16,946 16,946 - 18,168 18,168
Other banking group payables - 99,001 99,001 - 15,258 15,258
Acceptances - 128,864 128,864 - 212,738 212,738
Insurance payablas - 2,234 2,234 - 2,671 2,671
QOther laxation and social security costs 7,841 - 7,841 3,896 - 3,896
Amounts due to related parlies 167 - 167 51 - 51
Other payables and accruals 116,899 1,029 117,928 94,490 38,244 132,734
541,204 263,530 804,734 582,704 287,079 869,843

Details of the restatetnent aro given in note 50.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the spme as their fair values due to their short-term
nature. Trade payables and accruals principally cotnprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and on-going costs. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place 1o ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed vredit terms.
The Dircctors consider that the carrying amount of trede payabies approximates their fair value. Trade and other payables in
both current and prior year are current and expected to be paid within 12 months.

34. Qther financial Habilities

Banldng Group 2019 2018
£000 £000

Provision against off balance sheet obligations 2,576 4,461
Delerred income 10,037 10910
Deferred linbilities 8,541 10,830
21,154 26,201

Off balance sheet obligations Stage1 StageZ  Stage3 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Outstanding exposure as at 30 June 2019

Direct credit substitates

High grade 73,910 87 - 13,997
Medium grade 228,531 79,936 3,345 311,812
Low grade 548 4,927 - 5475
‘Transaction-related contingent liabilities

High grade 312,789 13,602 - 326,391
Medium grade 75,845 1,078 - 76,923
Low grade 86479 34,930 - 121409
Trade-velated confingent linbjtities

High grade 753,350 2,240 - 755,590
Medium grade 112,273 2,562 - 114,835
Low grade 355 o ,0d4 - 4,399
Total as at 30 June 2019 1,644,680 143,406 3,345 1,790,831
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34. Other financial liabilities (confinved)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowancos is as follows:

Gross careying amount as at | July 2018

New assets purchased or originated

Payments and assets derecognised (excluding write-ofly)

Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3

Changes to contractual cashflows due (o partial repayment and
changes to estimates and assumptions used to calculate ECL,

Foreign exchange adjustiments

As 30 June 2019

35. Deposits and other accounts

Banking Group

Customers

Fixed deposits - remunerative
Savings deposits - remunerative
Sundry deposits - remunerative
Margin deposits - remunerative
Current accounts - retnunerative
Current accounts - non-remunerative

Financial Institutions
Remunerative deposits

Non-remunerative deposits

Interest payable

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Amual report and financial stateincenis

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Stagel Stage2 Stage3 1'otal

£000 £000 £000 £006

1,907 4,566 234 6,707

423 376 - 799

(90) (3415 - (3.,90%)

3 (32) . 29

24y 7 - {ah

. @) ) -

7)) an 2 {46)

(4383 93) - (331

@n ) 5 (adm)

1,150 1,185 241 2,576

Current Nen-curvent Total Current Non-current Total
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,408,361 199,528 1,707,889 1,506,171 535,504 2,041,675
2,239,586 - 2,239,586 2,563,291 - 2,563,291
91,400 20 91,420 245,651 181 245,832
33,091 145 33,236 54,493 143 54,636
50,258 - 80,258 43,429 - 43,429
2,956,513 - 2,956,513 3,379,841 - 3,379,841
201,808 - 201,808 218,259 - 218,259
101,542 - 161,542 136,399 - 130,899
26,549 - 26,549 57,265 - 57,265
7,109,108 299,693 7,408,801 8205299 535,828 8,741,127

Deposits include remunerative and nen-remunerative deposits. Non-remunerative deposits are non-interest bearing whereas
the remunerative deposits are of saving or terny nature with interest component.
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Notes (continued)

36. Other interest-bearing foans and borrowings

Trading Group 2019 2018
£000 £000

Cuvrent lnbilities

Secured bank loans 111,403 91,658
111,403 91,658

Non-cuerent liabilities

Preference shares classified as debt 58,178 58,178

Scoured bank loans 176,786 275,141
234,964 333,319

Total loans and borrowings 346,367 424,977

Preference shares classified as debt
The cumulative preference shures have been classified as non-current liabilitics as they are redeemable iu groater than a year,

516,000 of cumulative preference shares with a par value of £1 each, are redeemable 10 years from the initial date of issue and
accrue dividends at 8% and 10%. In both the curreat and prior year, the dividend has been waived, consequently no charge
has been recognised in the income statement, Holders of cumulative preference shares are entitled to priority over otier
shareholders in receipt of their 8% and 10% preference dividends or on share redemption on distribution of assets in a winding,
up. Holders are not entitled to attend or vote at general meetings of the issuing company except where there is default in
respect of, or proposed resolutions to madify, their rights. Preference shareholder consent is required for the issue of new or
additional preference shares and madifications 1o the Directors' borrowing powers under the Articles of Association.

57,662,428 cumnulative preference shares with a par value of £] each and a coupon rate of6%, with interest being paid quartesty,
are redeemable 10 years from the initial dale of issue being 4 April 2017. Holders of cumulative preference shares are entitled
to priority over other shareholders in receipt of their profercnee dividends or on share redemption on distribution of assots in «
winding up. Flolders are not entitled to attend or vote at general meetings of the issuing company except where there is default
iu respeot of, or proposed resciutians to modify, their rights. Preference sharcholder consent is required for the issue of new
or additional preference shares and modifications to the Directors' borrowing powers under the Articles of Association.

Secured domestic bank loan

During the 20135 period the Group attzined bank finance in order to complete its acquisition of Panacea Foldings Limited. On
19 September 2017, companies in the Bostway Securities Limited Group, refinanced the loans and became party to a Senior
Facilities Agreement, whereby the liabilities of cach of the subsidiaries are cross guaranteed by each of the companies. The
loaus under the Scnior Facilities Agresment amount to £225million of term foan (Term Loan A". “Term Loan A' is repayablo
biannuaily untit 26 September 2022, with the first payment, of £16.1 million, made on 25 March 2019. The loans currently
attract interest of LIBOR + 2.35%.

During the 2017 period the Group attained bank finance, comprising a £60.0 million loan watiring in 2020 and bearing an

interest rate of LIBOR + 3.85% (‘Tenn loan B’). At the beginning of the year, £32 million remained outstanding, and this was
fully repaid during the year.
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36, Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Secured overseas bank Ioan

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and finencial statements
For the year cuded 30 June 2019

Duiring the 2015 period the Group also acquired a term finance facility of 25 billion Pakistani Rupees from a syndicate of banks
with Allied Bank Limited as the lead bank. This facility is repayable in 10 stepped up biannual instalmenis starting from
October 2013, Interest is payable on biannual basis af the rate of 6 months’ KTBOR (Karachi Inter-Banking Offering Rate) plus
0.20% poer annum. The facility is secured against the present and fulure assets excluding land and buildings of the Cement

graup.

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

Currency
Preference shares classified as debt GBP
Preference shares classified as debt GBP
Preference shares classificd as debt GBP
Secured Term Loan A GBP
Scoured Tenn Loan B GBP
Secured Syndicate Loan PKRR

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings are at amortised cost. All carrying amounts are cqual to the fair value,

Banking Group

Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Call borrowings
Other borrowings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Export refinance scheme

Refinance facility for modemisation of SME
Lang {erm financing facility

Repurchase agreement borrowings

Bai Muajjat

Intevest payable

Amount due for setilement within 12 months
Amount due for settiement afler 12 months

Nominal interest rate

8%
10%
6%

LIBOR + 2.1%
LIBOR + 3.85%

KIBOR + 0.2%

note

ooa

IR0 - B0

Year of
mafurity /' Carrying Carrying
redemption  amount amount
2012 2018
£000 £000
2 2
514 514
2027 57,662 57,662
58,178 58,178
2022 208928 225,000
2020 - 32,000
208,928 257,000
2020 79,261 109,795
346,367 424,977
Carrying Carrying
amotnt amount
2019 2018
£000 £000
33,860 69,648
113,177 213,324
147,637 282,972
140,196 108,336
41 35
113,150 131,924
601,900 1,118,471
105,383 217,320
960,570 1,576,586
33,886 40,610
1,141,593 1,900,168
967,260 1,734,563
174,333 165,605
1,141,593 1,900,168
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Notes (continued)
36. Other interest-hearing loans and bovrowings (continucd)

(a) These are unsecured borrowings carrying mark-up at rates ranging from 2.00% 1o 10.60% per annum and were repaid affer
the year end.

(b) These borrowings carry mark-up at rates ranging from 2.70% to 4,75% per annum and were repaid after the year end.

(¢) The Bank has entered into agreements with the Siate Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for extending export finance lo customers. As
per the terms of the agreement, the Bank has granted the SBP the right to recover the ontslanding amounts from the Bank a
the date of maturity of the finances by directly debiting the Bank's cuerent accom ! maintained with the SBP. These borrawings
are repayable by July 2019. These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 3.47% to 12.35% per annum.

(d) These borrowings have been obtained from the SBP to [inance modermisation of Small and Medjum Enterprises (SME) by
providing financing facilities for purchase of new plant and machinery for Balancing, Modemnisation and Replacement (BMR)
of existing units and setting up of new uaits. In addition, financing for import / local purchase of new generators up to 8
maximum capacity of 500 KVA is also eligible under this Scheme. These borrowings were repaid after the year end. These
carry mark-up at a rate of 6.2% per annum.

(e) These borowings have been obtained from the SBP for providing lnancing fecilities to exporters for adoption of new
technologies and modemising their plant and machinery. These borrowings are repayable by June 2028. These carry mark-up
at ratos ranging from 2.00% to 9.70% per annnm.

(f) These repurchass agreement borrowings are secured pgainst Market Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds and
carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.08% to 12.18% per amnum. These borrowings and were repaid after the year end.

(g) These represent Bai Muajjal borrowings whereby the Bank bought sukuks sold by other financiaf institutions on deferred
paymeit basis. These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 12.22% to 12.30% per anhum and were repaid afler the year end.

All interest-bearing loans and borrowings are at amortised cost. All carrying amounts are equal to face value. All carrying
amounis are in Pakistani mpees translated to sterting at the closing rate on 30 June 2019.
37. Subordinated loans

The Bank has issued fully paid up, rated, listed, perpetual, unseeured, subordinated, non-cumulative and contingent convertible
debt instruments in the nature of Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) which qualify as Additional Tier I Capital as cutlined by

focal regulatory requiremcnts, This totats £45.2 mitlion in the year (2018: Nil).
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Notes (continued)

38. Provisions

Tradiag Group Reductionin  Dilapidsation
pharmacy funding provision Other Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000
As at 30 June 2017 19.250 - 4t 20,694
Additional provision in the year (restated) 2,419 5,115 2,730 10,264
Utilisation of provision (8,370) - - (8,370)
As at 30 June 2018 (restated) 13,799 5,115 3,674 22,588
Additional provision in the year - 900 596 1,496
Utilisation of provision (11,880) (420) - (12,300)
As at 30 June 20i9 1,919 5,995 4,270 11,784

Details of the restatement are given in note 50.

£3.4 million of provisioils at the year end were classified as non-current (2018: Nil).

The reduction in government funding relates to a provision made for Category M adjustiments relating to the NHS year ended
March 2019. The unutilised provision in respect to NHS funding cuts at year end 30 June 2019 was £1.9 million (2018: £13.8

million).

Dilapidations pravisions comprise store dilapidation costs on stores as identified as part of the acquisition in the for the retail
and pharmacy businesses.

Provisions are bused on management best estimates to be added and could be subject to change in the faturc and are not subject
to discounting.

Other provisions include potential liabilities incurred as part of the Trading Group’s operatiens that are expected to lead to
cash outflows.

Banking Group Fire Marine  Motor Miscellancous Total
£000 £000 £008 £000 £000
Asat 1 July 2017 3,668 906 3,228 92389 17,091
Claims incurred during the year 4,536 1,938 4,100 2,375 12,949
Claims paid during the year 2,607y (1455 (3,310} (4,242) (11,614)
Premium written in the year 6,533 2042 7.551 6,049 2,175
Premiums eamed during the year (5,919)  (1,993) (6,342) (6,549) (20,803)
Exchange differences (751) (178) (643) (1,249) {2,821)
As at 30 June 2018 5,460 1,260 4,584 5,673 16977
Claims incurred during the year 2,404 1,147 3,730 4,568 11,849
Claims paid during the year (3,229 (872) (3,601) (4,348) (12,050}
Premium written in the year 7,870 2,023 7481 6,778 24,152
Premiums eamed during the year (6,903) (2,019) (7,034) (5,092) {22,048)
Exchange differences (1,254} (32h  (1,i22) {1,417 (4,120}
As at 30 June 2019 4348 1212 4,038 5,162 14,768

The movement in provisions is due to the normal course of business of providing insurance contracts. All provisions in both
financial years are current. These were previously considered non-current (sec note S0 for prior year adjustments).
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39. Deferred Tax

“the following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Company and movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting period.

Trading Group

Property, Investments
plant & Intangible Investment and Employee Short term

equipment assets  property  associates beneflits timing Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 30 June 2017 65,713 69,424 5,168 13,257 (1,573} (541) 151,448
On acqnisition (restated) 2,502 (940) - - - 28 1,590
I(SS’:““) / eharge to profit and G,082)  (8,302) 965 131 . 1260 (9,028)
(Credit) / charge to ths OCI - - - (4,552) 465 “@s)  (4,132)
Exchange differences (9,033) @57y - (1,344) - - (10,834)
A1 30 June 2018 (rostated) 56,100 59,725 6,133 7492 {1,108) 702 129,044
I(((;sr:dlt) / charge to profit and 3,810 2237 _ 395 _ 75 7.043
{Credit) / charge to the OCI - - - 986 (i54) 38 870
Exchange differences (11,925) (258) - (2,039) - 75 (14,147)
At 30 June 2019 52,985 57,230 6,133 6,834 (1,262) 890 122,810

See note 50 for information regarding assels acquired through business combinations and details of the restatement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset where the Graup has a legally enforceable right fo do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (nfter offset) for financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Dieferred tax liabilities 124,072 130,152
Deferred 1ax assets (1,262) (1,108)
Net deferved tax Hability 122,810 129,044

Wei deferred tax liabilities include £123.8 million of deferred tax liabilities, and no deferred tax asscts, whicl: are expected to
be seltled or recovered more than 12 months after the reporting period. For the year ended 30 June 2018 the £122.8 million of
net deferred tax liability was materially dus to be settled in more than one year and related primarily to intangible asscts and
property, plant & equipment.

Banking Group

Rmployee

welfare Employee  Properiy, plant Investment
provisions Tax losses benefits & equipment property  Sub total
£000 £600 £000 £000 £000

At30 June 2017 5,777y (2,002) (1,650) 12,547 1,935 5,053
(Credit) / charge to profit and loss (1,439 (5,708) (858) 1,027 189 (10,789
(Credit) / charge to the OCI - 358 (938) 1,515 46) 889
Exchange differences 992 633 o017 (2,113) (307) (178)
At 30 June 2018 (6,224) (10,719 (2,829) 12,976 1,771 (3,025
(Credif) / cliarge to profit and loss (2,100) 9,369 6,770) 1,949 4 2,440
(Credit) / charge to retained _ } ) ) 3
camings )
(Credit) / charge to 8OCL/ ) )
revaluation reserve ) ) ) )
Credit / (charge) to the OCI - - 7,756 30) - 7,726
Exchange differences 1,703 1,632 532 (3,276) (4048) 190
At 30 June 2019 (6,627) 282 (1,311) 11,619 1,374 5337
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Notes (continued)
39. Deferred Tax (continued)
Expected credit

Iissses and shert-
term timing

Sub total Investiments Associates differences Total
£000 £000 £640 £000 £000
At 30 lune 2017 5,053 49,551 3,439 ¢E)) 58,030
{Credit}/ charge 1o profit and loss (10,789) (26) 615 1 (10,199
{Credit) / charge to the OCI 889 (49,995) - - (49,106)
Exchange differences (178) (3.886) (524) 3 (4,591
AL30 June 2018 (5,025) (4,356) 1,530 (15)  (5,866)
{Credit) / charge to profit and loss 2,446 (3,735) 1,619 - 330
{Credit) / eharge to 30CI /
retained camings - 6.045 " 43,753) (37,708
{Credit) / charge to SOCL/ - (4,876) . - {(4,876)
revaluation reserve
(Credit) / charge to the OCI 7,726 (11,010} - (1,158)  {4,442)
Exchange differences 190 3,899 (1,040) 9,884 12933
At 30 June 2019 5,337 (14,033} 4,109 (35,042) (39,629)

Duriug the year, a gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities of £21.0 million through other comprehensive income,
resttlted in a deferred tax impact of £7.7 million. Fuithermore, a net loss on investments in debt instruments classified as 'at
FVOCT of £31,1 million resulted in a deferred tux impact of £11.0 million, [n the prior year, a loss arising on investments in
securities as 'at FVOCI' of 148.7 million resulted in deferred lax impact of £5¢.0 million.

Defetred lax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Banking Group ' 2019 2018

£000 £0600
Deferred tax liabilitios (17,384) {18,277
Deferred 1a% assots 57,013 24,143
MNet delerred tax asset 39,629 5,866

Net deferred tax assets include £13.3 million which is expected to be setiled or recoversd more than 12 months after the
reporting period.

40, Employee benefits
Trading Group

The Trading Group operates a number of pension plans throughout the world, devised in accordance with local conditions and
practices. The majority of the plans are defined benefit plans and are fanded by payments to separately adninistered trusts or
insurance companies. The principal plans are in the United Kingdom and Pakistan. Reduced diselosures have been provided
for the Pakistan scheme as it is considered immaterial.

United Kingdam Scheme

The Group’s main pension commitments relate to its two occupational pension schemes; the Batley's Limited Refirement
Benefils Scheme (the “Main scheme™) and the Batley’s Limited Officers’ Retirement Benefits Scheme (the “Officers’
scheme™). Both schemes are funded by the payment of contributions to separately administered trust funds, On 31 October
2015, the pension schemes were transferred from Batley's Limited to Bestway Wholesale Limited as pari of the group
reorganisation, af which point Bestway Wholesale Limited becaine the sponsoring company.

The Schemes are subject to the funding legislation, which came into force on 30 December 2005, outlined in the Pensions Act
2004, This, together with documents issued by the Penstons Regulator, and Guidance Notes adopted by the Financial Reporting
Council, sef ont the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension plans in the UK.

The trustees of the Schemes are required o act in the best inferest of the Schemes® beneficiaries. The appointment of the
trusiees is determined by the Scheme's trust decumentation. it is policy that one third of all trustees should be nominated by
the members.
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40. Employee benefits (continued)

Full actuatial valuations were carried out as ut 30 April 2017 for the Main Scheme and 31 December 2018 for the Officers’
Scheme in accordance with the scheme funding requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and the funding of the Schemes are
agreed between the Company and the trustees in line with thosc requirements. These in particalar require the surplusfdeficit to
be calculated using prudent, as opposed to best estimate actuarial assumptions.

The sponsoring company has agreed with the trustees that it will aim to eliminate the deficit for the Main Scheme over a period
of 4.5 years from 30 April 2018 by the payment of annual contributions of £498,000 increasing each year by 3%. In addition,
and in accordance with the actuarial valuations, the sponsoring compatry has ngreed with the trustees that it will meet expenses
of the Schemes and levies to the Pension Protection Foad.

For the purposes of [AS 19 the actuarial valuation as at 30 April 2017 for the Main Scheme and 31 December 2018 for the
Officers” Scheme, which were carried out by a qualified independent achiary, have been updated ot an approximate basis to
30 June 2019. There have been no changes in the valnation methodology compared to the prior year.

Defined benedit pension schemes of the Trading Group

The information disclosed below is in respect of the whole of the plans for which the Trading Group is the sponsoring employer
throughout the years shown.

Present values of scheme liabilities, fair values of assets and deficit: 2019 2018

£000 £000
Present value of scheme Habilities (38,542) (37,479)
Fair value of scheme assets 31,067 27.868
Deficit (7,475) (9.611)
Related deferred tax asset 1,262 1,108
Net liability €6,213) (8,503)

The present value of schomes’ liabilities is measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by
the plan using the projected unit credit method. The valve caloulated in this way is reflected in the net linbility in the statoment
of financial position as shiown above,

The projected unit credit method is an accrued benefits valuation method in which aflowance is made for projected earnings
increases. The accumulated benefit obligation is an altemative actuarial measure of the Schemes liabilities, whose calculation
differs from that under the projected unit credit method in that it includes no assumption for future eamings increases. In
assessing this figure for the purpose of these disclosures, allowance has been made for future stamtory revaluation benefits up
to retirement. At the balance sheet date, the accumulated benefit obligation was £35.4 million (2018: £37.8 miltion).

All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the year in which they occur in other comprehensive income,
Impact of the asset ceiling

The Directors reviewed implications of the guidance provided by IFRIC 14 and have concluded that it is not necessary to make
any adjustments to the IAS 19 fipures in respect of an asset ceiling or Miaimum Funding Requirements as at 30 June 2019,

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligations: 2019 2018
£000 £000
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 37,479 39,529
Cusrent service costs 426 465
Interest cost 1,122 1,122
Past service costs 439
Actuarial loss / (gain) 2,174 (1,554)
Benelfits paid (2,370) (1,800)
Exchange differences (728) (283)
At the end of the year 38,542 37,479

There have been no scheme amendments, curtailments or settisinents in the accounting period.
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Notes (continued)

40. Employee benefits (continued)

Movements in fair value of scheme assets: 2019 20E8
£000 £000

Valug of scheme assets at beginning of the year 27,868 27,594
Interest income on plan assets 105 -
Expected rotum on scheme assets 730 706
Asluarial gains 1,482 675
Contributions by employer 3,095 569
Benefits paid (2,213) (1,676}
At the end of the year 31,067 27,868
Expense recogrised in the income statement: 2019 2018
£000 £000

Interest on defined benefit pension obligation 1,122 1,122
Cuirent service costs 426 465
Past sorvico costs 439 -
Expecied return on defined benefit pension assets (730) (706)
Total expense 1,257 881
Expense recognised in other comprehensive income: 2019 2018
£000 £000

Actuarial losses 2,182 -
Actuaria! pains (1,482) (2,229)
Total expense / (gain) 700 (2,229

The fair value of the scheme assets and the retum on those assets were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Cash 406 239
Equilies 5,824 B,891
Bonds 7,896 5,514
Hedge funds 1,506 -
Liability Driven Investments {LD1) 6,697 5,450
Diversified growth funds 8,738 7774
31,067 27,868

Restway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annuazl report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

None of the [air values of the assets shown above include any direct investments in the Group or Company’s own financial
instruments or any property occupicd by, ar other assets used by, the Group or Company. All of the scheme assets have a
quoted market price in an active market with the exception of the Trustee's bank account balance.

It is the policy of the Trustess and the Company to review the investment stratogy at the time of each funding valuation. The
Trustees’ invesiment objectives and the processes undertaken to measure and manage the risks inherent in the Schemes’
investment sfrategy are documented in the Schemes’ Statement of Investinent Principles. The Schemes invest approximately
20% of total assets in Liability Driven Investinents (LD} to broadly provide 70% interest rate hedging and 123% inflation rete
hedging. .

All equity sceurities and government bonds have quoled prices in active markets. All other plan assets are not quoted in an
active market.

88



Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003303
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 Junc 2019
Notes (continued)
40. Employee benefits {continued)

Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

2019 2618

UK UK

Discount rate 2.30% 2.70%
Inflation (RPT) 3.45% 335%
Inflation (CPI) 2.45% 2.35%
Future salary increases 3.65% 3.55%

The assumptions relating to longovity underlying the pension liabilitics at the balance sheet dato are based on standard actuarial
mortality tables and include an sllowance for future improvements in longevity. The asssmptions are equivalent to expecting
8 65-year old to live for a sumber of years as follows:

- Current pensioner aged 65: 22.4 years (male), 24,5 years (female).
- Future retiree wpon reaching 65: 24.6 years (wale), 26.8 vears (female).

Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit abligation is sensitive to the assumptions set out above. The following table summarises
how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period would have inereased / (decreased) because
of a change in the respoctive assumptions:

Change in assumption Change in liabilities

Discount rate Deorcase of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 4.9%
Rate of inflation Increase of 0.25% p.a. Increase by 1.5%
Rate of salary growth Increase of 0.25% p.a. Inciease by 0.5%
Rate of mortality Increase in life expectancy of 1 year Increase by 3.2%
Commutation Members commute an extra 10% of Post A Day Decrease by 0.7%

pension on retirement

The sensitivities shown above are approximate. Each sensitivity considers one change in isolation. The inflation sensitivity
includes the impact of changes to the assumptions for revaluation, pension increases and salary growth. The average durafion
of the defined benefit obligation at the poricd ended 30 June 2019 is 18 years (2018: 20 years).

The Schemes typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk, salary growth risk,
mortality risk and longevity risk. A decrease in corporate bond yields, a rise in inflation or an increase in lile expectancy would
result in an increase to plan liabilities. This would detrinientally impact the statement of financial position and may give rise
in increased charges to the income statement in the foture. This effect would be partially offset by an increase in the value of
the Schemes’ bond and LDI holdings, and in qualifying death in service insurance policies that cover the mortality nisk,
Additionally, caps on inflationary increases are in place 1o protect the plan against extreme inflation.

The Group and Trustees are aware of these risks and manage them through appropriate investment and funding strategies.
Funding

The best estimate of centributions to be paid by the Group to the schemes for the year beginning 1 July 2019 is £559,000 per
annum.
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40. Employee bencefits {continued)

Banking Group

Defined benefit schemes

United Bank Limited, Pakistan (UBL)

United National Limited, United Kingdom (UBL UK)
UBL Fund Managers Limited, Pakistan (UFML)
UBL Insurers Linited, Pakistan (UIL)

Defined contribution schemes

UBL - Provident Fund, Pakistan
UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited, Tanzania

Net liability

Banking Group (Paldstan) scheme - United Bank Limited, Pakistan (UBL)

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 110033035

Amnual report and finencial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Net surplus] Net liability]  Wet surplus] Net liability
£000 £600 £000 £000
. 2,825 . 61,092
147 . - 160
- 5 - 41
. 38 - 44
609 - 131 -
- . . 17
756 2,868 131 61,354
2,112 61,223

The Bank operates a funded pension scheme established in 1973, as well as a funded grafuity scheme for new employces and
for those employees who have not opted for the pension scheme.

The Bank also operales a contributory benevolent fund scheme and provides post-retirement medical benefits to eligible retired
employces. The benevolent fund schemie and the post-retirement medical scheme cover all regular smployees of the Bank who

joined the Bank pre-privatisation.

The liabilities of the Bank in respect of these schemes are determined based on actuarial valuations carried out using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, Actuarial valuations of the defined bencfit schemes are carried out every year and the fatest

valuation was varried out as at 30 Junc 2019,

The number of employees covered under the foflowing defined benefit schemes are:

Pension fund

Gratuity fund

Benevolent Fund

Post-retirement medical benefit scheme

Principal actuarial assumptions

2019

7,891
9,447
3,558
8,250

The actuarial valnations were carried out as af 30 June using the following significant asswnptions:

Discount rate and expected rate of retum on scheme assets

Expected rate of future salary increase
Expected rate of increase in pension
Expected rate of increase in medical benefit
Post-retirement ntoriality at age 66-

Pension fund

Benevolent Fund

Post-retirement medical benefit scheme

2019

14.25%
12.258%

5.00%
14.25%

17.34
771
13.87

2018

10,608
10,382
3,886
9,744

2018

9.00%
7.00%
5.00%
9.00%

17.34

T
13.87
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40. Employee benefits (cortinued)

Present values of scheme labilities, fuir values of
assefs and deficit:

Present value of scheme liabilities
Fair value of scheme assets

Net asset / (liability)

Present value of scheme liabilifies
Fair value of scheme asseis

Net asset / (liability)

Movenient in present value of defined benefit
ebligations:

Defined benefit obligation at 1 July 2018
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Return allocated to other funds

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Exchange difference

At 30 Junc 2019

Movement in fair value of scheme assets:

Value of scheme assets at 1 July 2018
Interest income on scheme assets
Contribution by employer

Benefits paid

Amount paid by the fund to the Bank
Actuarial gain / {loss)

Exchange difference

At 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and linancial stalements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Post-
refirement
Pension Grafuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit Total
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £008 £000
37,648 4,159 1,243 9,993 53,043
{43,987) (4,255) (1,976) - (50,218)
(6,339) (96) (733) 9,993 2,825
Post-
retirement
Pension Gratuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit Tolal
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4,692 2,474 9,910 88,899
(19,909 £4,785) (3,113 - Q73807
51,914 (93) (639) 9,910 61,092
Paost -
retivement
Pension Gratuity  Benevolent medical
fund fund Fund benefit Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
71,823 4,692 2,474 9,910 38,899
222 785 32 8 1,047
5,147 402 145 784 0,478
(4,715) (726) (258) (692) (6,390
305 - - - 305
(22,068) £58 (709) 2,631 {19,988)
(13,066) (1,152) (441} (2,648 (17,307
37,648 4,159 1,243 9,993 53,043
Pension Grafuity Benevolemt Post-retiveiment
fund fund Tund medical benefit Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
19,969 4,785 3,113 - 27,807
1,190 409 196 - 1,795
38,137 1,007 11 - 39,155
- - 11 - 11
(6,985) (659) (696) - (8,340)
1,262 (e (34) - 1,119
(9,526) (1,178) (625) - (11329
43,987 4,255 1,976 - 50,218
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Notes (continued)

40, Employec benefits (continued)

Expense vecognised in the income statement:

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit asset or liability
Retum allocated to other funds

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit asset ar liability
Retum allocated to other fands

Emplayees' contribulion

Movemenrt recognised in the statentent of
compreliensive income:

Financial assumptions

Actuarial loss on obligation
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Adjusiment for mark up

Financial assumptions

Experience adjustments

Return on plan assels over interest income
Adjustment for mark up

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 1 1003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirernent Total
fund fund Fund medical benefit
2019 2019 2619 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
222 785 32 8 1,047
3,946 ) a1 784 4,672
305 - - - 305
4,473 778 as 792 6,024
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-refirement Total
fund fund Fund medical benefit
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £0¢00 £000 £000 £000
60,534 762 21 13 61,330
(1,093) (16) (18) 671 (456)
q08 - - - 908
60,349 746 3 684 61,782
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fand medical benefit Total
2619 2619 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(15,288) 32 277 2,971 (12,562)
(6,780) 126 {433) (339 (7,426)
(1,262) 109 34 - (1,119}
81 2 - - 33
(23,249) 269 (676) 2,632 (21,024)
Pension Gratuity Benevolent Post-retirement
fund fund Fund medical benelit Total
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 15 aon (2441 (2,623)
308 175 112 4,459 5,054
1,939 42 81 - 2.062
133 2 14 - 149
2,330

234 10 2,018 4,642
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Notes (confinued)

40. Employee benefits {cortinued)

The fair value af the scheme pssets and the refurn on those assets
were as follpws:

Cash and cash equivalents

Quoted ordinary shares

Unquoted term finance certificatas
Market treasury bills

Pakistan investment bonds

Term deposits

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual repert and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Cash and cash egnivalents

Quated ordinary shares

Unguoted term finance certificates
Pakistan investment bonds

Special savings certificates
Reverse repo

Pension Gratuity  Benevolent
fand fund Fund Tokal
2019 2019 2019 2019
£008 £000 £000 £000
77 356 22 455
544 200 100 844
6,843 - 95 6,939
14,610 1,196 664 16,470
21913 2,239 626 24,778
- 264 468 732
43,987 4,255 1,976 50,218

Pension Gratuity ~ Benevolent
fitnd fund Fund Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
97 22 14 133
744 161 ill 1,016
430 923 49 1,402
8,793 3,009 1,201 13,003
6,845 573 1,737 12,155
- [+3] - 98
19,909 4,786 3,112 27,807

The finds primarily invest in government securities and aecordingly do not carry any significant credit risk. These are subject
to interest rate risk based on market movemeats. Investment in tenmn finance certificates are subject to eredit risk and interest
rate risks, while equity sceurities are subject 1o price risk. These risks are regularly monitored by Trustees of the employee

funds.
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Notes (continued)
40. Employee henefits (continued)
Sensitivity analysts

Scasitivity analysis has been perfarmed by varying ane assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and calculating the
impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes, The
increase/(decrease) in the present value of defined benefit abligations as a result of a change in each assumption is summarised
below:

Post- Post-
retivement refirement
Pension Gratuity Benevolent  medical Pension Graluily Benevolent medical
Banking Group fund fund Fund benefit  fund  fund Fund benefit
20819 2019 2019 2019 2618 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000
Increase in discount rate by [% 12,967 (826) 580 (3,026) (6,437y (387) (118) (908)
Decreass in discount rate by 1% 23,922 amn 775 (£,485) 7,714 451 133 1,082
Increase in expected future
increment in salary by 1% - A7) 672 . - 436 ) )
Decrease in expected future
increment in salary by 1% - 63 672 - - 9N i )
.lncrcase in cxpect_cd future 23730 ) i . 7466 . ) i
increment in pension by 1%
Decrease in expeocted fiture
increment in pension by 1% 13,030 i i - (6,357 N i
Increase in expected future
inerement in medical benofit by 1% B B ) (1,517 ) i i Lo41
Decrease in expected future . . - (3,014) - - - (892)

increment in medical benefit by 1%

Although the analysis does not lake account of the full distribution of expected cash flows, it does provide an approximation
of the seasitivity of the essumptions shown.

LExpected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year

The Banking Group contributes to the pension and gratuity funds according to the actary's advice. Based on actuarial advice,
management ostimates that the expected contribution of £0.7 million in the financial year to 30 June 2019.

Funding policy

The Bank endeavours to ensure that liabilities under the various ensployee benefit schemes are covered by the Fund on any
valuation date having regards to the various aclugrial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, expeoted fiture
contributions to the fund, projecled increase in liability associated with future service and the projected investment income of
the Fund,

Defined confribution plans

UBL Pakistan operates a contributory provident fand scheme for ils employees who are not in the pension scheme. The
employer and employee cach contribute 8.33% of the basic salary to the funded scheme every month,
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Notes (continued)

41. Operating lease arrangements

Trading Group 2019
£000
Lease payments under operating leasss recognised as an expense in the year 22,322

2018
£000

16,640

At the balauce sheet date, the Trading Group bad outstanding comwmitments for futitre minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Less than one year . 21,354 14,592
Between one to five years 65,441 45,024
More than five years 75,519 56,718
162,314 116,334

Operating lease paymenis represent rentals payable by the Teading Group for certain of its office proporties, retail stores,
pharmacies and vehicles. Property leases are negotiated for an average term of 8 years and ventals arc fixed for an averags of
8 years with an option to extend for fitether at the then provailing market rate. The vehicle leases normally run for a period of

3-5 years.

Leases as lessor

The investment properties are let under operating leases. The future minimum leasc receivables under non-cancelfable leases

are as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Less than one year 4,539 4,703
Between one and five years 14,246 15,435
More than five years 44,310 48,785
63,095 68,943

During the year £6.5 million (2018: £7.2 million) was recognised as rental income.
Banking Group 2019 2018
£000 £000
Lease payments undor operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 18,808 18,544

Al 30 June 2019 the Banking Group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of £72.2 million (2018:

£74.6 million).

42. Capital Commitments

At 30 June 2019 the Group had entered into coniracts 1o purchase property, plant and equipment; the Trading Group
commitment was £12.4 million (2018: £1.8 million) and 1he Banking Group commitment was £4.6 million (2018: E123

million).

95



Destway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and tinancia! statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

43. Contingent liabilities
Trading Group
Ceunentt business

The cement business is subject to certain contingent legal and tax matters which are currently at different legal stages. The
Directors and the Company’s legal advisor are confident ol a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matiers in the consolidated financial statements.

Banking Group

Penalties amounting to £23.0 million have been levied by the Banking Group’s (UBL) regulator relating to atleged
contraventions of the requirements of foreign exchange regulations, UBL maintains that it fully discharged its liability, in
accordance with the law and has filed a civil suit in the respective High Court challenging the levy of the penalty. The High
Court has granted a stay on aclion being taken against UBL. The Directors based on the advice from legal counsel, ase confident
that the view of UBL wil! prevail and therefore no provision hias been made in respect of same in the consolidated financial
staternenfs.

The banking business is subject to certain contingent legal and tax matters which are currently at different legal stages. The
Directors and the Bank’s legal advisor are confident of a favourable outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated financial statements,

44, Financial instruments

Trading Group

a) Capital risk managenrent

The Group manages ils capital to ensure that eatities in fhe Group will be able to continue as a going concem while maximising
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 36 after dedncting cash end bank balances)
and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital and retaimed sarnings).

The Group manages its capital by increasing/decreasing its debt and/or equity as needed and also by adjusting the number of
dividends paid to shareholders. The Trading Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

&) Financial risk

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities by categories:

Financial Assets 2019 2018
£000 £000
Loans and receivables
Amounts receivable for sale of goods 162,993 159,725
Other receivables 35,297 54,548
Cash and cash equivalenis 154,181 170,121
Total financial assets 352,471 384,394
Financial liahilities
Overdrafi 107,148 140,649
Trade payables 416,297 484,327
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 288,189 366,799
Total financiak Lalilities 811,634 991,775
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments {continued)
Financial risk management objectives

The Trading Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the busingss, co-ordinates access to domestic and
interational financial markets, moaitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Trading Group
through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitede of risks. These risks include liquidity risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Trading Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by detailed forecasting end cash management to ensure that
loan covenants are not breached, The Group has a policy of using reasonable cash surpluses to pay down debt and thereby
reducing interest costs. The Group docs not euter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes.

¢) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Trading Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises prineipally from the Trading Group’s receivables [rom customers.

The Trading Group manages credit risk principally through the performance of credit checks on new customers and credil
control pro¢edures in accordance with IFRS 9. The trade debtor balances are made up of a large number of individual customer
balances, none of which are individualiy significant. Cash and cash equivalents represents deposits at high quality financial
institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, The maxinnn exposure fo credit risk at the
reparting date is listed in financial assets within the tablc above. All trade recsivables at the balance sheet date are within the
UK or Pakistan. See note 30 for more information on provisions relating to credit customers.

d} Interest rate and liguidity risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk beeause the Trading Group borrows funds at floating interest rates, namely LIBOR
{London inter-bank offer rate) and KIBOR (Karachi inter-bank offer rate).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk menagement rests with the board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Trading Group's short, medium and long-term Rinding and
liquidity management requirements. The Trading Group manages liquidity risk by maiataining adequate reserves, banking
facilitics and reserve borrowing facilitics, by continuously monitoring torecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Details of additional undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set out below. The
graup had sccess to undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period of £50.3m (2018: £50.3m).

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Trading Group's remuining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with
agroed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial Habilities based
on fhe carliest date on which the Trading Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
fows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted wmount is derived from interest rate curves at the
balance sheet date. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Trading Group may be required to pay.

Weighted
average effective 1 year or
interest rate less 1-Syears 5+ years Total
% £000 £000 £000 £000

30 June 2019
Fixed interest 'ate insthrutnents:
Shares classified as debt 10.0 52 206 717 975
Shares classified as debt 6.0 - - 57,662 57,662
Variable inferest rate instruments:
Bank loans LIBOR + 2.1 38,574 190,154 - 228,728
Bonk foans KIBOR + 0.2 79,260 27,086 - 106,346
Trade payables 0 416,597 - - 416,597

534,483 217,446 58,379 810,308
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (continued)

Weighted
average effective
interestrate 1 year or less I-5 years S+ ycars Total
% £000 £000 £040 £000
30 June 2018
Fixed interest rate instmiments: 10 52 206 17 975
Shares classified as debt 6 - - 57,662 57,662
Shares classified as debt
Variable interest rate instriments:
Bank loans LIBOR +2.1 21,970 224 975 - 246,945
Bank loans KIBOR +0.2 103,579 62,204 - 165,783
Trade payables 0 484,327 - - 484,327

609,928 287,385 58,379 955,692

Sensitivity annlysis
The Group has exposure to interest rate risk on bank loans that bear inferest on LIBOR or KIBOR plus basis.

A 1% change in LIBOR or KIBOR rates will ingreaso or decrease equity by:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Bank loans 2,882 3,628
2,882 3,628

A 1% change in interest rates will increase or decrease profit and loss by:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Baok loans 2,882 3,628
2,882 3,628

Banking Group

This section presents information sbout the Banking Group’s bauking business (UBL) exposure to and its management and
control of risks, in particular, the primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments such as credit, market, liquidity,
and operational risks,

Risk management

The Banking Group has an integrated risk management structure in place covering domestic and intemational franchise. The

Board Risk and Compliznce Committee (BRCC) oversees the entire risk management process of the Banking Group.

Furthermore, Risk Management Connnittes has been formed which fooks at all risks coffectively at senior management level.

The committes is chaired by the President and comprises of Heads of all risk areas, finance, business ete. The Risk and Credit

Policy Group is responsible for the development and implementation of all risk policies as approved by the BRCC / BoD). The

group is organiséd into the functions of Market & Treasury Risk, Financial Institution Risk, Credit Policy & Research,

Consumer Credit Policy, Credit Risk Management and Operational Risk & Basel. Each risk function is headed by 2 senior

manager who reports directly to fhe Gronp Execulive, Risk and Credit Policy. The rofe of the Risk and Credit Policy Group

includes:

» Determining guidelines relating to the Banking Group’s risk appetile;

e Recommending risk management policies in accordance with the Prudential Regulations, Basel 11 framework and
international best practices;

¢ Reviewing policies/manuals and ensvring that these are in accordance with BRCC/Board of Directors approved risk

management policies;

Developing systems and resources to review the key risk exposures of the Banking Group;

Approving eredits and granling approval authority to qualified and experienced individuals;

Reviewing the adequacy of credit fraining across the Banking Group,

Organising portfolio reviews focusing on guality assessment, risk profiles, industry concentrations, elo.;

» Setting systems to identify significant portfolio indicators, problem credits and Level of provisioning required; and

« Assigning of Obligor's Risk Rating (ORR) to customers.

*» o
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44, Financial instruments (continted)

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Tquity
investinents
Yinaneial Debt - Iniially
assets (other Debt investments designated Equity
than Dcbt investments at fair ut fair investinents- Financial
investments) investients at fair value value lnitially Xiabilities
- At at value through through designated nt at
amortised amortised through Profif and Profit and fair value amortised
30 June 2019 cost cost oC1 loss loss thaough OCI cost TFotal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financlal assets
Cash and cash 1,336,341 - - N - - - 1,336,341
equivalents
Investiments jn .
finsncial assets - 1,529,777 2,131,755 663,215 72,214 6,303 - 4,403,266
Lending to
financial 108,907 - - - - - « 108907
institulions
Advances 3,370,909 - - - - - - 3,370,909
Other assets 102,816 - - - - - - 202,816
5,018,973 1,529,777 2,131,755 663,215 72,214 6,305 - 9,422,239

Reinsurance assets of £10.3 million recognised by our insurance business, is classified as a finastcial assel at amortised cost.

Financial
liabilities
Trade and other
payables
Deposit and
otlier accounts
Sub ordinated
loans

Payable to
investors of UBL - - - -
Funds

Bills payable - - - .
Olher interest-

bearing {oans . - - -
and borrowing

Other liabilities - - - -

195,668 193,668

7,408,802 7,408,802

49,202 49,202

9,536 9,536

143,886 143,886

1,143,559 1,143,559

2,576 2,576

8,953,224 8,953,229
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Notes (continued)

44. Financial insiruments fcontinued)

Other

financial

Loans and Held-to- Available- Held for assets /
30 June 2018 receivables maturity for-sale Trading Jiabilitics Total
£000 £0060 E000 £000 £000 £000

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1,228,015 1,228 015
Investments in financial assets - 2,137,648 2,959,413 221,366 - 5,318,427

lending to financial instilutions - (38,776) - - - (38,776)

Advances 272,545 - - - - 272,545

Other assels 4,598 031 - - - - 4,598,031

impairment provision on

investmenis 241,373 } ) ) i 241,373
5,111,949 2,098,872 2,959.413 221,366 1,228,013 11,619,615

Reinsurance assets of £11.4 million recognised by our insurance business, is classified as a financial asset at amortised cost.

Financial lisbilities

Trade and other payabies - - - - 253,083 253,083
Deposit & ofher accounts - - - - 8,741,126 2,741,126
Sub ordinated loans - - - - 7,487 7487
Bills payable - - - - 96,844 96,844
Other interest-bearing loans and

b . 1,906,370 1,906,370
orrowing
Other liabilities - - - - 4,462 4,462

- - - - 11,009,372 11,009,372

‘The 2019 ligures presented are on IFRS 9 classifications while the compared figures are based on LAS 39 classification.
(e) Fair value measuremenis

Fair vale is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a {iability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the
Banking Group has access to at that date.

Investments which are tradable in an opon market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the balance sheet date.

The fair value of fixed term loans, other assets (except for unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments and forward
exchange contracts), other liabilities (except for unrealised loss on derivalive financial instruments and forward exchange
contracts) and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficicnt reliabilily due to the absence of a current and active
market for these assets and lisbilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from
their carrying values since these are sither short~term in natire o, in the case of custemer loans and deposits, are frequently
repriced. :

The information set out below pravides information about how the Group dotermines fair valuos of varous financial assets
and financial liabilities.

- Level 1 fair value measusemen s are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active miarkets for ideutical assefs or
liabilities;

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or linbility, cither dircotly (i.c. as prices) or mdirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques thal include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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44, Financial instruments (contiviued)

Drvesiments in finencial assets mensiwred of faiy
valie (Note 29)

Investments tu:

Govermnment Securities (T-bills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks
aud Eurcbonds}

Foreign Bonds

Ordinary shares of listed companics

Ordinary sharcs of unlisted companies
Preference Shares

Debt securitics {TFCs, Sukuks and others)
Mutual Funds

REIT scheme

fuvestments in financial assets not measured af fuir
valne (Note 29)

Securities carried at amortised cost {2018: held-to-
maturity)

Off balance sheet financial instruncents (at notional
value)

Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
contracts

Interest rate swaps

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Fair value hierarchy ns at 30 June 2019

FX options - purchased and sold

Forward purchase of goveranient securities

Level 1 Level 2 Level3  Camying Value
£000 £000 £000 £000

- 2,348,975 - 1,348,975

- 428,761 - 428,761
69,085 - - 69,085
- - 6,305 6,305

- 177 177

- 17,057 - 17,057

- 1,088 - 1,088
2,042 - - 2,042
71,127 2,795,881 6,482 2,873,490
- - - 1,415,700

- 34,281 - 3,458,334

- 96> - 1,524

- . . 8,076

- 158 - 382,280

Fair value hierarchy as af 30 June 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying Value
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investments in financial assels measwred af fair
value (Note 29)
Inveshnents in:
Government Securities (T-bills, P1Bs, GoP Sukuks - 2,632,526 - 2,632,526
and Burobonds)
Foreign Bonds - 403,337 - 403,337
Ordinary shares of listed companics 130,782 - - 130,782
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies - - 4,685 4,685
Preference Shares - - 2,656 2,656
Debt securities {TFCs, Sukuks and others) - 3,448 - 3,448
Mutual Funds - - - -
REIT scheme 3,345 - - 3,345
134,127 3,039,311 1,341 3,180,779
Tuvesqnents in financial assels not measured at fair
value (Note 29)
Secu ri.tics carried at amortised cost (2018: held-ta- ) ) N 1,643,521
maturity)
Off balance sheet financial instruments (ai nofional
vailie) - B B :
Forward purchase and sale of foreign exchange
contracts - 4,652 - 2,552,728
interest rate swaps - 126 - 14,098
FX options - purchased and sold - - - 1,057
Forward purchase of government securities - (19) - 5,072
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Notes (continued)
44. Financial instroments (continued)

Operating fixed assets and investiment properties are carried at revalucd amounts determined by professional valuers (level 3
measurement) based on their assessment of the market values as disclosed in notes 24 and 25 respectively.

Duiring the year there have been no transfers between the levels.

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified at amortised cost, is based on quoted market price, The fair value
of unquoted equity securities, other than investments in associates is the fair value of unquoled equity invesiments is measured
by using the market approach (comparable company multiples) and the cost approach (adjusted nct assefs) under IFRS 13, The
fair value of assdciates is based on the net assets of the associates as per their latest financial statements.

D Credir risk

Credit risk is the risk thal a customer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value, either when due or atany time
thereafter,

This risk arises from the potential that & customer’s or counterparty’s willingness or ability to meet such an obligation is
impaited, resulting in an economic loss to the Banking Group. The credit risk management process is driven by the Bank's
Credit Policy, which provides policies and procedures in relation (o credit initiation, approval, documentation and
disburseiment, credit maintenance and remedial management. Individuzl credit authorities are defegated to credit officers by
the Board according to their seasoning/maturity. Approvals for corporate and consumer loans are centralised, while approval
suthorities for Commercial and SME cxposures are delegated to a Regional level. All credit policy functions are centrally
organised,

Concentrations of credit risk exist if clients are engaged in similar activities, or are located in the same geographical region, or
have comparable economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations wonld be similarly affected by
chatges in economic, political or other conditions. The Banking Group manages limits and controls concentrations of credit
risk to individual counterpartics and groups, and 1o industries, where appropriate, Limits are also applied to portfolios or sectors
where the Banking Group cousiders it appropriate to restrict credit risk concentrations, or to areas of higher risk, or to control
the rate of portfolio growth.

Risk timit control and mitigation policies

The Banking Group manages, limits and contiofs coucentrations of credit risk wherever they are ideutified - in particular, to
individual counterparties and groups, industries and countries.

The Banking Group structures the fevels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation
to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry sogments. Such risks arc monitored on a revolving
basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product
and industry sector are approved quarterly by the Management Board.

The exposure te any one borrower is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheetl exposures, Actual
oxposures against limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet intercst
and capital repayment obligations at the time of loan appraisal for initial and subsequent loans.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(i) Collateral

The Banking Grovp employs a range of policies and practices o mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking
of seaurity for funds advances, which is common practice. The Banking Group finplements guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation, The principal collateral types for loans and advances are given in
described in note 44.

I addition, in order to minimise the credit loss, the Banking Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
s0on as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual Joans and advances.
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Notes (continned)
4d. Financial instruments (continned)
(it} Credit-rel ated commitments

‘The primary purpose of these instavments is to ensure that funds are available 1o a customer a3 required, Guaraniees and standby
letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loaus. Documentary and commercial letters of eredit ~ which arc wwritten
undertakings by the Banking Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Banking Group up
to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are collateratised by the underlying skipments of poods to which
they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct Joan,

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations o extend credit in the form of Ioans, guarantess or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commituzents fo extend credit, the Banking Group is potentially exposed to loss
in an amount equal to (he total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the tofal upused
commitments, as most commitments ta extend credil are contingeut wpon customers maintaining specific oredit standards, The
Banking Group monitors the term to maturify of credit commitmsents because longer-term commitments generally have a
greater degree of credit risk than shorler-torm commitments,

Lending to Investments

financial Loans and (debt  Off balance
institutions advances securities) sheet items
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £600

At amortised cost
Considered good 108,908 3,234,529 1,542,689 -
Watch list - 169,739 - -
Substandard - 33,432 - -
Doubtful - 24,669 - -
Loss - 317474 - -
Less: Allowance for impairment - (408,934) (12,910) -
Fuir vatue through OCI/ available for sale - - - -
Congidered gaod - - 2,122,612 -
Watch list - - 9,083 -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowarrce for impairment - - - .
Fair value through profit and loss - - - -
Considered good - - 663,215 -
Loss - - - -
Less: Allowvance for impairment - - - -
Off balance sheet - - - -
Trade-related contingont liabilities - - - 959,552
Direct credit substitutes - - - 181,307
Transaction -releted contingent liabilities - - - 710,717
Forward contracts — purchase* - - - 2,055,005
Forward conlracts — sale* - - - 1,74G,420
Derivatives - Intorest rafe swaps* - - - 1,524
Derivalives - Cross currency swaps - - - -
FX options - purchased* - - - 4,038
FX options - sold* - - - 4,038
Forward purchase of Government securities* - - - 382,280
Forward sale of Government securities* - - - -
Other elaims, commitments and confingencies - - - 798,059
108,908 3,370,969 4,324,749 6,836,940

* These represent the notional amount of the derivatives trade,
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44. Financial instruments (continned)

At aniortised cost

Considered good

Watch list

Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Less: Allowance for impairment
Fair value throwgh OCI / available for sale
Considered goad

‘Watch list

Loss

Less: Allowance for impairment
Fair value through profit and loss
Considered good

Lass

Less: Allowanoe for impairment
Off balance sheel

Trade-related contingent liabilities
Direct credit subsiitutes
Transaction-related contingent Liabilities
Forward contracts — purchase*
Forward contracts — sele*
Derivatives - Interest rate swaps*
Derivatives - Cross coltitry swaps
FX options ~ purchased*

FX options — sold*

Forward purchase of Govermnment securities™

Forward sale of Government sccurities™

Giher elaims, commitments and contingencics

Bestway Group Limited
Registered number 11003305
Annual report and linancial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

ELending to Investments
financial Loans and {debt Off balance
mstitutions advances securities) sheet items
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £0060 £000 £000
269,750 4,569,481 2,111,553 -
- 28,335 - -
8,052 24,483 - -
425 308,512 20,338 -
(5,682} (332,781) (11,262) -
- - 2,796,188 -
- - 607 -
- - (607) .
- . 221,366 -
i . - 1,199,358
- - - 164,656
. - - 1,014,206
- - - 1,794,251
- - - 1,503,421
- - - 18,212
- - - 633
- - - 683
- - - 8,552
- - - 137,827
272,545 4,598,030 5,138,183 5,839,849

* These represent the notional amount of the derivatives trade.

The Banking Group has pledged marketable securities amounting to £366 million against repurchase borrowings. The breakup

of these securities has been disclosed in notc 29,
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44. inancial instruments (centitiieed)
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The table below sets out the concentration of risk by secior and by geographiesl location:

For the year ended 30 Junc 2019

Investments
Investments Investrnents {debt
(debt (debt  securities)
Cash and  Lending to securities) securities) through Off
cash financial through through Amortised Other balince
equivalents institutions Advances FVIPL FYOCL cost  nssets sheetitems
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £060 £000 £000 £600 £000  £000 £000
Concentration of credit risk
Chensical and
pharmaceuticals B ) 62,164 ) - 487 7,226 29,321
Apgyi business - - 393,717 - - - - 22,403
Communication - - 14,536 - - - 53,323 38,301
Textile - - 356,046 177 313 333 2,487 32,462
Sugar - - 43,320 - - - - 1,375
Shoes and leather } ) 9.808 B } 3 107 6.647
garments '
Trm.lsporlatton R R 4,968 B . } ) .
equipment
Financial 197,066 108,208 299,419 {5,170 58,396 7,119 66,331 5,346,675
Electrenics and
clectrical appliances B ) 71,346 - - - 248 3,180
Praduction and
transmission of - - 266,951 - 12,423 $2,330 38,334 469,763
energy
Paper and allied - - 3,524 - - . B3G9 7.438
‘Wholesale traders - - 127,262 - - - 2911 20,193
Ferlilizer dealers - - - - - 2,051 - 8,222
Sports goods - - - - - - - -
Food industries - - 21,902 - 2,231 - 487 6,122
Constiuetion - - 176,567 - - - 15,764 74,514
Engineering - - 79,171 - - - L1218 80,166
Glass and allied - - - - - - - -
Hotels - - 2,656 - B - - 1,612
Polyesier and fibre - - - - - - - 30,501
Individuals - - 348,230 - T 37,757 - - 12,190
Others including N 1,139,275 - 429,230 647,869 2,020,633 1437457 10,461 643,794
government securities
1,336,341 108,908 3,370,907 663,216 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,939
Concentration by locations -
Pakistan operations 873,238 98,398 2,356,504 663,216 1,707,473 1,417,813 179,564 4,084,000
Middle East 352,415 - 794,823 - 237,111 61,111 22,705 2,382,060
United States of 14,137 - - - 2487 - - -
America
Export processing 172 - 374 - - - 499 12,015
Zones
Europe 93,020 . 122,432 - 3,060 3,444 49 337,942
Africa - 8,659 14,781 - 69,484 17,970 - -
Rest of the world . 3,359 1,851 $£,993 B 112,138 29439 - 20,922
1,336,341 108,908 3,370,307 663,216 2,131,753 1,529,777 202,817 6,836,932
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44, Financial instruments (continued)

Lending to

financial Loans and Investmenis Off balance
institutions advances (debt sccurities) sheet items
2018 2018 20)8 2018
£600 £000 £000 £000

Concentration of credit risk
Chemical and pharmaceuticuls - 88,167 756 25,793
Agri business - 56,266 - 235,824
Communication - 184,237 13 82,514
Textile - 700,657 1,440 17,961
Sugar - 104,007 oo 75
Shoes and leather garments - 14,212 - 7,909
Transpertation equipment - 90,627 2,098 18,283
Financial 278,227 311,916 73,315 3,463,602
Electronics and electrical appliances - 32,600 3,117 8,363
Production and transmission of energy - 1,134,075 112,572 699,612
Paper and allied - 135,386 - 8,441
Wholesale traders - 98 931 - [7,997
Fertilizer dealers . 104,636 5,499 10,894
Sports goods - 10,188 - -
Food industries - 517,004 8,153 9,659
Construction - 296,262 626 199,019
Engineering - 137,970 - 108,579
Glass and aflied - 10,090 - 986
Hotels - 177,955 - 175
Polyester and fibre - 25,540 - 33,511
Individuals - 406,079 19,341 21,352
Others including governmenl securities - 293,907 4,911,253 869,300
278,227 4,930,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Concentration by locations

Pakistan operations 197,601 3,673,365 4,370,1¢1 3,051,154
Middle East 59031 922,839 497,774 2,197,751
United States of America - - - -
Export Processing Zones 8,842 1,290 11,892 15,399
Europe 12,753 313,525 246,657 573,86%
Africa - 19,792 11,749 1,684
Rest of the World - - - -
278,227 4,930,811 5,138,183 5,839,849

Credif rish nteasurement

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management pusposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the risk
associsted with exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The
agsessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of defaults ocenrring, of the
associated loss ratios and of default correlations botween counterparties, The Banking Group messures oredit risk using
Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at Defauit (EAD) and Loss Qiven Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECL) under [FRS 9.

Credif ratings and PD estimation process

The Banking Group’s Credit Risk Dcpartment operates ifs infernal rafing models for Advances, lending’s to finanoial
institutions and off-bafance sheel abligations. The models incorporate both qualitative and quantitative information and, in
addition to information specific to the borrower, utilise supplemental external information that could affeet the borrower’s
behavior. PDs for rated portfolios are determined using migration of rating grades from one period to other within the PD
abservation periad. Consumer lending comprises unsecured personal loans, credit cards and overdmils, PDs models of these
preducts are primarily driven by days past duo,

For debt securities and batances with banks in the Treasury porifolio, extemal rating agency credit grades are used. The PDs
associated with cach grade are dotermined based on renlised default rates as published by the rating agency.

Estimated historical realised default rates are adjusted for IFRS 9 ECL calculations to incorporate forward looking information
and the IFRS stage classification of the exposure. This is repeated for each economic scenario as appropriate.
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The Banking Group's infernal credit rating grades

Lending fo financial institutions, advances and Off-balance sheet obligations

Internal credit rating

Performing

-4

5-6

79
Non-performing
10-12

Internal credit
rating description

High Grade
Medium Grade
Low Grade

Default

Debi securities and balances with baunks

Ratings Agency's
Internal credit rating Rating (JCR - VIS)
Medium to Long term Ratings Agency's Description

Performing

AAA ighest credit quality. The risk factors arc negligible being only slightly

mere than for risk-free Government of Pakistan debt

AAL AA  AA. [High c!'edit quality.'Protec!_inn factors are strong. R_.isk is m‘.)d est but may
Investment grade ' : vary sligh t!y fﬂ)lfl time to tl{'ne because of economic cgudittons.

At A A Good eredit quality. Protection faciors are adequate. Risk factors may vary

ik hwith the possible changes in the cconomy.
BBB+ BER Adequate credit quality. Protection factors are reasonable and sufficient. Risk
i %mrs are cousidered vatiable if changes oceur in the economy.
BBB- dequate credit quality. Protection factors are reasonable and safficient. Riskj

factors are considered variable if changes occur in the economy.

Obligation deemed likely to he met when due. Protection factors are capable
of weakening if changes oceur in the economy. Overall quality may move up
or down frequently within this category.

Obligations deensed less likely to be met when due. Protection faciors are
lcapable of fluctating widely if changes oceur in the economy. Overall

Non-Investment BB+, BB, BB-

Gratle

Bt B, B- quality may move up or down frequently within this category or into igher
lor {ower rating prade.
Non-performing
cce Considerable uncertainty exisls towards obligations when due. Protectian
factors are scarce, and risk may be substantial.
t.oss cc A high defawli risk.
C A very high defanit risk.
D Defaulted obligations.

Expected credit loss measnrement

IFRS 9 outlines n ‘three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as sumiarised
below:

- A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recopnition is classified in ‘Stage 1" and has its eredit risk
continuously monitored by the Banking Group.

- If a significan! increase in oredit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
*Stage 2’ bul is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

- 1f the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved 1o *Stage 3°,

- Financial instruments in Stage ! have their ECL. measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from defauit events possible within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL. measured based
on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

- A pervasive concept in measvring ECL in sccordance with IFRS 9 is that it shouid consider forward- looking information.

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit- impaired on initial
recagnition. Their ECL i$ always measured on a lifefime basis (Stage 3).

Further explanation is also provided of how the Banking Group deterntines appropriate groupings when ECL is measured on
a collective basis.
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44, Financial instruments (continied)
Siguificant increase in cpedit risk (SICR)

Tive Banking Group continzously monitors all assefs subject to ECLs. [n order o determine whether an instrument or a portfolio
of instruments is subject to twelve months expecied credit loss or lifetime expected credit loss, the Banking Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, The Banking Group has established a policy
to perform an asscssment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrament’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk is measured by comparing the risk of default cstimated at origination with the risk of default
at reporting date. The Banking Group also applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a sipnificant increase in credit
risk for an asset, such as moving a customer/facility to the watch lisi, or the account becoming forbome, Regardiess of the
change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 60 days past due in casc of corporate advances and 30 days past
due in case of retail advances and other financial assets subject to impairment, the credit risk is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial yecognition.

As per IFRS 9 there is a rebutlable presumption that the credit fisk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recogaition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, however the Banking Group has carried out sn analysis
of corporate advances whereby the Banking Group has monitored repayment behavior of those corporate customers who were
in the bucket of 30-60 days past due at any lime dusing the year ended 30 Junc 2015 and observed that majority of such
customers pay back before 90 days and therefore, do not ultimately fall under default category,

Definitian of defuilf and credit-impaired assets

The Banking Group considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-inipaired) for ECL caloulations in
all cases when the borrower becomes 96 days past due on its contraclual paymeonts or when the cufity is rated at CRR 10 or
above or CCC/ CC as at the assessmenl date. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a castomer is in default, the
Banking Grou p also considers a variely of instances that may indicate unlikefiness to pay. When such events occur, the Banking
Qroup carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the custonrer as defaulted and therelore assessed as Stage
3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate,

Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assnmptions and estimation technigres

"The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M)or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occumed since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected
credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure ai Default (EATY), and Loss Given Default
(LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD repseseunts the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation {as per "Definition of default and eredit-
impaired™ above), either aver the next 12 months (12M PD), or aver the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- The EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, considering expected changes in the exposure aller the
reporting date, including repayments of principel and interest, whether scheduled by contract or othenwise, expected
drawdowns on conumitted facilities, and acorued interest from missed paynents. The EAD represents the gross carrying amount
of the financial instraments subject to the impairment caloulation, addressing bath the client’s ability to incresse its exposure
while approaching defouit and potential early repayments too. The EADs are determined based on the expected payment
profife, which varies by product type. Far amortising products and bullet sepayment loans, this is bused on the contractual
vepayments owed by the borrower over the 12 months and lifetime basis. This is also adjusted for any overpayments made by
the borrower, For revolving products, the EAD is predicted by teking current drawn balance and adding a credit conversion
factor which allows for the expected drawdown of the remsining [limit by the time of defaull.

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument ualess the
Banking Group has the legal right to call it earlicr. The Banking Group's product oftfering includes a variety of corporate and
retail credil cards facilities, in which the Banking Group has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s
notice. However, in case of credit cards, the Banking Group does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice
period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Banking Group's expectations of the customer behaviour, its
likelihood of default and the Banking Group's future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling
the facilitics. Based on past experience and the Banking Group’s expectations, the period over which the Banlking Group
calculates ECLs for credit card, is till the date of validity of credit card.

To caloulate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Banking Group assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the
calculation of the 12 months ECL. For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for
events over the lifetime of the instruments,
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44, Financial instruments (continued)

- LOD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default ocours ot a given time. 1tis based an the difference between
the cantractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.
It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Barking Group calculates LGD rates and these LGD rates take into account the EAD for historieal poof of non-performing
loans in camparison lo the amount recovered or realised against such loans. In determining LGDs, the Barking Group considers
all eligible collateral provided the collateral can be legalfy enforced. Due fo the complexities involved regarding collateral
realisation and lack of historical experience to demonstrate recoveries through realisation of collaterals, the Banking Group
restriols the expected recoveries (to be considered in LGD computations) based on its historical recovery experiences.

LGDs for corporate and retail portfolio is calculated using the actual historical recoveries on its defaulted portfolio over a
period of at teast 5 years prior to the assessment date. The historical defaults are taken for the different vintages and the
recoveries are caloulated end discounted back for that particular vintage. The recovery period / crystallisation period is not
defined as such and wilt change based on the vintages taken,

LGDs for investment portfolio has been fixed at 45% as per the Basel guidelines. This approach is followed due o the
complexitics involved with respect to collateral realisation and lack of sufficient historical data points to demonstrate recoveries
through realisation of collateral.

PD, BAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure hias not prepaid or
defovlted in earfier year) on annual basis. This effectively calenlates an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted
back to the reposting date and summed. The discount rate used in ECL. computation is the original effcctive interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

Forward looking economic information is alse included in determining the 12 months and lifetime ECL. The Banking Group
has performed historical analysis and identified key sconomic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for exch portfolio. These
economic variables and their associated impact ou PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Experd judgement has also
been applied in this process. Forecast of these economic variables (the “base economic scenario®™) are obtained from extemal
sources on 8 quarcterly basis.

In addition to the base economic scenario, the management also estimate other possible scenarios along with scenarios
weighting. The scenario weighting is defermined by an expert credil judgement. As with any economic forecasts, the
prajections and likelihoods of the oceurrence are subject (o & high depree of inherent uncortainty and therefore the actual
onfcomes may be significantly different to those projected. The Banking Group considers these estimates of the possible
ouicomes. The Banking Gronp has used base, upside and downside scenarios for its ECL estimation.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the caleulation of ECL both incorporate forwvard-looking information. The Banking Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected credit losses for
each portfolio.

In its ECL modeis, the Banking Group relies on a range of forward looking information on a geographic regions basis with
economic inputs, such as:

- GDF growth

- Colysumer Price Index
- Export growth

- Unemploymnent

Analpsis of iuputs to the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios per geographic regions

To ensure completeness and accuracy, the Banking Group obtains the data used from third party sources i.e., publications of
International Monetary Fund and verifies the accuracy of inputs o the Banking Group® ECL models including determining the
weights attributable to the mliple scenarios. The following tables set out the key drivers of expected loss and the assumptions
used for the Bauking Group's base case estimate, ECLs based on the base case, plus the effect of the use of multiple economic
scenarios for cach of the geographical segments, as at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019,

The tables show the values of the key forward fooking economic variables/assumptions used in each of the economic scenarios
for the ECL calculations,
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44, Financlal instruments (continned)

Region Pakistan
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Consumer price index %

Volume of exports of goeds %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Unemployinent rates %

Consumer price indox %

Volume of exporis of goods %

Region United Kingdom
30 June 2019

Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

LECL
Scenarice

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Baose case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Ugpside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Dowaside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downstde

Assigned
Probabilities
%

3%
60%
353%

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

Assigned
Probabilitics
%

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
35%

5%
60%
5%

5%
60%
35%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

10%
80%
1%

Assigned
Probabilities
%%

10%
80%
10%

2019
%

3.5
29
23

9%
5.4

8.5
25
-3.5

2017
%

5.7
54
50

6.1
6.0
6.0

74
4.1
0.9

0.1
-35
0.1

2019
%

L7
i2
0.6

2017
%

Bestway Group Limited
Repistered number 1003305

Annual report and financial stalements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

2020 2021 2022 2023
% % % % -
34 3.4 33 3.2
23 2.8 27 26
2.2 2.2 2.1 2.0
92 7.2 7.2 7.2
7.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
4.8 2.8 28 2.8
123 249 94 8.5
6.3 3.9 34 2.5
03 -2.0 2.6 -34
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
6.1 43 3.8 kR
5.8 4.0 3.5 35
5.5 37 32 31
6.1 6.2 6.2 6.3
6.1 6.1 6.2 63
6.0 6.1 6.2 6.2
7.2 10.7 9.7 82
3.9 7.5 6.5 5.0
07 4.2 iz 1.8
15.5 17.2 133 10.2
118 13.6 9.7 6.5
8.2 99 6.0 29
2020 2021 2022 2023
% Y % %
20 2.1 2.1 22
1.4 1.5 i.6 1.6
0.8 1.0 1.0 1.0
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
1.8 19 2.0 2.0
14 1.5 1.5 1.6
0.9 1.0 i1 IN|
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44. Financtal instruments (confinued)

Region Switzerland

30 June 2015
Key drivers

GDP growth %

L July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

Region UAE
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

i July 2018
Koy drivers

GDP growth %

Region Bahrain
30 June 2019
Key drivers

GDP growth %

1 July 2018
Key drivers

GDP growth %

ECI,

Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL

Scenario

Upside
Base case
Dowuaside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

ECL
Scenario

Upside
Base case
Downside

Assigned
Probubilities
k3

10%
80%
10%

Assigned
Probabilities
%%

1.7
1.7
1.7

Assipned
Probabilitics
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%
40%
30%

Assigned
Probabilities
%

30%
A%
30%

2019
%

2017
%

35

2.6

2019
%

4.0

16

2018
%

3.2

2.2
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2020 2021 2022 2023
% % % %
2.1 232 23 22
1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
2018 2019 2020 2021
% % % %
23 2.2 2.0
1.8 17 1.7 1.7
L4 12 1.2
2000 2021 2022 2023
%o % % %
4.5 4.2 4.1 4.0
33 30 2.9 2.8
2.1 1.8 17 1.6
2019 2020 2021 2022
% % %% %
46 4.4 43 43
34 32 3.1 KN
22 20 1.9 1.9
2020 2021 2022
%o % %
2.5 2.5 2.6
35 3.5 36
1.5 i3 1.6
2019 2020 2021 2022
% % % %
2.6 2.5 5 2.6
3.6 35 3.5 3.6
1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instruments (continued)

Region Qatar

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and linancial statements
For the year ended 30 Jane 2019

30 June 2019
Key drivers LCL Assigned
Scenaric  Probabilities 2019 2020 2021 2022
% % Yo % %%
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 2.8 2.6 2.7 29
Base case 46% 4.0 38 39 4.1
Downside 30% 1.6 14 1.5 1.7
1 July 2018
Key drivers ECL Assigned
Secenario  Probabilities 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
% % % % %o %
GDP growth %
Upside 30% 2.7 28 2.6 2.7 29
Base case 40% 3.9 4.0 3.8 39 4.1
Dovwnside 30% 1.5 1.6 1.4 L5 1.7
Following tables outline the impact of multiple scenarios on the allawance:
Region -~ Pakistan
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instrumenis Lending  Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 10 23 160 7,200 - - 31 7 7431
Base caye (60%) 148 281 1916 89,441 - - 528 172 92486
Downside (35%) 105 164 1,118 55,165 - - 499 201 57,252
Total 263 468 3,194 151,806 “ - 1,058 380 157,169
1 July 2018
£000 Bebt
Balances Debt Instruments at  Lending Small
with other Instruments Amorlised and Business Consumer
banks at FVQCI Cost Advances Lending T.ending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 6 30 206 9,393 - - Gl 22 9,718
Base case (60%) 87 363 2471 117,797 - - 1,015 477 122216
Downside (35%) 65 212 1446 81872 . - 1,516 945 86,056
Total 158 605 4,129 209,062 - - 2,592 1444 217,990
Region - United Kingdom
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debtlnstruments at  Lending  Small
otherInstruments  Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending tnfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 9 848 - 1,007 - . . - 1,864
Base ease (60%4) 88 7,795 - 9,796 - - - - 175M9
Downside (35%) 13 1,126 - 1,478 - - - - 2,617
Total 110 9,769 - 12,281 - - - - 22160
1 Jnly 2018
£000 Balances Dcebt Debt  Lending  Smal
vith other Instruments Instruments at and Business Consumer
banks at FYOCIAmortised Cost Advances lending lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 164 303 2,684 - - - - 3,241
Base case (60%) 1 2,136 3,392 23,802 - - - - 29,331
Diownside (35%) - 426 468 3,323 - - - - 4,217
Total 1 2,726 4,253 29,809 - - - - 36,789
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44. Financial instruments (confinued)

Region - Switzerland
30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited
Repistered number 11003303

Annual report and financial statements
For the yeur ended 30 June 2019

£000 Balanc Debt
es with Debt Instruments Lending  Small
other Instroments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FYOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Totat
Upside (5%) I3 - 275 5 - - - - 293
Base case (60%) 215 - 2,574 57 - - - - 2,846
Downside {35%6) 53 - 375 11 - - - - 439
Total 281 - 3,224 73 - - - - 3,578
L July 2018
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments at  Lending  Small
otherlnstruments at ~ Amortised and Business Consumer
bauks FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 7 - 10 32 - - - - 49
Base case (60%) 138 - 116 315 - - - - 569
Downside (35%) 38 - 20 48 - - . - 106
Tatal 183 - 146 395 - - - - 724
Region - Qatay
30 Juzie 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt Instruments Lending  Small
othey Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks at FYOCI Cost Advances Lending  Lending Unfunded Acceptances Totnl
Upside (5%) - 50 129 12,521 - - 68 - 12,768
Base case (60%) - 67 172 16,694 - - 91 - 17,024
Downside (33%) - 50 129 12,521 - - 68 - 12,768
Total - 167 430 41736 - - 227 - 42,560
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt[nstrumonts at  Lending Simalt
other Instruments  Amortised aud Business Consumer
banks  at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending  Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 147 49 3414 - - 20 - 3.630
Base case (60%) - 195 65 4,553 - - 27 - 4,840
Dowaside (35%) - 147 49 3,414 - - 20 - 3,630
Total - 489 163 11,381 - - 67 - 12,100
Region - Bahrain
30 June 2019
£000 Balances Debt
with Debt  Instruments Lending Small
other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer
banks af FVOCI CostAdvances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) - 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1,446
Base case (60%) - 464 165 1,154 - - 144 - 1,927
Downside {35%) - 348 124 866 - - 108 - 1,446
Total - 1,160 A3 2888 - - 360 _ 4K19
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44, Financial insteuments (confinued)
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Aunual report and financial statements
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1 July 2018
£000 Debt
Balances Debt Tnustruments Lending  Smafl
with other Instruments at at Antortised and Business Consumer

banks FvOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfinded Acceptances  Total
Upside (5%) - 370 92 878 - - 54 - 1,394
Base case (60%) - 493 122 1171 - - 72 - 1,858
Downside (35%) - 370 92 878 - - 54 - 1,394
Total - 1,233 306 2927 - - 180 - 4646
Region - UAE
30 June 2019
£000 Debt

Balances Debt Instrumenis Lending  Small
with other Instruments at Amortised and Business Consumer

bunks  at FVOCI Cost Advances Lending Lending UnfundedAcceptances  Total
Upside (5%) 72 854 [,654 55386 . - 238 - 58204
Base case (60%) 103 1,220 2,256 74,166 - - 352 - 78097
Downside 83 985 1,738 55,902 - - 303 - 539011
(35%)
Total 258 3,059 5,648 185,454 “ - 893 - 195,312
1 July 2018
£000 Balances Debt Debi  Lending Small

with other Instruments Instruments at and Business Consviner

banks at FVOCIAmortised Cost Advances Lending Lending Unfunded Acceptances Total
Upside (5%) 133 583 1,566 49,483 - - 785 - 52,550
Bage caso (60%) 178 84] 2,125  e6ded - - 1,447 - 71,055
Downside {35%) 133 686 1,627 50272 - - 1,530 - 54248
Total 444 2,110 5318 166,219 - - 3,762 ~ 177,853

Groaping of instruments for losses measured on a collective basis

"For expected credit Joss provisions modelled on & coflective basis, & grouping of exposures is perforined on the basis of shared
risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous. In porforming this grouping, there must be
sufficient information for the group fo be statistically credible. Where sufficient information is not available intemally, the
Banking Group has considered benchmarking intemal / external supplementary data to use for modelling purposes. The

characterstios and any supplementsry data used to determine groupings are outlined below:

Regjion - Pakistan
~Obligors Risk Rating

L

Corporate, Commercial and SME

Retail

-Product Basis

(Personal Loans, Auto Loans, Credit Cards, Agricultural Loans and

House Loans)

Switzerland
Corporate
L-Extemai Ratings

Region - United Kingdom and

Consumer Loans
-Individuals

Retail Exposure
|_-Obligors Risk Rating

Region - UAE, Qatar and Bahrain

Non-Reftail Exposure
~Individuals
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Notes (continied)

44, Financial insfruments {continned)

Exposure {a credif risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk - Financial instraments subject to impairment

The analysis of the credit risk exposure of financial instruments for which an ECL allowance is recagnised is disclosed in their
respective notes. The gross catrying amount of these financial assets also represents the Growp's maximum cxposure to credit
risk on these assets. Tho disclosure is in the notes as per the following:

Financial Assets Note reference
Lending to financial institutions and advances 31
Investments in financial assets 29
Off balance sheet obligations 34
Cash end cash equivalents 3z

Maximum exposure to credit visk - Financial instraments not subject to impairmeit

The follewing information lists the maxinum credit risk exposure from financial assets not subject to impairment:

Maximum

Exposure to

Risk

£000

Drebt investments at fair value through profit and loss 663,215
Equity investinents- Initially designated at fair vaive through profit and loss 72,214

Equity investments- Initially designated at fair value through OCI 6,305
: 741,734

Collateral und other credit enltancements

The umount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the eredit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in
place covering tlie acceptability and valuation of sach type of collateral.

The main types of collateral obtained are, as follows:

Exposure Collateral
Securities lending and

yeverse repuichase Cash or scaurities.
transactions

Corparate and small
business lending
Retail lending Mortgsages over residential properies, charge over vehicles and cash collaterals.

Charges over real estate properties, govemment guarantees, cash or other liquid collalerajs.

The tables below show the maximum exposure to coredit risk by class of financial asset. They also show the total fair value of
collatera!l and the net exposures to credit risk.
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44. Financial instrunents (continwed)

Type of Collateral and Credit Enhancement
Fair Value of Collateral and Enhancements held

Bostway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

30 June 2019
Maximuni
oXposure
to credit Government Total Net Associated
In £000 risk  Cash Securities puaranices Real Estate Others Coliateral Exposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 210 - - - - - - 210 i
Loans and
Advances 1o 3,780 H 14 784 244 29 1,177 2,603 409
Cusiomers
Lending to
Financial 109 - - - - - - 109 -
institutions
4,089 106 14 784 244 29 1,177 2,922 410
Debt
instruments at 1,543 - 2 75 - - 77 1,465 13
amortised cost
Total fingncia}
assots at 5,642 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 4,388 423
amortised cost
Debt
instrumeirts at 2,132 - - - - . - 2,132 15
fair value ’
through OCI
7,774 106 16 859 244 29 1,254 6,520 438
Other
commitments 1920 56 - T 1 N 57 1,863 2
9,694 162 16 859 245 29 1,311 8,383 440
Fair Value of Collateral and Enhancements held
30 June 2018
Maximum
exposure to Govemment Total Net Associated
In £000 credit risk  Cash  Securities  puarantoces  Real Estate  Others  Collateral Exposure ECL
Balances with
Other Banks 153 ° - B B ) B 153 !
Loans and
Advances to 3,817 132 9 1,029 294 34 1,498 2,319 338
Customers
Lending to
Financial 215 - - - - - - 215 4
institutions
4,185 132 9 1,029 294 34 1,498 2,687 343
Debt
instruments at 1,643 - } 56 - - 57 1,588 11
amortised cost
Total finnpcial
assets at 5,830 132 10 1,085 204 34 1,555 4,275 354
amortised cost
Debt
in_stmments at 2182 B . _ - . - 2,182 6
fair value :
through OCI
BOIZ 132 10 1,085 294 34 1,555 6457 360
Other 1956 34 . ; 6 27 67 1,889 6
commtitinents
9,968 166 1 1,085 300 61 1,622 8,346 366
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Notes (continued)
44, Financial instrumnents (continued)

Loss allowance

- Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due 1o financial instruments experiencing significant increases (or
decreases) of credil risk or becomitig credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or “stop down™)
between 12-nonth and Life

- Additional allowaneos for new financial instruments recognised during the periad, as well a5 releases for financial
instruments de-recognised in the period,

- lmpact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular
refreshing of inputs to models; .

- Impacts on the measurement of ECL. due to changes made to models and assumptions;

- Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured on a present value basis,

- Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign currencies and other inovements; and

- Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances relaied to Assets thai were wrilten off
during the period.

The changes in the loss allowanco betiveen the beginning and the end of the annual periods due to the sbove factors and the
significant changes in the gross carrying amount of financial assets that contributed to changes in the loss allowance is disclosed
in their respective notes as follows:

Financial assets Nate reference

Lending {o finauncial institutions and advances 31

Tavestments in financial assets 20

Off balance sheet obligations 34
Write off palicy

The Banking Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has
concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (ii} where (he Banking Group’s recovery method is loreclosing on colfateral and
the value of the collateral is such fhat there is no reasonable expectation of recovering (he residual exposure
in full.
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (consinied)
(g) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to movements in market prices. It results
from changes in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices as well as from changes in the correlations between then:. Each
of theso components of market risk consists of a general market risk and a spevific market risk that is driven by the nature and
composition of the port{clio.

Measuring and controlling market risk js nsually carried out at a porifolio level. However, certain controls are applied, where
necessary, to individual risk Lypes, to particular books and to specific exposures. Controls arc also applied to provent any undue
risk concentrations in trading books, taking into account variations in price, volatility, market dopth and liguidity. These
controls include Hmits on exposure to individual market risk variables as well as fimits on concentrations of tenors and issuers.

Trading activities are cantered i the Treasary and Capilal Markets Grounp which facilitates clients and also runs proprictary
positions. The Group is active in the cash and derivative markets for equity, interest rate and foreign exchange,

The Market and Treasury Risk division performs markel risk management activities. Within this division, the Market Risk
Management unit is responsible for the development and roview of market risk policies and processes, and is involved in
research, financial modelling and testing / iinplementation of risk management systems, while Treasury Middle Office is
responsible for implementation and monitoring of market risk and other policies, escalation of deviations lo scnior
management, and management information system reporting.

The functions of the Market Risk Management unit are as follows:

» o keep the market risk exposure within the Group’s risk appetite as assigned by the Board of Directors.
to develop, review and nupgrade procedures for the effective implementation of market risk management policies approved
by the Board of Directors.

* toreview new product proposals and propose / recommend / approve procedures for the management of their market risk,
Various limits are assigned to different businesses on A product/portfolio basis. The products are approved through product
programs, where risks are identified, and limits and parameters are sct. Any transactions / products falling outside these
product pregrams are approved through separats transaction / product memos.

+ {0 maintain 8 comprehensive database for performing risk analysis, Siress testing and scenario analysis. stress testing
activities aro performed on a quarterly basis on both the Banking and Trading books.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign Exchange Risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluchate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. Expostires are monitored by currency fo ensure that they remain within the established limits for each currency.
Exposures are also monitored on au overall basis te ensure compliance with the Group’s SBP approved Foreign Exchange
Exposure Limit for Banking Group.

The Banking Group is an active participant in the cash and derivatives markets for currencies and carries currency risk fram
these trading activities, conducted primarily by the Treasury and Capital Markets Group (TCM). These trading exposures are
monitored through prescribed stress tests and sensitivity analyses.

Tie Banking Group's local reporting currency is the Pakistan Rupee, but its assets, liabilifies, income and expenses are

denominated in multiple currencies and converted to Pakistani Rupee. From time to time, TCM proactively hedges foreign
currency exposures resulting from its market making activities, subject to pre-defined limits,

118



Bestway Group Limited

Registered mrmber 11003303

Annual report and financial statensents
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

44. Financial instruments fcontinuned)

Off- MNet Net
balance currency Off-balance currency
Assets  Liabilities shectitems exposure Assets  Liabililies sheetitems  exposure
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £006 £000

Pakistan
Rupoe 7,502,677 (6,423,993) (347,769) 730,915 9,359,240 (8,101,010) (300,974) 967,256
US Dollar 1,198,181  (882,273) (311,888) 4,020 1,570,243 (991,339) (599,793)  (20,889)
gf’;:.}'iig 332,958  (350,052) 94,045 76,951 274,750 (327,734) 129,260 76,276
if;?““e 207 30 an 85 157 (40) 0] 43
Euro 19,506  (49,558) 30,180 128 31,833 (82,175) 51,304 962
UAE Dirham 596,675 (L,048,688) 446,218  (5,795) 598766 (1,211,324) 612011 (547)
B?I'l‘;f"“ 66,056  (129,054) 63,315 317 73,090 (140,720) 69,999 2,369
Qatari Riyal 112,176 (149,090} 35506 (1,408) 151,047  (176,931) 22518 (3,3G6)

Other

Curroncies 91,440  (33,661) (9,535) 48,244 113,796 92,183) 15,749 37,362
9,919,876  (9,066,419) - BS3457 12,182,922 (11,123,456) - 1,039,466

Sensitivity analysis

The cifeet of different levels of impact in the exchange rates would have following impact on the equity of the Banking Group.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remam constant.

Magnitde of impact (%) 20% 30% 50%
Net foreign impact (£Emillion) 122.54 122.54 122.54
Loss on exchange rate change (£ miliion) {24.51) (36.76) 61.27)
Tax adjusted toss (£ million) (14.95) (22.43) (37.38)

() Equity position risk

Equity position risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrament will fluetnate due to changes in the prices of indjvidual
stocks or the levels of equity indices. The Bank’s equity book comprises of FVYPL and FVOCI porifolios. The objective of the
FVPL porifolio is to make shori-texm capital gains, whilst the FYOCI portfolio is maintained with a medium-term view of
earning both capital gains and dividend income, Praduct program manuals heve been developed to provide guidelines on the
abjectives and policies, risks and mitigants, limits and coutrols for the equity partfolias of the Group.

2019
£000
Impact of 5% change in equity prices on,
Income statement
+5% change 3,611
-5% change (3,611)
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (coutinned)

(i) Yield / interest rish

Mismatch of interest rate sensitive avsets and liabilities

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value of a finansial instrument will fluctuate asa result of changes in interest rates, including
changes in the shape of yield curves. Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses and arises from mismatches
between the contrectal malurities or the re-pricing of on and off-balance sheet assets and liabilities. The interest rate seasitivity

profile is prepared on a quarterly basis based on the re-pricing or contractual maturities of assets and liabilities,

Interest rate risk is monitored and managed by performing periodic gap analysis, sensitivity analysis and stress testing and
taking appropriate actions where required.

‘The table below discloses the mismatch between contractual maturities and re-pricing of cash flows of on assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position:

Non-interest-

Over 1 Qver 2 bearing
On balance sheet Lifective yicld Uptoi yearto2 yearstoS  Over$5 financial
financial instruments / interest rafe Total year years years years  instruments
2019 20612 2019 2019 2019 2019
%o £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Cesh and balances with 0.50%-0.90% 1336340 287,005 - - - 1,049335
treasury banks
Lending to financial 5.60%-10.50% 108907 107,172 - 1,735 - -
institutions
Investimients 7.30%-870% 4,403,269 2,548,186 330,542 804,726 605,869 113.9406
Advances 6.30%-9.60% 3370900 3,245,726 5,858 21,663 26,770 70,892
Other assets 202,816 - - - - 202,816
0422241 6,183,080 336,400 828,124 632,639 1,436,989
Liabilities
Biils payable 143,886 - - - - 143,886
Borrowings 3.40%-4.60% 1,143,559 995,093 113,342 - - 35,124
Deposils and other
ACCOURS 2.50%-4.30% 7,408,801 3,964,901 126,871 70,170 77,570 3,109,289
Subordinated Debt 10.20%-12.10% 49,202 48,152 - - - 1,050
Payable to investors of _ _ : B
UBL Funds 9,536 9,536
Other lisbilities 198,245 20,094 - - - 178,151
8,953,229 5,037,776 240,213 70,170 77,570 3,527,500
On balunce sheet gap 469,012 1,150,313 96,187 757,954 555,069 (2,090,511)
Net non-financial assets 384,442
Tatal net asscis 853,454
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44. Financial instruments (continied)

Off-balance sheet
financial instruments

Tuterest rate long
derivatives

Interest rute short
derivalives

Cross currency long swap
Cross currency short swap
Foreign currency forward
purchases

Foreign currency forward
sales

FX options - purchased
FX options - sold

Forward purchase of
government scourities
Forward sale of government
securities
Off-balance sheet gap

Total yield / interest rate risk sensitivity gap

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305
Ansnual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Cum yield / Interest rate risk sensitivity gap -

On bafance sheel financial
instruments

Assets

Cash and balances with
treasury banks

Balances with other banks
Lending to financial
institutions

investinents

Advances

Other assefs

Liabilities

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Liabilitics against assets
subject fo finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL
funds

Other liabilities

On balance sheet gap
Net non-finaucial assets

Total net assets

Fairr Notional Non-intoress-
value value Total Exposed fo yield / interest rate bearing
financial
Upto 1 year 1-2years 2-5years >5years instruments
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £6000 £000 £000 £000
1,524 - 1,524 . - .

(96) 1,524
(1,524) (1,524) - - - .
2,055,005 2,055,005 - - - - 2,055,005

34,281

(1,740,420) (1,740,420) - - - - (1,740,420)
4,038 4,038 - - - - 4,038
(4,038)  (4,038) - - - . (4,038)
158 382,280 382,280 - - - - 382,280
696,865 (1,524) 1,524 - - 696,865
1,165,874 1,148,789 97,711 757,954 555,069 (1,393,649
1,148,789 1,246,500 2,004,454 2,559,523 1,165,874
Nop-interest
Over 2 bearing
Effective yield / Upto ] Over 1 year vyearsto5  Over$ financial
interest rate Total year to 2 years yoars years instruments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
0.07% 1,030,647 58,803 - - - 971,844
3% 197,368 104,991 - - - 92377
5% 272,545 256,493 5,942 10,110 - -
7% 5,304,883 2,439,158 901,233 1,064,381 733,301 165,810
6% 4,598,032 4,422,384 44,613 64,308 49,859 16,868
- 242,237 - - - - 242,237
11,645,712 7281829 951,788 |[,138,799 783,160 1,490,136
- 96,844 - - - - 96,844
5% 1,865,759 1,706,042 132,192 23,811 - 3,714
3% 8,683,802 4,668,787 56,378 72,625 906,127 3,789,945
3% 75 75 - - . .
- 7,487 7,487 - - - -
- 423,755 - - - - 423,755
11,077,782 6,382,391 188,570 96436 96,127 4,314,258
567,930 899,438 763,218 1,042,363 687,033 (2,824,122)

491,536
1,059,466
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Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments ¢eonfinned)

Off-balance sheet financial Fair  Notional - . . Non-interest
mstruments value value Total Exposed to yield / interest rate bearing
financial
o}l - ] - ¥ .
Upito I year 1-2 years 2-5 years > 35 years istruments
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £009 £000 £000 £000 £000
interest rate long
derivatives 18,212 18212 B B ° -
Interest rate short 163 18212 18212 18212
derivatives (18,212) (18,212) i - ) )
Cross eurrency tong swap - - - - - -
Cross cusrency short swap - - - - - _
Foreign curency forward 1,794,251 1794251  1,794251 - . - .
purchases 6.009
Foreign currency forward (1,503,421)(1,503,421) (1,503,421) - - - -
FX options - purchased ) 683 683 683 - - - -
FX options - sold (683) (083) (683) - - - -
Fonwvard purchase of
Govemment securities @4 6,552 6,552 6,352 B . B )
Forward sale of ) )
Govemment seciirities ) ° j ) } )
Off-balance sheet gap 297,382 297,382 - - - -
Total yield / interest rate risk sensitivity gap 865,312 1,196,820 763,218 1,042,363 687,033  (2,824,122)
Cum yield / inleres! rais risk sensitivity gap - 1,196,820 1,960038 3,002,401 3,689434 865,312

Sensitivity analysis

The effect of different levels of impact in the interest rate applicable as of the balance sheet date would have following impact
on the equity of the Group. This analysis assumes that atl other variables remain constant. This analysis is performed at Group
level.

Mapnitude of impact (%) 2% 3% 4%
Total assets of the Bank - (£ million) 1,169 1,169 1,169
Net fall in market value of equity - (£ miltion} 23 (35) 47N
Tax Adjusted Loss - (£ million) (14) @D 29)
(%) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Banking Group may be unable to meef its obligations or to find increases in assets as they
fall due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses.

The Assets and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Banking Group is responsible for the oversight of liquidity
management and meets on a monthly basis or more frequently, if required,

The Banking Group's approach to liquidity management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity (o meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptabic fosses or
risking sustained damage to business franchisos. A centralised approach is adopted, based on an integrated framework
incorporating an assessment of all material known and expected cash flows and the availability of collateral which could be
used 1o secure additional fmding if requived. The framework entails careful monitoring and control of the daily Equidity
position, and tegular ligquidity stress tosting under a variety of scenarios. These encompass both normal and stressed merket
conditions, mcluding general market crises and the possibility that access to markets could be impacted by a stress event
affecling some past of the Banking Group’s business.
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Maturities of assets and labilities - based on contractual muturity of the assets and liabilities of the Banking Group

The maturity profile presented below has been prepared on the hasis of contractual maturities, except for products that do not
have a contractual maturity which are shown in the first bucket.

30 June 19

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lending to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Other financial assets

Liabilities

Bills payabie

Boirowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-prdinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL Funds

Other financinl liabilities

Net inflow / (outflow)

30 June 2018

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lending to financial instilutions
Investments

Advances

Other financial assets

Liabilities

Biils payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounls

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Payable to investors of UBL Funds

Other financial liabilities

Net inflow / (outflow)

Over 2

Carrying Over 1 year yearsto$S
amount Up to 1 year to 2 years vears Over 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £600
1,126238 1,126,288 - - -
210,053 210,053 - - -
108,907 98,372 - 10,535 -
4,403,268 2,460,549 363,437 698,579 880,703
3,370,909 1,665,740 216,926 731,213 757,030
384,930 360,488 - - 24,442
9,604355 5921490 580,363 1,440,327 1,662,175
143,886 143,886 - - -
1,141,474 967,260 63,641 12,494 98079
7,408,801 7,109,108 141,890 137,178 20,625
49,202 - - - 49,202
9,536 9,536 - - -
313,521 282,368 21,154 - 9,999
8922534 8368272 226685 149,672 177,905
681,821 (2,446,782) 353,678 1,290,655 1,484,270

Carrying Over 1 year Over 2 years
amount Up to 1 year to 2 years to 5 years Over 5 years
£000 £600 £000 £000 £000
1,030,647 1,030,647 - - -
197,368 197,368 - - -
272,544 214,166 18,754 38,423 1,201
5,279,651 2,387,013 860,545 1,172,906 859,187
4,598,030 2,433,499 497,384 959,025 708,122
452,347 426,251 - - 26,096
11,830,587 6688944 1376683 2,170,354 1,594,606
96,844 96,344 - - -
1,900,169 1,734,563 380 46,111 119,115
8,741,127 3,205,299 205,479 288,274 42,075
7,487 7487 - - R
377,830 289,586 26,201 - 62,043
11,123,457 10,333,779 232,060 334,385 223,233
707,130 (3,644,835) 1,144,623 1,835,969 1,378,373

123




Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Aasmnual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Notes (continued)

44, Financial instruments (confinned)
D Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequale or failed intemal processes, people and systems or from external
cvents.

The Operational Risk Division of the Groug is primarily respensible for the oversight of operational visk management across
the Banking Group. The operational risk management framework of the Banking Group is governed by the Operational Risk
Management Policy and Procedurcs, while the implementation is supperted by an operational risk management system and
designated operatjonal risk coordinators within different units ncross the Gronp. The framework is in fine with intemational
best practices, Jexible enough to implement in stages and pormits the overall appreach to evolve in response to organisational
learning and future requirements,

Lass data, collected through a well-defined program, is evainated and processes are reviewed for improvements in mitigation
techniques. Periodic workshops are condneted for Risk & Control Self-Assessment and key risk exposures are identified and
assessed against exisling controls to evaluate improvement oppormnities. Key Risk Indicators are also defined for monitoring
of risk exposures,

Business Continuity Plans have been implemented across the Banking Grounp, cleardy defining the roles and responsibilities of
respecfive stakelolders, and covering recovery strategy, IT and structura) backups, scenario and impact analyses and testing
directives. The outsourcing policy has also been auginented 1o address risks associated with such arrangements.

() Capital risk management

Capital is held to protect the Banking Gronp's banking business's (UBL) depositors, cover inherent risks, provide a cushion
for stress events and fo support the business strategy. In assessing the adequacy of capital resources, UBL considers its business
plan, risk appetite, the material risks to which i1 is exposed, and the appropriate strategies required to manage those risks.

UBL 1s commitied to maintaining a strong capital base under both existing and future regulatory requirements. The strength of
its capital base is dependent upon the size of its capital relative to Risk Weighted Assets.

UBL prepares a Capital Adequacy Assessment Process document that sets out how it identifies and manages the key risks lo
which it is exposed and details its capital requirements, capital resources and capital adequacy over the planning period,
including under stress scenarios. This process is used to ensure that it applies appropriate management buffers to reguiatory
capital requirenients in line with risk appetile. In order to appropriately monitor and manage the Bank’s capital resources, UBL
produces tegular reports on the current and forecasted level of eapital for the Board and the shareliolders. The key assumptions
and risk drivers used to create the stress tests arc regularly monitored and reparted and are used in determining how it will
ovolve its capital resources and ensure they ave appropriate for growth.

The Banking Group’s insurance business’s (UIL) objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continuc as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to mainfain a
sirong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

UIL manages its capital structure by monitering retum on net assets and makes adjustments to it i the light of changes in
economic conditions.

In accordance with Insurance Rules, 2017 issued by the Seeurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP} vide SRO
89(1)/2017, minimum paid-up capital requirement to be complied with by Insurance / Takaful companies as at 31 December
2017 and subsequent year is PKR 500 million (£2.4 miltion). As at June 2019 UIL’s paid-up capital of PKR 1,152 million
(£5.6 million) was in excess of the prescribed limit.
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45, Subscquent events {continued)

After the year end, Bestway Cement Limited declared and paid £8.6 million in dividends for the quarter ended 30 June 2019.
United Bank Limited declared and paid £14.7 million in dividends for the quaiter ended 30 June 2019.

There have been no other subsequent events which would have a maierial effect on the Group's financial statewents at 30 June
2019,

46. Share capital

2019 2018
£000 £000
Authorised:
£,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 cach 10 10
Allotted, called up and fully paid:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 10 10

On 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share for the year ended 30
Junc 2018. This is in addition to the £6.00 per share interim dividend declared and paid on 21 May 2018 for the year ended 30
June 2018. Together, this dividend totalied £10 million. No dividend has yet been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019.

47. Non-controlling interest

Total

£000
Balance at 1 July 2017 720,113
Share of total comprehensive income for the year (24.491)
Payment of dividends (53,595)
Repurchase of own shares (1
Balance at 30 June 2018 T 642,017
Change in accounting policy (29,361
Balance at 30 June 2018 (resiated) 612,656
Share of total comprehensive incame for the year (38,515)
Payment of dividends 46,2113
Change in non-controlling interest 15
Issuance and repurchase of units 1,191
Balance at 30 Junc 2019 525,106

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set aut below, The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

2019 2018

£000 £0060
Bestway Cement Limited
Current assets 72487 120,070
Non-current assets 379,684 470,683
Currenl lisbilities (119,099) (165,164)
Non-current liabilities (50,972) (93,982)
Equily attributable to owners of the Company (282,500) (331,607)
United Bank Limited
Currend assets 5,988,615 6,689,189
Non-cumrent assets 3,929,273 5,513,783
Current fiabilities (8,512,158) (10,333,779)
Non-current fiabilities {554,263) (789,677
Equity attributsble to owners of the Company (823,723) (1,045,844)
Non-controlling interests @7,744) (33,672)
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48, Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and wholly owned subsidiaries are not required to be disclosed in accordance
with IAS 24. Transactions between the Group and related parties are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions witl: related parties:

Purchase of goods
2019 2018
£000 EGOG
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 2,431 2,766
Total 2,431 2,766
MNet jnferest veceivable
2019 2018
£000 £000
Buybest Limited - 27
Total - 27

The following amounts were outstanding at the balance sheel date:

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to
related partics related patties
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Map Rice Mill (Pvt) limited 182 549 167 -
Buybest Limited 560 1,035 - 51
Total . 742 [,584 167 51

Buybest Limited is a related party of the Group because certain Directors of Bestway Group Limited are also Directors of this
Company. MAP Rice Mill (Pvt) Limited is a related parfy of the Group because it shares common shareholders with MAP
Trading Limited.

Sales and purchases of goods between related parlies are oither done so at cost or ul cost plus a mark-up 1o cover administrative
expenses. The amounts payable or receivable or interest free are unsecured and will be settled in cash.

49. Remuneration of Direcfors and Key Management Personnel

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of Directers of the Group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related
Party Disclosures.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 10,628 6,453
Contribution to money purchase pension scheme 56 204

12,363 6,657

The above remuneration relates to 6 directors (2018: 6 directors), 2 of these direciors did not receive any emoluments for their
services to the Group.

The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid Director in the
Group was £6.8 million (2018: £1.8 million).

Post-employment benefits are acoruing for 6 (2018: 6) directors under the money purchase schemes,
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43, Remuneration of Key Management Personmel and Directors (continued)

Aggregate key management personnel remuneration

The remuneration of key management personncl and Directors of the Group, is set cut below in aggregate for each of the
categories specified in IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures.

2019 2018

£006 £000

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 19,596 20514
Contribution to money purchase pension schenre 431 356
Contribution to graluity fund pensian scheme 3,038 37
23,065 20,907

Key management personuel are considered as such as they are instrumental in planning, directing and controlling activitics of
the Group.

Other transacfions with Directors

On 4 April 2017, Bestway Northem Holdings Limited acquired a 74% share of Oakleaf Limited, with the consideration being
setisfied via the issue of 57,662,428 preference shares with par value of £1 per share and a coupon rale of 6%, with interest
being paid quarterly over 10 years. The shareholders are glso Directors of Bestway Group Lintited and the outstending balance
of redesmable prefercnce shares shown as non-current liabitities is as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Sir MA Pervez 37,403 37,403
Lord ZM Choudrey 10,130 10,130
MY Bheikh 10,130 10,130

57,663 57,663

Dividends payable in the year on these preference shares is as follows:

2012 2018
£000 £000
Sir MA Pervez 2,244 2.244
Lord ZM Choudrey 608 608
MY Sheikh 608 608

3460 3,460

The Banking Gronp has ceriain related party transactions with the Company’s Directors and details of these
transactions is piven below,

Deposits Interest Interest
Advances tsken payable Netincome expense
£000 £000 £000 X000 £090

Year ended 30 Junc 2019
Details of transactions with thesc Direclors is as . 47,128 361 R 118

follows

Interest Interest
Advances Deposits peyable Netincome exponse
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Yenr ended 30 Junc 2018
Details of transactions with these Directors is as 4 25,519 43 ) 1,183

follows

During the year no shares of UBL were sold by the Company’s Directors and 85,000 additional shares were purchased.
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49. Remunerntion of Key Management Personnel andd Divecters (continued)

The current Directors of the Company and their immediate refatives control 100% (2018: 100%) of the vating sharcs of 1he
Company.

During the year under review, Bestway Foundation provided in excess of £225,000 (2018: £200,000) in grants to studeats of
South Asian origin to attend a number of universities in the United Kingdom. In addilion, Bestway Foundation donated over
£240,000 (2018: £185,000) to niue charities in the UK, mcluding amongst others, Tle Duke of Edinburgh Award,
Crimestoppers and Groeery Aid.

50. Priot year adjustments
Trading Group

Following the purchase of Bargain Boaze Lid by the Group an exercise has been performed 1o assess if the original fair values
on the opening statement of financial position have been changed. It has been concluded by management that these changes
arc materigl resulting in & restatement of the consolidated statemen! of financial position and income statement for the year
ended 30 June 2018. Distribution expenses have also been reclassified from administrative expenses to reflect the correct
classification of these transactions, The following line items in the financial statements have beer amended as loliows;

Extract of consoliduted income statement and consolidated statement of compreliensive income for the year to 30 June 2018
restated (due fo prior year adjustments)

Movement due to
Original rostatement Restated
Trading Total| Trading Total{ Trading Tatal
Group Combined| Group Combined Group Combined
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Distribution expenses (10,933) (10,933)] (3,013  (3,013) (13,946) {13,946)
Adminisirative expenses (386,616) (721,552) 3,887 3,887] (382,729} (723,665)
Total aperating profit 115,685 353,841 874 874 116,559 354,715
Underlying Profit before fax 93,771 331,927 874 874 94,645 332,801
Adjusting items:
Gain on acquisition (see note viit) 20,360 203601 (13,204}  (13,204) 1,156 7,156
Profit before tax 114,131 295,817| (12,330) (12.330) 101,801 283,487
Profit for the year 85531  213,532] (12330) (12,330) 73200 201202
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 50,882 123,3504 (12,330) (12,330) 38,552 111,020
Non-controlling interests 34,649 89,960 - - 34,649 8%.960
Investors of UBL funds - 222 - - - 222
Profit for the year 85,531 213,532} (12,330) (12,330) 73,201 201,202
Other comprebensive income for the year (52,275) (253,722) - - (52,275) (253,722)
Total comprehensive income for the year 33256 (40,190} 12,330y (12,330) 20,926 {52,520)
Total comprehensive income atfributable to:
Owners of the Company 24,479 (15,699 (12,330) (12,330) 12,149 (28,029)
Non-controlling interests 8,777 (24,491) - - 8,777 (24,491}
Total comprehensive income for the year 33,256 I (40,190} (12,330) (#2,330) 20,926 (52,524)
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50. Prior year adjustments {continucd)

Extract of ¢ lidated stat f of financial position as at 30 June 2018 rvestated (diee to prior year adjustments)
Note Original Movement duc Restated
1o restatement
£000 £0Q0 £000
Non-current assetfs
Trading Group
Gther intangible assets i 436,835 (4,614 432,221
Property, plant aind equipment it 689,445 (8,428) 681,017
T'otal non-current assets 6,919,614 (13,042) 6,906,572
Current assets
Trading Group
Inventories ifi 330,330 (1,544) 328,786
Cash at bank and in hand v 169,887 234 170,121
Total current assets 7,480,256 (1,310) 7,478,946
Total assets 14,399,870 (14,352} 14,385,518
Current liabilities
Trading Group
Trade and other payables ¥ 582,582 182 582,764
Provisions vi 22,715 (127 22,588
Total current liabitities 11,178,632 55 11,178,687
Non-current liabilities
Trading Group
Deferred tax liabilitics vii 131,121 (2,077 129,044
Total non-current Habilities 1,280,705 2,077 1,278,628
Total liabilities 12,459,337 (2,022) 12,457,315
Total net assets 1,940,533 (12,330) 1,928,203
Equity
Retained earnings wiff 673,897 (12,3303 661,567
Lquity ativibutable to owners of the Company 1,940,533 (12,330} 1,928,203
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50. Prior year adjustments (continued)
Noftes relating to prior year adjustinents

i Intangible assefs

An adjustment of £4.6 million was made fo the provisional fair value of inlangible assets that arose principally from software
being stated in excess of its fair value.

i, Property, pluny and equipnient

Following acquisition, a full review of property, plant and equipment was undertaken which identified that the fair vatue of a
number of assets had been overslated and that asset decommissioning costs had been omitted from the provisional fair values,

The net adjusiment to finalise the fair values led to a reduction of £8.4 million in the provisional fair value of property, plant
and equipment.

iii. Inventories
An adjustment of £0.8 million was made to inveatory to goods supplied to the business under retention of title clauses which

were subsequently enforced by the supplier. In addition to this there was a further adjustment to increase the level of mventory
provisions by £0.7 million. The total impact of these adjustments was io reduce the fair value of inventories by £1.5 miflion.

iv. Cash af bark and in hand
An adjustment of £0.2 million was made to restate the cash balance,

v. Trade and ather payables

Trade payable related fo provisions on the opening batance has had the ir value reasscssed and increased the provision by
£0.1 million.

vi. Provisions

A net adjustment of £0.} million was wmade to restate the fair value of the dilapidations provision as the provisional amount
was not sufficient to cover the potential liability,

vt Deferred tax
The deferred tax liability was restated by £2.1 million as a resull of the finalisation of the fair value of net assets acquired.
This principally arises fron the adjustment made to intangible assets and property plant and equipment.

viii. Adjusting items
As aresult of the [air value adjustments made fo intangible assels and property, plant and equipment there was a reduction in
ameortisation and depreciation expenses tofalling £0.8 million, recognised in administrative expenscs. ITFRS 3 requires
negative goodwill to be immediately recognised in the income statement. The finalisation of the fair values resulted in a

reduction of £13.0 million in the negative goodwill balance, recognised in adjusting items. These two items resulted in nef a
restatemnent of £12.3 million on retsined eamings.
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50. Prior year adjustments (continued)}
Banking Group

The comparative figures for certain liabilities previously disclosed in the statement of financiaf position for the year ended 30
Fune 2018 have been restated to reflect the apprapriate calegories required by IAS 39, Financial Instruments. The adjustments
have been disclosed below:

Movement duc

to
Original redassification Restated
£000 £000 £000
Current liabilities
Banking Group
Trade and other payables 168,522 @1.87%) 70,647
Deposits and cther accounts 8,148,034 57265 3,205,299
Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,859,558 40,610 1,900,168
Provisions - 16,977 16,977
Non-current liabilities
Banking Group
Provisions 16,977 (16,971 -
10,163,091 - 10,193,091

Following the restatement identified above, the accounting standurds require the Group fo alse prescut a restated 2017
siatement of financial position to show the effect of the reclassification error. Bestway Group Limited did not legally exist at
30 June 2017, however the former ultimate parent company, Bestway (Holdings) Limited, did exist and the financial statements
for this entity were publicly available. Therefore, the Group presents this as the reported and restated statement of financial
position for the Group below to show the effect of the reclassification error as at 30 June 2017,

Statement of financial pesition as ai 30 June 2017 restated (die to prior year adjustments)

Movement
due to
Original  restatemeni Restated
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Group Goodwill 206,294 - 206,294
Trading Group
Other intangible assets 464,443 - 464,443
Property plant and equipment 653,118 - 653,118
Investment property 114,987 - 114,987
Banking Group
Other intangible assets 7,494 - 7,494
Property plant and equipment 314,760 - 311,760
Investment property 19,634 - 19,634
Reinsumnce assets 12,877 - 12,877
Investment in equity accounted investees 31,600 - 31,600
Other financial assets classified held for sale 4,392,263 - 4,392,263
Lending's to financial insti tutions and advances £,991,887 - 1,991,887
8,206,357 - 8,206,357
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Statement of financial posifion as at 30 Jiuee 2017 restated (due to prior year adjustments) (continued)

Current assets

‘Frading group

laventories

Tax receivable

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Banking Group

Other financial asscts classified as held for sale

Lending’s to financial institutions & advances
Tax receivable

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Tatal asscts

Current liabilities

Trading Group

Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Bank overdraft

Other interest-bearing loaus and borrowings
Provisions

Banking Group

Trade and otler payables

Deposits and other accounts

Payable to investors of UBL funds

Bill payable

Baok overdraft

Other interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Technical provisions

Movement due
Original to restatement Restated
£000 £000 £060
298,020 - 298,020
8,048 - 8,048
214,202 - 214,202
108,973 - 108,973
3,315,760 - 3,315,760
2,752,614 - 2,752,614
96,501 - 96,501
307,489 - 307,489
1,354,340 - 1,354,340
8,455,947 - 8,455,947
16,662,304 - 16,662,304
526,225 - 526,225
38,320 - 38,320
50,965 - 50,965
20,694 “ 20,694
423,229 (96,959) 326,270
9,162,686 32,802 9,195,488
3,016 - 13,016
129,188 - 129,188
3,950 - 3,950
2,802,778 64,157 2,866,935
- 17,091 17,091
13,171,051 17,091 13,188,142
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Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017 restated (due ta prior year adjusiments} (continued)

Non-current liabilities

Trading group

Other interest-bearing loans and borrawings
Employes benefits

Deferred tax liabilities

Preference shares

Banking group

Other interest-bearing loans aud borrowings
Deposits and accounts

Employee henefits

Defoerred tax liabilities

Technical provisions

Other financial liabitities

Total liabhilities

Total net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Statutory reserve

Reserve pertaining to UBL funds
Translation reserves

Retained eamings

Equity attributable to owners of company
Non-confrolling interest

Total equity

Movement duc

Original  to restatement Restated
£'000 £600 £000
408,416 - 408,416
12,053 - 12,053
151,466 - 151,466
58,178 - 58,178
131,491 - 131,491
577,074 - 577,074
6,555 - 6,555
58,024 - 58,024
17,091 ¢17,091) .
31,689 - 34,689
1,452,037 (17,091 1,434,946
14,623,088 - 14,623,088
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
71 - 71

3,055 - 3,055
271,243 - 271,243
39 - 39
205,124 . 205,124
1,178 - 1,178
225,775 - 225,775
612,618 - 612,618
1,319,103 - 1,319,103
720,113 - 720,113
2,039,216 - 2,039,216
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Prior year cashflow restatement

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 11003305

Annual report and financizl statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Due to foreigh exchange calculation errors noted during the year with respect to the cashflow statement for the year ended 30
June 2018, the comparalive figures have been reclassified. The individual lines on the cashilow statement materially impacted

are as follows;

Trading Banldng Total
Group Group  cashtlow
2018 2018 2018
Reported
£000 £000 £000
Cash flows from
operating activities
{Decrease) / increase
in provisions (9.576) {42,118y (51,694
Ingcrease / (decrease)
in pension provision (2,442 35488 33,046
movements in working
capital
(Increase) / decrease (3,097 i (.097)

in inventories
(Incroase) / decrease
in receivablos
Increase / (decrease)
in payables

Tax paid

(36,006} 2,070,809 2,034,803

32,724 (2,821,678) (2,788,954)

(34,027) (38,874) (72,901)

Cash flows from
financing activities
Dividends paid to
non-controfling
interest

Net borrowings (from)
! to third parties

(17,657)  (35938)  (53,595)

(102,785) (1,582,321} {1,685,106)

Effect of foreign

exchange rale changes 24952 (260,687) (235,735)

Trading  Banking Total
Group Group  cashflow
Movement due to rostatement
£000 £000 £000
6,829  (13,506)  (6,677)
2,229 (50,9007 (48,73])
(25,539) - {25,539)

(10,9923 (2,113,708) (2,124,700)

29,021 2,739.806 2,768,827

(11271 (63,893)  (75,164)
(3.299)  (7,640) (10,939)
30,597 951331 981,928

(25.228) 47,382 22,154

Trading Banking

Group  Group
2018 2018
Restated

£000 £000

(2,147 (55.624)

213) 4,528
(28,636) -

(46,998) (42,899)

61745 (81,872)
(45,298) (102,767)

(20,956) (43,578)

(72,188) (630,990}

(276) (213,305)

Total
cashilow
2018

£000

(58,371)

4,315

(28,636)
(89,897

(20,127
(148,055)

(64,534)

(703,178)

(213,581)

Furtherniore, interest paid of £21.9 million has been reclassified from “cashflow from operating activities” 1o “cashflow from
financing activities” and dividends paid by the Banking Group to Trading Group of £63.4 million , dividends paid to owners
of the parent of £6 million, and dividends paid to non-controlling interest of £64.5 million have been reclassified from
“cashflow from investing activities” to “cashflow from financing activitics” to reflect the correot classification of these items.
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31. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in nofe 3, the Directors are required to make the
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. These judgements, estimates and assumptions also impact the resulls reported in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income. The sstimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and undeslying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisionsto accounting estimates are recognised
in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision and future perjads
if the revision affects both eurrent and future years.

Trading Groap
Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The following are the eritical judgements, apart from those involving estiniations (which are dealt with separately below), that
the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Licences

Licences acquired on the acquisition of pharmacies are stated at cost less acoumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
fives of intangible assets unless such Hves are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested
{or impairment at each balance sheet date. Intangible assets are amortised from the dato they are available for use, The estimated
useful lives arc as follows:

Licences 20 years
Key sonrces of estimation uncertuinty

The key assumptions conoceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that may
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of licences

in calculating the impairment provision for licences, the Group thakes an estimate of the cxpected retum for each cash
generating nnit in comparison to the licences relating to thaf cash generaling wnit. The estimates used in projecting the
discounted cash flows for use in the expected retum include the expected growth rate, the WACC discount rate, and budgeted
EBITDA figures for the next financial year. Sensitivity analysis is performed surrounding the effect of changes in the growth
rate and WACC on the impairment model. The impairment provision for the year is disctosed in note 23.

Intpairment of goodwill

Deotermining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the fair value of the cash-generating units less costs to
sell. The determination of a fair value and of suitable selling costs require a level of ostimaticn. In situations where this is
lower than the book value of the net assets of the cash generating unit, a value in use calculation will nesd to be performed.
The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-gencrating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to cajoulate present value. Details of the impairment loss calculation are set out in
note 21. Given the role of n Group holding company is fo hold and manage its investments, the most appropriate method of
assessing for goodwill held at group level is through fair value less cost to sell (FYLCTS).

Vafuation of investment propertics

Some of the Group's investment properties are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an invesiment proporty, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. The Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
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51. Critical accounting esfimates and judgements (continued)

Fair vaiue of assels and liabilities from business cambinations

In determining the fair vatue of the acquired trading assets of Bargaii Booze Limited, Conviviality Retail Logistics Limited
and Wine Rack Limited in the year, the fair value was determined by the Directors. The income approach was used to arnive
at the fair value of the intangible assets. The estimated net cash flows are forecast over the expected remaining economic life
and discounted to present value using a discount rate cominensurate with the lovel of risk associated with the expecied eash
flows, In determining the fair value of the acquired intangible assots, the Group's Direstors worked closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs in determining the fair value.

Provisions

A provision is recopnised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
because of a past event, that can be reliably measured, and it is probabte that an ontflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected fiture cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflcets
risks spocific fo the labiity.

Category M provisioning

Most of the provision in the accounts relates to a provision for a reduction in government unding. This comprises a pravision
made for the NHS funding cut announced by the Department of Health and NHS England (see note 38). Specifically, the
Category M provision included within NHS income is made in relation to NHS retained margin funding. This is based on an
internally produced model looking at drug tariff reimbursement rates in the market relative to available pharmacy funding to
estimate whether a funding provision is required. The Company performs regulsr roview and sensitivity analysis on the model.
Also included within NHS income is an element of discount on the basis of what is known as the “deduction scale”, This is an
assumed amount of disconnt received to avoid pharmacy contractors having to cafculate and declare discount received on each
item dispensed. Currently, the deduction scale is based in the monthly total of reimbursement prices with a minimmm of 5.6%
aind a maximum of 11.5% deducted from the total monthly reimbursement.

Inventory provisioning

The Group's sales are subject o changing consumer demands. As a result, it is necessary to consider the rocoverability of the
cost of inventory and the associaled provisioning required. When caloutating the invenlory provision, management considers
the nature and condilion of the inventory, as well as applying assumptions around antivipated saleability of stock.

Contingent Liabilities

As described in note 43 (Contingent liabilities) the Group has a number of contingent liabilities. Judgement is required in
assessing the likeliiood of outflow, the potential quantum of any outflow and the associated disclosure requirements. The
Directors, witl the aide of legal advisors, are confident of a favoureble outcome on all these matters, accordingly no provision
has been made in respect of these matters in the consolidated financial slatements.

Post-employment banefit obligations

The present value of the post-employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the nel cost/(income) for pensions
irclude the disconnt rate. Any changes in these assumptions will itnpact the carrying amount of post-employment benefit
obligations. The key assumptions and sensitivities are for post-cmplayment obligations arc disclosed in note 22 of the
consolidated financial statements,

Bantking Group

Credit risk measurement

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of models, as the risk
assooiated with exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expeeted cash flows and the passage of time. The
assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further esfimations as to the liketihood of defaults ocourring, of the
associated loss ratios and of default correlations between counterparties. The Banking Group measures credit risk using
Probability of Befault (PD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the approach used
for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss (ECLYunder IFRS 9. Refer to note 44 for more details.
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Non-cirent assets
Investments

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

‘Total assets

Corrent liabilities
Trade and other payables

Tetal liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capilai

Merger reserve
Retained earnings

Shareholders’ funds

Note

34

55

36

The notes on pages 137 to {39 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Bestway Group Limiled
Registered number 1603305

Anaual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
£000 £000
578,048 578,048
3 3
578,051 578,051
) 3)

(&) &)
578,046 578,046
10 16
508,740 508,740
69,296 69,296
578,046 578,046

These financial statements were approved by the board of Directors on 19 December 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

2»@—_}-.._,)—_,3__4—_ __‘_.,,_,_4-—._-____7,
Yord Z M Choudrey CBE, SI Pk, BA (Hons), FCA

Director

N —

M Y Sheikh
Director
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Balance at | July 2017
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income

Issue of ordinary shares
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
Dividends paid :

Balance of 30 June 2018

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Balance at 30 June 2019

Bestway Group Limited

Registered number 1i1603305
Anunual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Merger Retained
Share capital reserve earning Total equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 75,296 75,296
10 - - 10
- 508,740 - 508,740
- - (6,000) (6,000)
10 508,740 69,296 578,046
- - 4,000 4,000
- - (4,000) 4,000)
10 508,740 69,296 578,046

The notes on pages 137 1o 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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52. Significant accounting policies
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Acl 2006.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework (“FRS 101"). The Company has adopted several new standards, amendments to standards and [FRIC that became
effective during the year and these had no material impact and are detailed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs™) but makes amendments where necessary
in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below whore advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions
has been taken.

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company i5s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account.

The basis of preparation is covered for all balances within note 3 of the financial statements.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:

- A cash flow statement and related notes;

- Comparalive period reconciliations for share capital,

- Disclosures in respect of transaclions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

- Disclosure in respeet of the compensation of Key Management Personnel;
- Disclosures in respect of capital management; and

- The effects of new but not yet effective IFR Ss.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurentent of ceriain financial
instruments to fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those sel out in note 3 to the consolidated
finencial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in the financial statements when the right to receive payment is established.
The merger reserve relates to the difference between the consideration paid and the book value of the assets and liabilities at
the time of acquisition of entities that are under the control of the shareholders that control the Company.

The Company financial stalementis have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company made a profit before tax of
£4,0 million and has aiet assets of £578.0 million. This relates predominantly o an investment in Bestway (Holdings) Limited.
The Directors consider that this will enable the Group lo continue in operational existence for the foreseesble future by meeting
its liabilities as they fall due for payment.

Based on these considerations the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going
concen basis.

53. Profit for the year

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Comipany has elected not to present its own profit end loss account
for the pericd. The Company reported a profit for the financial period ended 30 June 2019 of £4.0 million (2018: £75.3
million). The auditors’ remuncration for audit and other sevvices is disclosed in note 14 {o the consolidated financiaf statements.
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54, Investments

Sharesin
group
undertakings Total
£000 £000
Cost and net book valne
At 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019 578,048 578,048
Details of the Company's directly owned subsidiary are given below;
. 2019 2018
Name UK Company Registered office Class of Ownership  Ownership
number shares held o, Y
9 0
2 Abbey Road, Park
Bestway (Holdings) Limited 01392861  Royal, London, UK, Ordinary 100 100
NWI10 7BW
The investments in subsidiarics are all stated at cost less provision for impairment,
See note 26 for information relating to other indirectly owned related undertakings of the Company.
58. Trade and other payables
019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 5 5
5 5
Amounts owed to group undertakings are non-interest bearing, unsecured and payable on demand.
56. Share capital
2019 2018
£409 £000
Authorised:
1,600,000 ordinary shares of £6.01 each 10 10
Allotted, cailed up and fully paid
1,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 10 10

Cn 26 June 2019, Bestway Group Limited declared and paid a final, ordinary dividend of £4.00 per share in addition o the
£6.00 per share intorim dividend declared and paid on 21 May Z018 for the year ended 30 June 2018. This totalled £10 million.

No dividend has been declared for the year ended 30 June 2019,
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57. Related party transactions
Remuneration of key management personnel

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption outlined in FRS 101:8(j) and is therefore not required fo disclose key
management personnel compensalion, analysed into five catepories as prescribed by 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Transactions with related parties

The Company has taken advantage of ihe sxemption outlined in FRS 101:8(k) and is therefore not reguired to disclose
transactions with wholly ovmed subsidiaries, as prescribed by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

No other transactions were enteted into with the Company's disclosable related parties, as defined by IAS 24,
Directors’ remuncration

The costs relating to the Directors’ remuneration for the Company are mainly incusred by Bestway Wholesale Limited and
Bestway (Holdings) Limited for the wider Group. The amount attributable to services provided to the Company was £6.6
million (2018: £3.2 million). The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the
highest paid Director in the Group was £6.6 million.
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